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I, Donald I. M. Outerbridge, Executive Director, of the City of Regina, in the
Province of Saskatchewan, MAKE OATH AND SAY AS FOLLOWS:

BACKGROUND

1. I am the Executive Director of Merchant Law Group (“MLG”) and as such I have
personal knowledge of the matters and facts about which deposition is made herein except
where stated to be on information and belief, and whereso stated I verily believe the same to be

true.

2. I have a Bachelor of Arts from the University of Western Ontario and a Bachelor of

Commerce (Honours) from the University of Windsor.

3. All of my working career has been dedicated to law office management. I was the
Office Manager of Outerbridge, Barristers and Solicitors, in Toronto, Ontario, a firm of 18
lawyers, from 1982 to 1987.

4. I was the General Manager of Simkin Gallagher, Barristers and Solicitors, in Winnipeg,
Manitoba, a firm of 35 lawyers, from 1988 to 1992.

5. I joined MLG in February 1993 and have been the Executive Director of MLG since
1993.

6. We are a firm of approximately 50 lawyers and articling students. MLG has offices in
Montreal, Winnipeg, Yorkton, Regina, Saskatoon, Calgary (two offices), Edmonton, Kelowna,
Surrey, and Victoria. (as well as some smaller satellite offices). MLG is a law firm with
individual lawyers who are called to the Bar in Quebec, Ontario, Manitoba, Saskatchewan,
Alberta, and British Columbia (and additionally Tony Merchant is a practising member of the
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State Bar of Arizona). Over the years, the partners and associates of MLG, in order of their
seniority at the Bar have been Bill Purdy, Gordon Neill, Q.C., Garry Wilson, Q.C., Ian Meikle,
Anthony Boryski, Tom Doré, E.F.A. Merchant, Q.C., and also of significant seniority are -
Satnam Aujla, Tim Turple, Henri Chabanole, Patrick Alberts, David Halvorsen, Jane Anne

Summers, Howard Tennenhouse, Gerald Heinrichs, and others.

7. In order to present this evidence in a coherent manner, I have included evidence on
information and belief with evidence from my own knowledge. This is necessary for a number
of reasons. 1) MLG has acted for individuals in connection with Residential School litigation
for nine years. Individual affidavit evidence from even a fraction of our thousands of clients
would not permit the Court to get a coherent picture of the work done by MLG lawyers for
individual clients, and combining the importance of that evidence is useful and practical. 2)
Millions of dollars worth of work has been done by dozens of MLG lawyers, some of whom
are no longer with our firm, and again to coherently present evidence by way of individual
affidavits would make culmination of information for a fact finder impossible. 3) MLG
dealings with the government over the years have similarly involved many MLG lawyers. This
has also been the case in recent negotiations which have led to two agreements, one concluded
in November (the Agreement in Principle or “AIP”, whose terms still govern fee issues for
Merchant Law Group) and the other which was concluded in May (the Settlement Agreement
or “SA”), and executed by most of the parties in May, June, and July. With other plaintiff
counsel, and counsel for the Baxter action as a national consortium (“BNC”), MLG entered
into discussions which led to these two settlements, and again to bring the evidence of those
negotiations before this Honourable Court in any coherent manner through affidavits by a
dozen different MLG lawyers who were involved in those negotiations would be impractical
and also make extremely difficult the task for this Honourable Court of synthesizing all of the
concepts and information. For these various reasons, some of my affidavit includes
information and belief from the MLG lawyers who have pursued residential school litigation

on behalf of our firm’s clients in various provinces.
p



00359

4

8. I also have been designated to swear this affidavit in part because I have been with the
firm since 1993, and been intricately involved in all management decisions and various
partners discussions where residential school issues were handled; and I am therefore in a good
position to provide an overview on behalf of the entire firm as to the history of its work with
regard to residential schools. I have also been selected to proffer affidavit information on
behalf of the firm due to the concern, particularly for the western provinces, that it would be
seen as inappropriate for a lawyer from within the firm to swear an affidavit in proceedings

where lawyers from the firm also intend to appear as counsel.

9. For ease of reference, the following MLG lawyers have been assigned the following
numbers for the purpose of this affidavit. Where a paragraph of this my affidavit is on
information and belief, the paragraph will end with the number or numbers of the lawyers by
whom I am informed with respect to some of the information in that paragraph, and in each
case I verily believe the same information to be true based on the information provided by the
same MLG lawyer(s) identified. The following lawyers are by no means the only MLG
lawyers who have done work on Residential School matters but were mainly involved in work
for the settlement negotiations. All but Gordon Neill attended some of the meetings convened

by the Honourable Frank Iacobucci, Q.C., described in this my affidavit:

1. Gordon Neill 7. Evatt Merchant

2. Tony Merchant 8. Michael Troy

3. Jane Ann Summers 9. Bill Slater

4, Tim Turple 10..  Josh Merchant

5. Peter Manousos 11. Matthew Merchant
6. Mike Mantyka 12. Suneil Sarai

10. In addition, other MLG lawyers who have been particularly active with Residential

School work and litigation over the years are:

Jonathan Abrametz Jolene Horejda
Patrick Alberts Jennifer Jamieson
Drew Belobaba Christian Johnson
Gavin Bentley-Fisher Mark Lancaster

Jordan Bienert Matia Matkovic
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Tyler Bond Bruce Neill
Sylvie Bourassa Graham Neill
Dwayne Braun Mike Nolin
Jeremy Caissie James Purdy
Henri Chabanole Brendan Pyle
Charlene DeLuca J. D. Roberts
Jeff Deagle Norm Rosenbaum
Tom DeCoteau Earl Shaw

Tom Doré Tom Stepper
Ron Dumonceaux Steven Summets
Owen Falquero Chris Tahn

Hong Go Eric Wagner
Steve Haichert Brian Warrington
Gerald Heinrichs Rick Yaholnitsky
Steve Hill Lennard Young

11.  Numerous other lawyers and staff in the firm have also worked on Residential School
litigation. Some of our lawyers have worked almost exclusively on Residential School cases
for most of the past decade. Since 1997, MLG’s Residential School litigation efforts have been
constant, including handling thousands of discoveries and pre-trial hearings, handling half the

Residential School trials and approximately 2/3 of all appeals in Canada.

MLG FIRST NATIONS HISTORY & WORK

12.  MLG has acted for First Nations and First Nations people during all of my years with
MLG. The personal history of our lawyers’ involvement with First Nations people, and First
Nations causes, long predates the beginnings of MLG, which began as a two lawyer firm on
March 31, 1986, then bearing a different name. 2. 3. 4.

13. For several years, MLG has acted for or acts now for numerous Chiefs, members of
Band Councils numbering in the hundreds, and on behalf of four former Grand Chiefs of the
Federation of Saskatchewan Indian Nations. From Tony Merchant’s very early years of
practice, he represented First Nations people and extensively argued First Nations causes.
Politics, trust, friendship, and fellowship, all have a relationship to the task of working with
First Nations people. Politics and the law were conjoined regarding First Nations. Tony was

elected to the Legislature of Saskatchewan in 1975. His mother has previously been a member
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of the Saskatchewan Legislature. His grandfather has previously been a member of the
Saskatchewan Legislature. His great uncle was a long time conservative Member of
Parliament from Nova Scotia. From 1968 to 1979, one of his brothers-in-law served as a
Cabinet Minister from Saskatchewan in the Cabinets of Pierre Elliot Trudeau; and another,
then friend who subsequently became his brother-in-law, served in the same Cabinet from
1968 to 1977 as a senior Cabinet Minister from Ontario and later as High Commissioner to
London. Throughout those years, Tony Merchant became a friend of a number of Grand
Chiefs in Saskatchewan including David Ahenakew and Sol Sanderson, and other aboriginal

leaders. 2. 4. 7.

14.  Our law firm has acted for approximately ten First Nations over the past decade and for
a wide variety of councillors and chiefs dealing with their legal needs, and sometimes issues
related to Band Councils. MLG lawyers have appeared before the courts in four provinces and
often in the Federal Court, to argue causes on behalf of First Nations, attended sweats and
sentencing circles, and a variety of our lawyers have worked for First Nations, worked on
business development projects for a variety of First Nations, and acted for individuals of First
Nations heritage on hundreds of occasions. Patrick Alberts, Gerald Heinrichs, Rick
Yaholnitsky and others, have all worked for First Nations from time to time, and a wide variety
of the members of our firm have worked for Band Councillors and individual First Nations
pebple regarding Residential School matters and also regarding many other legal issues over
many decades. 2.3.4.6.7.

15. Our commencement of work on Residential School litigation began in 1997. One of
the Chiefs represented by our firm was in our Regina office meeting with Tony and asked him
if MLG were interested in doing Residential School litigation, and he agreed. By coincidence,
a few days later two band council members from a different First Nation were in Mr.
Merchant’s office and made the same suggestion. Again Mr. Merchant agreed. After the two
people left, Mr. Merchant walked down the hall and spoke with Patrick Alberts and told him
about the conversations. Mr. Alberts took the lead in doing work for Carry-the-Kettle, one of
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the largest First Nations in Saskatchewan. Mr. Alberts told Mr. Merchant he already had a
Residential School case. 2.

16. A number of First Nations began to send clients to MLG. A number of individuals in
First Nations institutions, band offices, healing centres, were known to us to be recommending

that individuals with Residential School claims contact our firm. 2. 3. 4. 5. 8. 10. 11.

17.  Asan example, Flora Northwest, one of our representative plaintiffs in Alberta, held
various counselling positions in the Hobbema area and based on her recommendations alone,

MLG has about 300 or 400 Residential School clients in that area.

18. On two occasions, Tony Merchant has been awarded eagle feathers by First Nations
(once where two First Nations came together with their Band Councils and membership for the
ceremony), and this recognition of our work regarding First Nations seems to result in

additional clients coming to our firm.

19.  Residential School litigation became a crusade for many lawyers within our firm.
MLG saw a huge injustice to be resolved. MLG lawyers cared a great deal about this work and
took the trust of victims personally. Prosecuting claims was expensive for MLG because MLG
represented such a large number of Residential School clients, and our lawyers were
committed to moving their cases forward. MLG was determined that our clients would not be
victims of the ‘deep pockets’ defence strategy of denying every claim. The government was
spending $4.00 on their lawyers and administration, for every $1.00 being paid in settlements

or judgments for victims.

20.  The determination of MLG was also noted by the media. Media coverage was
significant in MLG becoming the focus of attention for Residential School survivors. Now
produced and shown to me, and marked as Exhibit “A” to this my affidavit, are a number of

print media articles. There were many, many others published over the years.
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21. Tony Merchant, Henri Chabanole, Gerald Heinrichs, Josh Merchant, Norm
Rosenbaum, Jane Ann Summers, Evatt Merchant, Mike Mantyka, Tim Turple, and others, have
from time to time (and in the case of many of }these individuals repeatedly) been interviewed
by the media about Residential School litigation, and by the First Nations media on television,

radio, and in the First Nations print media.

22. In addition, MLG is well known in western Canada from other litigation, and had the
advantage of offices all over western Canada MLG offices all over western Canada tend not to
be in locations which would be off putting to First Nations people. The MLG Winnipeg office
is easily accessible and on Broadway, a well known street. In Yorkton, the MLG office isina
stand alone building owned by Rick Yaholnitsky, located in a city in the midst of a number of
First Nations. In Saskatoon, the MLG offices are in a building owned by the Yellow Quill
First Nation known as the First Nations Bank Building.

23.  The determination of MLG on behalf of First Nations people is also noted by the First
Nations community. Our lawyers speak to Residential School victims at any time of day. None
of our lawyers have non-published home telephone numbers. All of our lawyers take calls at
home, in the evening, and on weekends. Many of our lawyers regularly give their cellular
numbers to Residential School clients. Victims call often. Being available helped earn our
clients’ trust. 2. 3. 4.6. 7. 8.9. 11. 12.

24.  Litigation efforts by MLG was continuing from its commencement in the late 1990s.
We believe maintaining the pressure of litigation by thousands of victims was a fundamental
reason why the government eventually appointed Frank Iacobucci, Q.C., and sought to reach a
comprehensive settlement. A great deal of work was being done based on the contingency

retainer agreements in place with MLG clients.
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25. The issues which arose in the public media were, in the view of MLG, part of the work

to continue to focus public attention on Residential School injustice.

26.  The electronic media was also very important in a public attention and pressure role.
There have been frequent appearances on television both nationally and in various markets. As
recent examples, in July and August, 2006, Tony Merchant was interviewed extensively by
CBC Radio in Saskatchewan which broadcasts into northern Saskatchewan, and by Missinippi
Radio which has small repeaters all over the north, regarding Residential School matters. 2. 4.
6.

MLG’S PROPORTION OF CASES

27. In the attached articles, marked as Exhibit “A” to this my affidavit, there are references
from time to time to the number of clients represented by MLG in relation to the total number
of claims that were known to have been brought against the government and churches. From
the early years of Residential School litigation onward, MLG always seemed to have half, or
slightly more than half, of the clients that were known and reported in the media. When we
had 2,000 Residential School clients, the media would report that from talking to the
government they knew there were 3,860 claims. When we had 3,500 clients, the media would

be reporting 6,700 claims or 7,000 claims.

28. For example, in the attached June 17, 2000, Saturday Night article, it reads, MLG had
taken on “over 3,000 cases”. In the January 8, 2001, LeaderPost article it reads, “The
Merchant Law Firm represents 4,300 of the 6,000 former Indian Residential School students
who are suing the federal government...”. In the March 9, 2001, National Post article it reads,
“Merchant Law Group represents about 4,300 native people who say they were abused”. In
the StarPhoenix on November 2, 2004, ran an article stating “Regina lawyer, Tony Merchant,
whose firm represents some 6,800 Residential School claims”. The Lawyers Weekly on

December 2, 2005, said “Merchant Law Group ... represents half of all individual law suits by




10

former students against the federal government...”. On November 20, 2006, we had 8,099
Residential School client files.

29.  Since the late 1990s, MLG has represented approximately half of all Residential
Schools survivors seeking compensation from the government for Residential School abuse.
Most of MLG clients were pursuing litigation before the Superior Courts of Saskatchewan,
Alberta, and B.C.; although MLG also had a significant number of clients in Manitoba and
Ontario; with some clients from other provinces and territories, and even the U.S.A. As
demonstrated by the government own statistics (which are now produced and shown to be and
marked as Exhibit “B” to this my affidavit, being a true copy of page 9 of IRSRC 2001-2002
Departmental Performance Report), approximately 70% of the Residential School claims being
advanced in Canada were in Alberta and Saskatchewan, where MLG represented about 60% of

all clai_mants.

30.  MLG has issued more than half of the claims that are before the court in the province of
Alberta. We have issued more than half of the claims that are before the court in the province
of Saskatchewan. We have issued a high percentage of the claims or ADR claims that are
before the courts or in the ADR system in the provinces of British Columbia and Manitoba.

We have some claims from the province of Ontario and Quebec.

31.  Further, the amount of litigation work being done in Saskatchewan far outpaced the
other provinces. Now produced and shown to be and marked as Exhibit “C” to this my
affidavit, is an Access to Information report, dated October 12, 2005, which shows on pages 4
and 5 that the number of lawyers and the cost alone of their salaries (along with their
assistants) were far greater that any other province in Canada; as Saskatchewan (followed by
B.C. and Alberta) were the provinces in which Residential School litigation was being most
aggressively pursued, while litigation in provinces like Ontario and Quebec was less active. (It
should be noted that the figures in the same Access to Information report do not reflect the total

annual spending of the government on defending Residential School claims. Now produced
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and shown to be and marked as Exhibit “D” to this my affidavit, is a true copy of page 15 of
IRSRC Planned Spending Estimates, demonstrating additional spending costs of the

government concerning Residential School litigation).

32.  Various MLG Residential School cases have proceeded to trial in Saskatchewan and
British Columbia. MLG initiated the cases management process in Alberta, although there
have been no cases in Alberta. No cases moved forward to a conclusion in Manitoba because
the Manitoba limitations legislation until the provincial government, to its great credit, passed
legislation which resuscitated Residential School litigation. Hence, Manitoba claims were
some years behind the claims in other jurisdictions. In Ontario, MLG concluded many cases
through work handled mainly by Jane Ann Summers, who is a long standing member of the
Law Society of Upper Canada. Tony Merchant argued a number of cases in the Appellate
Courts and with Graham Neill from our Edmonton office and Eugene Meehan, Q.C.,
successfully argued H.L., the first of the two Residential School cases that have gone to the
Supreme Court of Canada. 2.3.4.6.7.8.9.11. 12.

33. The Government of Canada made it very difficult to bring cases to a conclusion.
Through demands for document disclosure, examinations for discovery, on many occasions
examining the same client more than once and sometimes three times, through the use of
experts where clients moving forward to trial would be sent to experts by the government,
usually psychologists, retained by the government, and other means. Sometimes they would
succeed in having our clients sent on as many as three interviews by experts. Even getting the
government to file a Statement of Defence to a claim often took years and several written
requests. The government would delay proceedings and make it very difficult for our clients,

as well as making it expensive and difficult for us as a law firm. 2.3.4.5.6. 7.

34.  These issues are significant in relation to risk. These issues are significant in relation to
the fact that ML.G carried more than half the litigation load, and MLG was taking half the cases
in Canada to trial and handled more than half of cases on appeal.
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35.  According to press reports, the Government of Canada was spending $4.00 defending
claims for every $1.00 that went to victims by way of judgments and settlements. An example
of the battle, whereby the Government of Canada would spend no end of money fighting what
was in large part our law firm and what was perceived by us as an attempt to break us as a law
firm and break our will to succeed for victims, a suspicion expressed in my presence often in
partnership meetings can be seen in an exchange for Cameron J.A. which Tony recounted to

me.

36. Tony Merchant was before Mr. Justice Cameron on an application for leave to appeal
by the government on a low damages case. MLG was already in the Court of Appeal over a
preliminary motion, and the government lawyer told the judge that the reason for delay by the
government was that the archivists were searching for information in order to effectively

defend. 2.

37.  To make the point of how much work had been done by the archivists, explaining the
- delay, the government lawyer said, ‘The cost to date for archivists has been $212,000.> The
judge asked quizzically, “How much did you say?”. $212,000 was repeated. Judge Cameron
sort of cocked his head and said almost wistfully ‘I think I am starting to see the nature of the
problem’. 2.

38.  MLG ran these trials and fought these battles to bludgeon the Government of Canada
into being fair to Residential School survivors. It was a rare trial in which we got as much as

our ordinary hourly rates. Usually, we lost money in relation to ordinary hourly rates.

39. Even on successful cases, for example H.L., which went to the Supreme Court of
Canada, we spent in terms of the value of our time far more time than the compensation that
we can achieve by way of a percentage of the amount of damages flowing from our success in

the Supreme Court of Canada. Notwithstanding our success in the Supreme Court of Canada,
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1/3rd of what will be in the range of $350,000 will not come close to satisfying our unbilled
hourly fees accumulated on the H.L. file. The same has been true with a number of our
successes, which have not been successful for MLG, except in the sense of maintaining

pressure upon the government.

40. Included in Exhibit “A” is an editorial from the Saskatoon StarPhoenix dated April 30,
2005, one month to the day prior to the government announcement of the negotiations that let
to this settlement. The StarPhoenix writes that H L. “should serve to speed up a claims
settlement process that’s dragged on for too long”. The Lawyers Weekly of May 13, 2005,
included in Exhibit “A”, began with the headline “SCC decision on H L. may impact far and
wide”. The Canadian Lawyer article in 2006 includes, “Tony Merchant, QC, all but feels his
firms monumental settlement after a 2005 Supreme Court of Canada win on behalf of one such
client, which ruled Ottawa was liable to the tune of $350,000.00 for abuse suffered by that
individual in a residential school”. Maés and Class torts are often by necessity handled
similarly. Work for one client creates impact for others (which is demonstrated by the impact
of individual Vioxx trials which have occurred in the United States). H.L. was very impactful,
as was Cloud, and the thousands of individual cases making their way through the Courts,

primarily in the Western provinces.

41. MLG contributed in a variety of ways to bringing the government to a decision that a
settlement and this settlement in particular was needed and appropriate. We contributed
through our pursuit of litigation, which amounted to 50% of the litigation pressure upon the
government. There are many examples of our ongoing legal work. We are continuing to
conduct Examinations for Discovery, moving cases to pre-trial and trial, dealing in ADR. All

of this pressure contributed to achieving the settlement which is before the court.

42. In a letter of December 1, 2005, now prbduced and shown to me and marked as Exhibit
“E” to this my affidavit, from Paul Vickery, which from the accompanying distribution list

received wide distribution indicates that until the contemplated SA and court proceedings come
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into effect, litigation would continue and litigation on behalf of various clients whose accounts
are sought for disclosure is continuing. The letter reads in part:

... the Agreement in Principle ... requires that the final settlement be approved by
courts.... It provides that the agreement will be implemented following those
approvals, and the expiry of an opt out period,....

Pending ... implementation ... litigation is expected to continue in the normal course
through discoveries, and to settlement, ....

43.  On our clients’ ongoing cases, just as Paul Vickery indicates, there is an ongoing
litigation interest to be advanced. For our clients, now and in the future, whether the settlement
is approved or not, and whether clients’ claims are resolved in litigation, in ADR, under the
new Independent Assessment Process (“IAP”), or ih the Courts (for serious clients who opt out
even if the settlement succeeds), the release of information (particularly information which is
solicitor-client privilege or subject to client confidentiality) would have a devastating effect
upon their rights and would have a profound effect upon the class. Our clients will be
adversely effected even if the settlement is approved and leads to a settlement by way of the
Common Experience Payment (“CEP”) and the IAP process (and they do not opt-out of the
settlement). 1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10. 11. 12.

44,  The SA governs amalgamation of the claims. Pursuant to the agreement, amalgamation
of the Ontario claims may occur, as of the Implementation Date. Merchant Law Group does
not agree to amalgamation taking effect before the Implementation Date, as it would prejudice

the interest and right of the Plaintiffs and proposed classes under the Ontario claims.

45.  In relation to determining approval of counsel fees and what may be appropriate, there
are many factors which must be considered. In this case, there were the usual risks. When this
litigation began, many in the legal profession and government asserted that there was no legal
foundation for a ‘Residential School claim’. Leaving aside sexual abuse claims in some

provinces, there were statute of limitation issues and generally, this was an entirely risky and
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new form of litigation. MLG and other firms ventured into this area of law accepting great

risks in a effort to win justice for its clients.

46. By way of comparisons between the work of MLG and the BNC, they moved forward
mainly in Ontario with Cloud, and work conjunctively with us in regards to Alberta case
management. We issued class proceedings first in Quebec and Alberta, and have issued the
only class proceedings in Manitoba and B.C., under which the SA is being brought forward in
those jurisdictions. We had many more individual actions than the BNC and many more
individuals with whom we had to interface and organizations to which we reported and with
which we had dealings since 1997. They had greater responsibilities in some areas than we
did, and we had greater responsibilities in some areas than they did. We do not criticize the
entitlement of the BNC to a fixed fee of $40M. Indeed, MLG lawyers believe this is a modest,
if anything inappropriately low award of fees to the BNC for their innovative and effective
work which formed an important part of achieving this historic resolution of Residential
School wrongdoing. 2.3.4.6.7.

47.  We contributed significantly through the media and the public sense of injustice. A
significant part of the pressure that was on the government comes as a result of the repeated
contact of the media with members of our firm which resulted in the public awareness of the
huge and wasteful spending by the government on lawyers and administration. Through the
media, we also contributed to the judiciary becoming increasingly impatient with what they
saw as a process of delay. There was general support among Canadians, from what we
understood to be information from polls conducted by the Government of Canada, for an
overall settlement of Residential School litigation and our lawyers told from time to time that
support for a comprehensive settlement ran in the range of 70% of Canadians. But nothing

ever seemed to happen. 2.3.4.7.

43. MLG also contributed behind the scenes. Tony Merchant spoke over time with

numerous Cabinet Ministers and Prime Minister Chrétien about Residential School litigation
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issues as well as speaking with a number of Senators, people within the Prime Minister’s
offices of both Prime Minister Chrétien and Prime Minister Maftin, and speaking briefly with
individuals in the Conservative Party, one of whom is now a Cabinet Minister. The BNC also
saw the need for pressure and Darcy Merkur and Tony Merchant spoke about this from time to
time as their work and ours proceeded. Our sense was that they also were doing good work in
this regard although Tony Merchant’s level of access was different. A lot of work went into
this process which was the repeated expressions of the need for justice for First Nations people,
expressed both in terms of the politics of why that would be better and fairer and expressed in

terms of the injustice on a substantive and non political level. 2. 3. 4. 7.

49.  The proposed settlement establishes the National Certification Committee (“NCC”) of
seven individuals and contemplates the establishment after certification of a National
Administration Committee (“NAC”) of seven persons. Tony Merchant is a member of the
NCC and, if certification and the requested court orders are granted in all jurisdictions, he will
be a member of the NAC. Michael Troy and Williams Slater have worked on the IAP
subcommittee, and attended meetings and worked to make sure that the IAP program is

effective and fair to victims.

50.  If the settlement is approved by the Courts including potential appeals, and if 5,000
class members do not opt out, the settlement will come into effect in an estimated eight
months.

51.  This is an unusual settlement proposal requiring the approval of 9 Courts, with the right

of the government, in the event of $5,000 opt outs, to back away from the settlement.

52.  MLG, as did the BNC, attended various meetings with a number of lawyers, did
significant preparation for meetings, and in working through the reams of proposals and
documents and emails, all of the decisions, because they were hugely significant for members
of the class and our clients, were made with significant levels of discussion and idea exchanges

in person, by telephone, and in written communications, between the various lawyers within
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MLG. It is common in resolving class disputes for a great deal of time and effort to go into

discussions and negotiations, in this case successful negotiations.

53. MLG, the BNC, the AFN, sometimes the independent counsel group, and sometimes

the churches, often had positions that they advanced in writing.

54.  The negotiations carry the same risk of any other negotiations. They could fail. The
payor could back away. It almost did. The discussions in this instance were far more time
consuming because of ﬁavel, principally to Toronto for meetings, notwithstanding the fact that
this was primarily a western issue. The discussions carried huge disbursements for travel,

accommodations, and living expenses for MLG lawyers.

55.  The BNC did an excellent job in the discussions with the Federal Government which, in
themselves, were time consuming and formed a major part of the work by MLG and the BNC
in achieving this settlement with the Federal Government. In those discussions, MLG
sometimes had as many as seven representatives present for meetings and eleven different
lawyers appeared at the negotiations, which would often involve two or three day meetings at a
time. Preparation and attendance for these negotiations were very time consuming. 2. 3. 4. 6.
7.

56.  The discussions were more time consuming than would normally be the case because
there was not one view expressed by class counsel in the discussions with the payor, but rather
a variety of views expressed by BNC and MLG as class counsel, with valued and diverse views
expressed by the Assembly of First Nations (the “AFN™), other representatives of First Nations
organizations, and a wide variety of independent lawyers who had a few dozen or sometimes
some hundreds of individual clients. These lawyers also attended with expressions of view
which often were valuable. There were also multiple payors and the views of the churches
were expressed. Four church organizations were represented. Almost all of the First Nations

organizations, the churches, and as was the case with the government, MLG, and the BNC,
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came with multiple representatives. Sometimes there were in the neighbourhood of 100
representatives attending for meetings all of whom would, from time to time, express views,
the vast majority of which were useful, interesting and moved the agenda, but also made the

process time consuming and expensive for MLG. 2.3.4.5.6.7. 11.

57.  Work by the BNC was also important. The success by the BNC in Cloud was profound
in its impact. The good work by the BNC in the Alberta collective case management process
was influential. Our lawyers, particularly Jane Ann Summers, Tim Turple, Mike Mantyka,
Graham Neill, Tom Stepper, Peter Manousos, Tony Merchant, and others, also took part

meaningfully in the Alberta case management process. 2. 3.4. 5. 6.

58. The BNC did far less on individual cases than MLG, in terms of ADR and individual
trials but these comparisons are only important in relation to the fact that the BNC is to receive
a $40M fixed fee and MLG is to receive a $40M fixed fee. 2. 3. 4.

59.  Comparisons of effort are only necessary to determine whether the relative payments
are fair. MLG lawyers who attended the discussions not only think payment to BNC is fair to
the payor, but think it undervalues the work of the BNC. In relation to the risk taken by BNC,
and the wonderful result achieved by BNC, MLG, and other counsel, a settlement in the range
of $5B with total legal fees of less than 2%, means MLG believes payment to BNC is fully and
absolutely justified. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10. 11. 12.

60. If MLG and the BNC were getting 10% or 15% of $5B that would be far greater than
the $40M. If each of the class firms were getting 5% it would be significantly higher than
$40M. If MLG were receiving 1/3rd of the CEP (our entitlement under most contingency fee
agreements with our clients) that would be more than double $40M.
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61.  The CEP compensation is exactly the kind of compensation that MLG sought in its
class proceedings: compensation for attending a Residential School, losing culture, getting an

inappropriate education, and being subjected to verbal and personal abuse.

62.  The issues of culture and loss of education were anticipated to require significant
development through experts and case authority. Experts in these areas had been engaged and
considerable time spent in working their evidence forward towards anticipated applications for

certification and proof at trial. 2.4. 6. 7.

63.  We have a case before MclIntyre J. of the Saskatchewan Court which is a pure culture
case. The case had, in essence, begun, to the extent that there have been a whole series of pre-
evidentiary meetings. Expert evidence has been prepared and exchanged at considerable
expense. A lot of time has gone into the case which I will describe as “R.R.”, although there is
no order that the case be described by way of initials. It is a pure case of loss of culture. As

Tony put it in a speech to a law conference in Toronto in February, 2006:

Surely, all Canadians, because of the importance of the Francophone issue in our
nation, understand that the loss of the capacity to communicate in a language affects
the loss of culture and affects the loss of one’s sense of self. Some thoughtful
residential school clients have described the issue to me as one by which their
grandparents speak a Native language and some English and they speak English and
little of their Native language so that between the generations they are able to talk about
buying a coca cola but not really able to communicate about the beauty of a sunset or
emotions of a marital breakdown. The aim of Canada is expressed through our
politicians has been accomplished and the generations have been cut off from each
other. 2.

64.  We will not be proceeding with that case. All of that work and preparation for a test
case is lost. The work on cases where we did not succeed is lost. We are giving up our right to
a share of the CEP for all of these individuals even if we were receiving our percentage portion
of the CEP, and generally our retainer agreements would result in a payment of about 1/3rd of
the CEP to MLG. In many instances we did substantially more work than 1/3rd of the CEP
would justify.
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65.  Merchant Law Group has thus far been provided, by e-mail, with only the affidavits of
Darcy Merkur (sworn July 28, 2006) and Frank Iacobucci, Q.C. (Sworn July 28, 2006). We
have been advised that the full materials filed before this Honorable Court are expected to
arrive at our offices on Tuesday, August 8, 2006 As this is a process where the parties seek
initial approval of a settlement, we are reluctant to controvert facts and opinions offered which
we do not agree with or share. However, specific exception must be taken with paragraphs 33
to 38 inclusively of the affidavit of Frank Iacobucci, Q.C. The information stated in the same
paragraphs is specifically denied and controverted, other than paragraph 35 (d).

66. At the time of this affidavit being sworn, MLG has over $40M worth of unbilled work-
in-progress fees on individual client files and our class work file. There is a difference of view
between MLG and the government whether the verification process has been accomplished.
Representatives of the federal government spent 8 days in our offices and were provided
various information before leaving over a dispute concerning solicitor-client privilege and

client confidentiality.

67.  The work, expense, and turmoil within the firm of assembling files in our Regina office
from every MLG office across Canada was enormous. In my estimate, from measuring the
size and counting of the banker’s boxes, I believe if all the files had been piled one on top of
another, they would have gone 900 feet in the air.

68.  The information concerning MLG fees and disbursement which will be put before the

Saskatchewan Court in September will be well detailed.

69. The BNC and MLG contributed very significantly throughout the settlement
negotiations with the government which began in June of 2005, and continued more or less to

the end of May of 2006.
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70.  Under the government of Prime Minister Stephen Harper, MLG has had visited upon it
ongoing negotiations and 27 different drafts of a settlement agreement, and every draft
included various changes, many of which were substantial. Risk continued, and risk grew that

a final settlement would not be reached. 2.3.4.6.7.

71. A news story submitted under Exhibit “A”, consistent with 27 drafts, indicates that “a
government led by Stephen Harper should not be obligated to live up to an agreement reached
by Paul Martin’s Liberals”.

72.  The government insisted upon a settlement involving many unusual factors and placing
unusual burdens. MLG supports a settlement in keeping with the terms of AIP and SA MLG
seeks for it and for its clients as well as members of the class all of the benefits that flow from

specifics of the AIP and SA.

73.  This litigation is a mass tort pursued by MLG and others as a mass tort, and pursued by
MLG and BNC through class proceedings. MLG launched class proceedings in the Federal

Court and in the superior courts of each of the provinces from British Columbia to Quebec.

74. In Ontario, in addition to launching numerous individual actions, and representing
hundreds of individual claimants in negotiated settlements, MLG launched Residential School
class proceedings under in Kenneth Sparvier 05-CV-31052 and Joan Van Fleet 05-CV-
032248.

75.  Additionally, in other jurisdictions, as well as launching thousands of individual
actions, MLG launched class proceedings (both for First Nations and Metis Residential School
survivors) in:

Federal Court Court File No.

Kenneth Sparvier T 848-05
George Laliberte T 1620-05
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Quebec
Clifford House 550-06-000021-056
Morris Cardinal 500-06-000308-052
Manitoba
Christine Semple C1-05-01-43585
Saskatchewan
Kenneth Sparvier 816 of 2005
Norman Pauchey 002 of 2002
George Laliberte 1653 of 2005
Elizabeth Aubichon 2036 of 2005
Alberta
George Laliberte 0501-14216
Flora Northwest 0501-09167
British Columbia
Camble Quatell 1051875

76.  MLG initiated the Court application that resulted in the test case and case management
process in Alberta (as no prairie province at the time had class proceedings legislation). In
Saskatchewan, we filed a proposed class action with the Court on the first available day
(January 2, 2002) that the Class Actions Act came into force. Amongst other things, these two
provinces had the most Residential Schools and the most survivors. Subsequently, MLG
launched various actions. MLG launched two Residential School actions in the Federal Court.
(Those actions are to be discontinued in accordance with the SA.) In addition to launching
proceedings in the Federal Court, we launched class proceedings in the superior courts of each
province from Quebec to British Columbia. MLG was the first firm to launch class
proceedings in all provinces except Ontario, and in B.C., Saskatchewan, and Manitoba these

remain the only actions.

GOVERNMENT DELAY TACTICS

77.  This long journey has been a difficult battle for Residential School survivors (and
MLG). It became an obsession for many in our firm. MLG would not be bullied by the
government lawyers prepared to spend more money on their own lawyers and the defending

cases, than settlements would cost. This is relevant in the application before the Court because
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it contributed so significantly to the size of accounts for individual clients, and the work and

time that went into our class and representative action work.

78.  Residential School litigation has been very meaningful for MLG. The risks of the huge
personal and financial commitment undertaken by MLG cost the firm dearly. A former senior
partner of the firm, Ian Meikle, used to describe it as the “Residential School disaster”. Many
partners and lawyers left our firm because Residential School litigation created such a huge
financial drain for our firm as we continued to do huge amounts of work without payment and

run up disbursements which might not be recovered.

79.  Residential School litigation was complex as to facts and extremely complex as to the
law. During the years of assisting in the development of the law, MLG lawyers were dealing
with many nuances of vicarious liability, non-delegatable authority, limitation periods, Public
Officers’ Protection Act (a limitation issue that arose specifically and separately in
Saskatchewan and Manitoba), thin skull, crumbling skull, past and future earnings, causation,
comparative filial relationships, cultural genocide, deprivation, and inadequate education. All
of this related to psychological issues which are more difficult to prove both by way of
causation and damages as well as using experts in a wide variety of genre, psychologists,
occupational utilization experts, earnings loss and actuaries, and fitting the facts as they
emerged in individual caseé into this complex web of legal principles had a significant effect
upon MLG work. Third party claims added to the complexity. What was the role and
responsibility of the churches? In some cases, the government added First Nations as third
parties. There were many files where the government added half a dozen church organizations
and also added Gordon’s First Nation and other First Nations. All of these issues added to risk
and complexity. All of these issues required sophisticated legal analysis and a great deal of
work. 1.2.3.4.5.6.7.8.9.10. 11. 12.

80.  The government could afford to defend impractically. The government did defend

impractically. The government seemed happily to be engaged in spending sometimes hundreds
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of thousands of dollars defending a $20,000.00 or $40,000.00 individual claim. No individual

or corporation would do that.

81.  Additionally, the law was developing and changing. Our firm went to the Supreme
Court of Canada with H.L. but within Residential School litigation there was a whole series of
other cases that also went to the appellate level, many taken by MLG and some taken by other
firms, and we fought very complex and important cases, which laid down legal principles
which had broad forward application but were time consuming in their development and

pursuit. 2.3.4.6.7. 8.

82.  Partners’ meetings which I attended were often fixated on the legal issues we were
encountering with Residential School litigation (and the financial pressures which beset the
firm as a result). MLG lost many lawyers over the past ten years who became frustrated
working on Residential School files and the sense that the work would never be concluded.
MLG lost many lawyers who thought Residential School litigation was far to risky and
unlikely to succeed (and that the firm would not be financial sustainable as a result). In the
affidavit of Darcy Merkur, paragraph 37 states:

The residential school claims became “bet the firm” litigation for DP whose

practice since 1994 has come to focus primarily on residential school claims.

83.  As it is true for David Patterson (who I believe is a sole practitioner), so too did
Merchant Law Group “bet the firm” on residential school litigation, and the Patterson
comments have put succinctly the tremendous amount of risk taken by many firms in pursuing
residential school claims, and the unending amount of work and cost involved in prosecuting
these claims against the Federal Government. Merchant Law Group bet a large firm and has
been pursuing thousands of individual claims since 1997. In fact, the risk was so great and the
prospect for success thought by some to be so uncertain, that MLG has seen many lawyers and
even partners leave the firm, citing to me that their main reason for leaving the firm was

concerns over the financial risks of the residential school litigation that could bankrupt the
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firm, consume it financially, in terms of work load and lawyer productivity, and a stated view
that the litigation required would be unending and would consume endless hours, with little

prospect of succeeding in most cases.

84.  Pressure on people within the firm was very real. We are still under that kind of
pressure. 1 have frequently not known whether we will be able to make bi-monthly staff
payroll. We have often come close to having our telephones cut off and on one occasion did
have telephones cut off. We were always under pressure from our bank, for being unable to
make the interest payment for loans. Judging from what they said to me, and the pressures
they have placed on MLG, they were extremely concerned about MLG’s financial stability. We
did completely “bet the firm”. MLG undertook huge risks.

85.  The litigation experience for Residential School survivors was also extremely
frustrating for them. Being put through the unfair processes to which victims were cruelly
subjected by the Government of Canada was very hard on our clients. I have heard Tony
describe it as a process “like tearing an emotional bandage off a psychological wound”. Many
victims had tried to put the memories and wrongdoing of Residential School behind them.
Most victims had never talked with anybody about the sexual abuse to which they were
subjected. They had never even talked with family. The government in essence encouraged
them to come forward by apologizing and claiming that fair compensation would be paid.
Then our clients were subjected to repeated discoveries, written disclosures and interrogatories,
psychological assessments, and even the receipt of mail created pressures upon our clients

because this was a part of the semi-public disclosure.

86. When the Government of Canada decided that they would fight every case and
revictimize litigant after litigant, that was the wrong decision. It entrenched within the First

Nations community a sense of further betrayal.
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87.  The government, on more than one occasion prior to this settlement, presented
packages which were half-hearted and unsuccessful in ending Residential School litigation and
dealing fairly with victims. For example, on December 6, 2002, the government announced
that $1.7B was budgeted for an Alternative Dispute Resolution system. Most survivors did not
opted for that process because of the limits on payouts and the structural weaknesses of the
ADR program as defined by the government (although the ADR adjudicators and people

involved were fair).

88.  The question remains, “What brought the government to negotiation the settlement
which is now before the court?” In April, 2005, H.L. was decided on appeal from the Court of
Appeal of Saskatchewan (where the Appellate Court had reduced H.L.’s damages to about
$120,000.00), with the Supreme Court of Canada largely restoring a trial award. The Trial
Judge had awarded H.L. a total of $80,000.00 in non-pecuniary damages, $296,527.00 in
pecuniary damages, and $30,665.00 in estimated pre-judgment interest, an award the Supreme
Court upheld, although directing recalculations which would moderately reduce the size of the
award. H. L. was a case of moderate sexual abuse but confirmed you can get damages for loss
of earnings flowing from your abuse in Residential School. Hence, for all moderate to serious
cases from then on, the government could have found themselves facing $250,000.00 or more

in damages.

89. In Cloud (a BNC case), the Ontario Court of Appeal held that the students at the
Mohawk Institute were entitled to move forward collectively in a class action. The Supreme
Court of Canada refused leave to appeal on Cloud a few weeks after rendering their decision in
H L. The government announced the appointment of Frank Iacobucci, Q.C., within a month of

these two decisions by the Supreme Court.

90. And finally, National Chief Phil Fontaine of the AFN is an extremely effective

advocate for fairness and justice, and his influence on the Prime Minister was significant, for
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which Chief Fontaine should be commended for his decades of work regarding this injustice.

National Chief Phil Fontaine had profound impact in these negotiations.

91.  The combination of these factors, with the weight of ongoing litigation (much of it
being pressed forward by MLG), lead to the settlement before this Honourable Court.

92. I make this affidavit for no improper purpose.

SWORN BEFORE ME at Municipality of
Kincardine, in the Province of Ontario,
this _ ¢ 7* day of August, 2006.

Z? _—
A COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS in and

for the Province of Ontario;

My Commission expires:
bhsery T CRCC IDN
Brwrsgra $ JeLie,7 R

N’ N N N N’

Donald I. M. Outerbridge




This is Exhibit ‘_ﬁ,‘ as referred fo in

the affidavit of_Des .5 DEE

swom bafore me this_&*i__day of
AgesT AD. 2006

—
A TonimiSsioner for Oaths
in 2nd jor
the Province of Ontarfo
Being a Solicitor
Fraveny 5 (Picoppa

/ff)‘dfd.’,a e l -):u €172

4K

g




Six thousand lawsuits over residential schools threasen to bankrupt

Canada’s Churches and clog up the court system for years.

At the centre of the-fight is a Regina lawyer named Tony Merchant.

Is this a righteous battle or a game of brinksmanship?

IN 1969, WHILE TAKING A BREAK
from upiversicy and seeking adven-
ture, [ got myself shipped norch to
the icy shores of Hudson Bay, w0
Chucchill, Manitoba, where I would
became a dormitory supervisor, one
of 2 dozen, at che Churchill Voca-
vional Centre. It was 2 residential
school run by che federal govern~
menc. The students were not young
children, bur teenagers, Inuir, from
sectléments across the eastern Arctic,
chere to take mostly trades training
with a bit of academic upgrading

_theown in. [ was twenty, not much

older than the oldest students, and
was put in charge of a dormirory of
the youngest boys. Unable to pro-
nounce my name, they cailed me
“Mr. Krunch.”

I believe we handled our job in
a kindly way. Afcer school che boys
would gacher in their four-bed
rooms and jabber away in Inukeicuc,
No one was sceapped or otherwise
punished for this. The boys joked
abour the govesnment-imuve cloth-
ing, referring to the thick-soled
footwear they'd been given as “ele-
phant shoes.” Friday night was

Photrographs by Derek Shaptor

clean-the-dorms nighe, a binge
everybody enteced into furiously.
When the cleaning was done, a
movie was shown in the gym during
which a commitree of the supervi-
sors checked the dorms for dust.
The inhabitants of the one judged
cleanest were rewarded with extra
juice ac bedtime. The school was an
institucion, to be sure, but one run,
by and large, with good intentions.

There was one thing, though, I
won't forget. Very early in my scint,
I acrived ac breakfast one moming
0 note the absence of the resid

By Larry Krotz

wouldn't be ruaning it any longer.

This, everyone considered, was
the end of it. Bur over the years, I
often wondered if it really would be.

WHEN | FIRST WALK INTO TONY
Metchane's office in Regine, I don't
see him zc all. He's hidden behind
a stack of files high enough you
could execute an Olympic dive from
it. I've been invited o sit in on a
conference with a group of his asso-
ciates. The single chair available
places me where I can only hear his
wetl-modulated voice and stare at

administrator, a man in his fifties.
He was my boss; he had met me at
the plane, given me my tour of the
school, assigned me my job. In bis
stead, that moroing, was the school
principal, who informed us tersely
that our boss had been sent away
on the plane the nighe before. My
co-workers looked at one anocher
knowingly, and appeared relieved.
I'd been chere less than two weeks
and dida't bave a ciue. The man
had run a “special® dorm where
the selected “brighter” boys had
more room and more privileges. He

thac pile of files, (I will never see
Tony Merchane without files; even
2 Sunday moring cup of coffee at
his home happens in a sunroom
wich case files lictering the floor.)
But even though twenty minutes
pass before } actually see him, the
office reveals 2 lot about Aothony
Merchant. 1 tura to the walls by
the door. Along with the requisite
degrees and bar memberships is a
gallery of photographs. Jean Chré-
tien. Joho Turner. “To Tony Merchant
with all good wishes, Pierre Ellioct
Trudeau, 1973.” A photograph of >
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Only a third of Merchant’s cases are people claiming sexual abuse. They’re the easy ones, if you will.

After that, things get murky

the 1964 Saskatchewan Liberal
caucus, led by the then premier
Ross Thatcher, bas one woman
among che men, Mzs. S. (Sally) Mer-
chane, Tony's mother. Tony Mer-
chane is a fifth-generation lawyer
and a third-generation policician.
Becween 1975, when he was thirty,
and 1979, he was a Liberal member
of che Saskatchewsn legislature. In
1979, the year Joe Clark defeared
Trudeau, he was an unsuccessful
fedecsl candidare.

Bu if Tony Merchant's time was-
o't then, pethaps ic's now. He has
become the biggest player in the
biggest set of lawsuits in Canadian
history. Six thousand native people
who wenc to resideorial schools -
like the one I worked at in Chur-
chill — have levied suics agsinst che
federal government and Canada’s
Churches for mistreatment they
claind happened when they were
childeen. The oumber will noz re-
main static; a government spokes-
man tells me the total is growing by
twenty & week, Church hierarchies
are panicking aboue bankruptcy;
the government is lining up its
defences. But there is more: of che
6,000 cases, more than half are
being broughe by a single law
firm, the Merchant Isw Group of
Regina, Saskatoon, Calgary, Ed-
monton, Vancouver, Yorkton, and
Winnipeg. Tony Merchant is on a
white charger, carrying che lance of
what could prove ro be a huge his-
torical reckoning. ]

He is not doing this alone; the
Merchant Law Group is made up of
forzy-eight lawyers. Buc you don't
:ake on over 3,000 cases without
Irawing some attention. A year ago
:he Law Society of Saskatchewan
dussed a ser of comprehensive cules,
governing how lawyers market
egal secvices to potential cliencs
who might be in 2 vulnerable or
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“weakencd scate.” Though some
thought the measuce was aimed at
Merchant, Allan Snell, co-dicector
of sdministracion, denies chis.

“I'm a ted irricated at the reaceion
of the profession,” Merchant says.
He protests that what he has under-
taken is an educational exercise; the
Law Sociery, he says, “ought to be
proud of che fact that here are chou-
sands of people with a fairly real
entitlement to compensation, who
didn’t know they had thet entitle-
ment. These people live in remote
aress and by and large, they're not
reading The Globe and Mail or the
Nasional Poss.” He contrasts his
clients with the majoricy of Cans-
dians who, should they suffer even
a car accident, know they have
the right to sue. His clients ace less
awate of their rights, he says, and, in
the cases at hand, “were conditioned
20 keep their srories secret and con-
sider them an embacrassment.”

A HUNDRED AND TWENTY YEARS
3go, after Confedenstion, the pas-
sage of the Indian Ace, and chessign-
ing of most of the western teeaties,
the Government of Canada set upa

idential-school sy for the
education of Indian children, as
they were called then. It contacted
with the Roman Catholic, Angli-
can, Methodist, and Presbyterian
Churches (these lacter two joined in
1925 to form the United Church) to
staff and run the schools and resi-
dences, someching the Churches
seemed happy to uadertake as mis-
sionary ventures. In their heyday,
che 1930s, there were about eighty
of these schools, mostly in western
Canada,. They remsined in operation
until the 1980s, though by 1569,
Church sesponsibitities had passed
back ro the government. Ac their
best, they provided basic schooling
to Firsc Nacions people who lived

in remote commuaities 2nd would-
o't have otherwise teceived ic. They
gave an education to people who
could chen go on and make sub-
stantial concribucions in many areas
of Canadian life. But according to
many who have studied residential
schools or lived through them, they
were also 2 vehicle for assimilarion,
and the conclusions of the Royal
Commission on Aboriginal Peoples
(1996) and of academics like Pro-
fessor John Milloy, whose book on
residential schools is citled A Na-
tional Crims, are scathing. By sep-
aracing children from their par-
ents, their commauaities, and theic
native languages, the residencial
schools, they charge, atternpted to
“kill the Indian in the child.” Ac
their very worst, the schools made
lonely childten vulnerable to phys-
ical and sexual abuse at the hands
of the very people who were sup-
posed to be looking after chem:
teachers, priests, principals, nuas,
and dormitoty supervisors. Not all,
buc far too maay, it seems.
Though the residential schools
were pretty much phased our rwenry-
five years ago, there are still 105,000
First Nations people who speat
pares or all of their early lives in
them. Anecdocal evidence of abuse
has been around for 2 long time, but
it was not until che eatly 1990s that
the firse verifiable stories emerged.
A handful of criminal chacges were
laid, and 2 aumber of now elderly
people, including a dormitory su-
pervisor who'd worked at the United
Church’s ‘Alberni School on Van-
couver Island, a former principal
of the Anglican Church’s school on
the Gordon Reserve in Saskatch-
ewan, and eight employees of vari-

gus Cacholic-rua schools, were con-

- victed. There have been apologies

from the Churches and the federcal
government, but the matter hasn'e
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gone away. The criminal cases
opened the floodgates for the civil
suits now being launched. R

Merchant claims he goc his firse
residential-school clients because
he'd aiready acced for First Nations
in other ways. As the firm began
raking on these cases, the numbers
grew chrough word of mouth. “We
got the reputation that we were ag-
gressive, and people started seeking
us out,” Merchant says. The clients
are predominantly from che four
westemn provinces, with a few from
the rest of Canada, and some who've
since moved to the U.S. “Wealso ger
clients because, unlike some ocher
firms, we've chosen to be available
twenty-four hours a day.” Merchanc
tells me chis after explaining to
someone on the phone that no, he
can't loaa the person money against
his lawsuit to buy a truck.

Still, the decision to ke on 5o
many clients has been traumatic.
Since virtually all che work is con-
tingency — 30 pexcent of the awards
when they win — Merchane is gam-
bling his firm. It wasa't a slam
dunk; when he decided to push
ahead, six of his associates lefc. *If
the public chinks that as lawyers
we'te going to make a Jot of money
on this,” he ssgues, “I have to say
that 2 quarter of my parenership
didn’t agree.” He stuck with the de-
cisio, 2nd the work now consumes
bim. Sixty percent of Meechant's
time aad energy goes into the cases
and, with only 2 couple of settle-
ments to date, che recurns have been
sparse. His income from the prac-
tice of law last year, he says, was
$45,000. In 1996, handling a2 jor
of civil litigation, including corpo-
rate- and family-law matrers, it
nad been ten times that. Yer he still
has to pay the overhead; he main-
tains a big office and has six secre-
taries working just for him.



PREVIOUS PAGE: TONY MERCHANT'S OFFICE IN REGINA;

THIS PAGE, RESIDENTIAL-SCHOOL LIFE: (TOP TO BOTTOM) HOCKEY AT -

PELICAN SCHOOL, SIQUX LOOKOUT, ONTARIO; GIRLS AT ST. JOBN'S
RESIDENTIAL SCHOOL, CHAPLEAU, ONTARIO; CLASSROOM AT OLD SUN
(BLACKFOOT) SCHOOL, GLEICHEN, ALBERTA; BOYS AT THE SAME
SCHOOL. ALL PHOTOGRAPHS WERE TAKEN BY ANGLICAN MISSIONARIES.
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REGINA, ON A MID-APRIL SUNDAY
morniag. I'm to meet Mel George
sud William Key ar 2 restaurant
on 13th Avenue. The wind, which
never quits blowing across the
prairies, is at least no longer frigid.
As I approach [ see Mel, whom I've
mer once before, loping in a big,
confused circle. He waves his long
arms in dismay. “The place isa't here
snymore,” he says. Mel, who is
forty-five, bas jusc goe out of jail. He
and William, who is older, ffty-
seven, are your proverbial rounders.

“Well, lec's go somewhese else,”
1 suggest. There's a buffet in 2 strip
mall across the street. Mel and
William look ac one another hesi-
rancly. It looks kind of fancy.

“As long as they'll let us in,” says
Mel. “They might be prejudiced.”

1 pause ro make suce I'm heasing
this, then tell them they shouldn't
worry. Buc they do. In nearby Saska-
toon, two policeraen have just been
charged with unlawful confinement
and assault after mllegedly driving
a native man co the edge of town
and letting him freeze, Feelings ate
cunning high on both sides.

When we go in, the waitress is
friendly, cakes s 10 a table near the
sack, and pours coffee. Orher cus-
omers, mostly people who've been
0 church and are buroned up in
:heir Sunday bese, pay us litcle heed.
3ut I can well that even when there
s nothing to fear, Mel and William
e used to expecting che worst. In
ne way or another, they chink sbout
his all the time. That, and their
‘haotic lives. Mel, though just out
o jail, still faces some unresolved
notor-vehicle offences. How many?
About forry.” He bas fve kids and
s in the midst of a custody fighr;
iis wife has problems with drugs,
nd Children'’s Aid bas put their
hildren in foscer homes. For his
met, Wiltiam has a badly swollen
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finger on his left hand; he can hardly
manage his knife and fork. A week
eaclier he'd gone to his daugheer's
house and found a party in progress.
He got angry, hic his son-in-law, and
broke his band.

We load up from the buffet cable.
Around us the chutch people tuck
inzo cheir chicken wings and po-
cato selad. They smile obligingly.
Through it all, howeves, these is
something they can't know. Mel
and William both spent their child-
hoods at the Gordon Residential
School in central Saskatchewan. Both
have ugly memories from those days,
and both now blame the fesidential
school for theix troubles. So they are
suing. William is going after the

. federal govecnment, which financed

the school, tbe Anglican Church,
which ran ic, and one school em-
ployee. Their lawsuits are part
of the §,000. If they win, the nice
folks eating their chicken wings —
cither as parishioners or as taxpayers
-~ will be expected o pay.

SWILLIAM'S EYES TURN MOIST. WHEN
he was cleven, in 1953, his facher
died. His widowed mother placed
him in the residence of the neacby
Anglican school he'd already been
atcending as a day studenc. There
wete six big dormitories — three for
boys and three for girls — accom-
modating perhaps 180 childeen. In
the docms, cthey were separated by
age. In William’s docm, in order ro
counter bedwetcing, the supervisors
would waken the boys thronghout
the night and take them co che bath-
room. For some of the supervisors,
William says (and for some of the
boys), the rituat didnt end there.
‘Two of che men, he claims, would
steer boys, including him, into their
own rooms afrer the bachroam drill.

“You never wanted to say Ro to
those people,” he says. “There'd be >
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At their worst, the residential schools made lonely children vuinerable to abuse at the hands of the ver

trouble for you the next day.” But
over che years he ended up paying
an altogether different price. “For
foscy years I denied. People asked
sbout the residencial school and I'd
tell them it was okay, but I had to
look away; I knew I was lying. I'm
not stable, I can’c stay in one place.
I drank for cwency-six years.” He
claims he was never able to bug his
children. “I always had to see where
my hands were, and I was never
able to stand anybody coming up
behind me.” |

‘Then, one day years later, when
be was watching television, William
saw one of the men he says molested
him. “He was rectiving an award
from the government for working
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with Indian children. He was get-
f£ing 2 grant o Start 8 Street program
in Saskatoon. I vold my wife, ‘Thar's
one of the guys who abused me.” "
William filed bis lawsuit.

But if Williem's story and rea-
soning are scraighcforward, Mel's ace
not. “When this whole thing [resi-
dencial-school lawsnits] was com-
ing out, I chought ic was phony-
baloney,” says Mel, who wenr to the
same school as William fifteen years
lster. “My brocher told me to see
shis lawyee so [ went along with it
But then Mel got to thinking abont
his life — problems with women,
problems with che law (one of his
convictions, fifteen years ago, was
for sexuzl assanlt) — and he ceased

to be skeptical. He switched from
his original lawyer to Merchanc. He
recalled how a principal, who wes
later convicted of sexually asssule-
ing other boys, introduced him
marijuana. He decided to blame
the school for his life. "How else
could it have happened? I speat
all my time there, away from my
‘facher. I must have learned things
cheze,” he reasons.

Mel'’s, not William's, is the kind
of case that will test where all of
this will go. Oanly ¢ third of Mer-
chant's cases are people claiming
sexual abuse. They're the easy ones,
if you will. After that, chings get
marky. It's one thing ro make 2
claim because something the whole

of society considers reprehensible
happened to yon. But, as I find when
I visit more of Merchanc's clients
around Saskacchewan, chere are
broader questions: 'Whac if your

lawsuir is about feeling bad be-

cause you were separated fram your
parents, because you lost your lan-
guage, because yon weren't per-
rirted to learn and pracrise your
culcure? Will the courts deem such
chings worchy of cedress? Will che.
lasger Canadian community be
symparheric?

Yet this is where Merchane is
placing his bers, and these ate the
arguments for which he's commiz-
ted o fighc. “A number of lawyers
skim off che sexual-abuse cases,” he



veople who were supposed to be looking after them: teachers, priests, principals, nuns, dovm supervisors

says. “They're che proven, simple
commodity.” A handful of these
have been sercled with awards in
the $100,000 to $300,000 range.
One of Merchanc's clients won such
a judgment in Saskatchewao last
year; another judgment in Lytcon,
B.C., prompted the Cariboo Dio-
cese of the Anglican Church to
contemplace declaring bankruptcy.
Buc che ones o watch will be the
big glut of cases still to come, in
which the grievances are less dra-
maric and Jess easily nailed down.
“If press reports sre true, we have
half the cases in Canada,” Merchant
says, “because we'te interested in
all the issues. We have chat reputa-
tion wich First Nations people.”
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(FROM LEFT) WI11AM KEY AND MEL GEORGE; ROSABEILE MD ANDREW GORDON; ALMA POITRAS

ONE SUNNY MORNING I TAKE OFF
scross the broad Jandscape of Sas-
karchewan. For all his years in che
province, including those years in
politics, Toay Merchanr tells me he
has been to only four Indian ce-
secves; his low-slung black Jaguar
has nor negotiated those rough
toads. At first I find chis sstonish-
ing, bur in Saskstchewan, reserves
are often isolated, out-of-the-way
places that few people visic. On 2
bectic day of driving ll manage o
visic a5 many ceserves as Tony Mer-
chant has in his entire life. I'm off
to meet more of his clients.

At Pasqus, on the Jip of che beau-
tiful Qu'Appelle Valley, I go first ro
see Andrew Gordon. A feisty nona-

genarian, Andrew Geordon went to
the Oblate-run Qu'Appelle XIndus-
trial School. It was eighty years ago,
buc his memories of the place still
fill hirn with fucy. He describes it as
a Dickensian world where the whole
student body was forced to warch as
punishments were meted out to their
fellows. When boys ran away, @ fre-
quent occusrence, they were whipped
mercilessly. Andrew describes being
lashed when he was fourceen years
old. He points to his head. One of
the saaff, he alleges, kicked him in
the head 20d he's hed headaches
ever siace — for sevency-five years.
‘Whear's intetesting about my visit
with Aadrew Gordon is that while
we talk, his wife, Rosabelle, who

sits 2cross the room, will interrupt
every anécdote of nasciness to sey
chat it wasn't like that for her. Ros-
abelle’s expetiences were entirely
differenc and, it seems, encitely pos-
itive. She weat to & United Church
school at Round Lake and later be-
came the first erained native nurse
in westera Caneda.

Then I move on to Peepeekisis, a
sprawling patch of prairie and- buf-
falo wallow about an bour northeasc
of Regins where, in 2 small beige-
and-brown house at the end of a
dusty laneway, 1 meet Alma and
George Poiteas. They have mised six
children, and Alma_ whe is fifey-four,
teaches in che local school. George,
who was also a teacher, is now >
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The Churches agonize about how much they might be expected o pay. They wonder why their 4
spologies and promises to help haven’t been enough

etired. Alma pours a cup of coffee
wnd confirms thac, yes, she has filed
1lawsuit. Then she te}ls me her scory.

When she was seven years old, in
t952, her parents were forced co
slace her in grade one at St. An-
thony's Indian Residential School at
Jnion Lake, near the Alberta bor-
der: The residence was run by nuas.
Once, to punish her for having lefe
he school grounds without permis-
iion, Alma goc a sctapping and had
aer hair cut off. Another time, she
watched her brother (five of her
rwelve siblings wece ac the school
when she was there) ger kicked by
2 male teacher in order to chastise
bim for reading a camic book after
the bell had rung. “I cemember I felc
very hure from chat,” she says. Yet
another time, as summer vacation
approached, one of the sisters an-
nounced that Alma, who was chen
fourceen, ought o spend the sum-
mer, not back with her family, buc
working for the nun's brother. Alma
claimns that she went off to take the
job and her parencs were never cold.

“Were you evet sexually abused?”
[ask.

Alma surprises me by saying yes,
but then she immediately clacifies
that it dida’t happen ar the school.
Iask if anybody was sexually abused
by staff ac che school. She answers,
“Noc that I know.”

When I ask Alma why she is
suing, she pauses for a moment,
fingering the memory of her expe-
tiences like a stone in che pocker.
What bas provoked a desire in her
for redress is something nebulous,
yet resl, 2 sense of loneliness, of
being a stranger in the world. She
resches for two phocos of eldecly
women in kerchiefs, her mother and
George's mother. “It’s like they stole
our parents away,” she says. Behind
her is a photograph of her own chil-
dren, now grown. For many yeats
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Alma and George both bactled al-
coholism, and thac'’s whac theirchil-
dren had o put up wich. She blames
the residential schools.

AS TRAGIC AND POIGNANT AND
awful as ic all is, whar [ find fasci-
nating is how well and how pre-
dictably all involved are playing
their roles, as if sticking to an as-
signed scripc. There are no surprises.
The Churches agonize about how
rmuch they might be expected co pay,
while wondering why their apolo-
gies and promises to help in the heal-
ing haven't been enough. The gov-
eramenc prevaricates while trying to
appear concerned. The Jawyers (on
both sides) take the philosophical
high ground, but their merers are
running. The native people come on-
stage yet again as the victims.

There ace also the accompanying
questions. How broadly will the
courts expand interpretations of
abuse and claims to damages? Will
awards be restriceed to people who
suffered demonstrably at the hands
of a few bad dpples within an oth-
erwise mericorions system? Or will
the system icself be judged so flawed
that anybody who entered it de-
serves compensation? Will chis
remain the respoosibility of che
Churches, or will the goveramear
take them off the hook? The ancil-
lary questions ate likewise incrigu-
ing. Is money the best solution? The
government has already made a
$350-million "healing fund” avail-
able for programs, but nox for indi-
vidual awards. What will happen to
impoverished communities already
plagued with social problems if 2
few people within them win large
financial setclements and others re-
main wich noching?

Mezchane’s main complaing is |

about the slowness wich which
things are moving. This wouldn’c

be the case if it were one of the
banks, or Tmns-Canada Pipelines,
he says. He blames members of his
own profession. “From the defence
side I've never seen anyrhing go
wrong 0 desperately in relation co
lawyers.” He returos from a case-
management conference where 2
judge gathered all the fawyers in-
volved to get agreement on a sched-
ule to proceed, The conference lasted
three hours; four lawyers were thece
for che federal government, one
for the Anglican Church, one for
the QOblates, and Merchant and a
partner, Patrick Alberts, foc their
complainants. No agreement was
reached. "From the government’s
side,” Mercbant complains, “they
were going to speed chings up. So
their answer was to hire a whole
bunch of additional lawyets. Of
course: What do lawyers do besc?
They slow rhings down.”

The beginning of the slowness, it
oughc robe acknowledged, is is the
strategy of the lawyers placing the
suits, lawyers Jike Tony Merchant.
The public assumes these ace class
actions; with only a couple of ex-
ceptions they are not. They are filed
by individual people wich individ-
usal grievances, and Merchant be~
lieves they should be dealt wich in-
dividually. Bue 6,000 individual
cases make for a loc of potential
couct ceaffic. Alberts, British Co-
lumbis, and Saskarchewan are ail
wking defendants and complaia-
2nes through 2 precrizl process, like
the case-management meeting in
Regina. The idea is to gec groups of
test cases everyone agees can pro-

ceed to trial and, on the basis of the

ourcome, go abead with the re-
snainder or find ways ro setcle out of
court. This "inventing of the wheel,”
as one of Merchant's lawyers, Tim
Turple, terms it, is slow. The first
actual trials are not expecred until

face this yesr ax the very earliesc, and
probably not until 2001.

The most poignant issue of us-
gency is che age of some of the com-
plai Andrew Gordon is almost
ninecy. Sixceen of Merchant's clients
have died in the past two years wich-
out cheir suits being heard.

IF THE CANADIAN GOVERNMENT
has any intention of being obscre- -
perous, there is no hint of it in the
demeanour and presenation of

" Shawn Tupper, who has been direc-

tor of the federal government's Res-
idenriat Schools Unic since 1996,
when ic was sec up. The Unic em-
ploys thirty-two people to deal with
the issue and shepherd ic along.
In our conversarion he immedi-
ately uses the'word “survivor” when
teferring to those native people
who went 10 residential schools. 1
think this a considerable linguisric
concession co make tight off the
bat. On the desk in front of him,
like a little charter of righes, lies 2
“Staternent of Reconciliation” is-
sued by che government in 1998 to
signify that its incentions are gen-
tle and kind, thac it feels everyone's
pain. “We're pot into deny, deny,
deny,” says Tupper, "but resolve, re-
solve, resolve.”

He gecs rough, though, when
he talks abour the nacure of the
claims. The government intends to
be serict about their validity. By
this he meaas char che government
does not want to do "a Novs Sco-
tia,” where the provincial govern-
mene, caughe receatly by allega-
tions of abuse at the Shelburne
School for Boys, is thought to have
paid out far too muth, far too eas-
ily, to far too many complzinancs.
And he is tough on the Churches:
“They bave to acceprt cheir parc and
be prepared to pay.”

The Churches, nesdless to say, are



in 2 panic. The Anglican Church in
Canada, its auditors have told it,
zould be one year away from bank-
ruptcy. The United Church has bud-
geted $3 million a year for cthe fore-
seeable futuce to fight and pay for
residential-school lawsuics. It em-
ploys a full-time residencial-schools
-oordinator, the Reverend Brian
Thorpe, who ties to pur a hopeful
;pin on things by saying, “This can
e the destruction of the Church, oc
1 can lead o renewed life.” For the
aext few years, Thorpe acknow]-
xdges, the lawsuits are going to
3¢ “an institutional fact of life for
:he Church.” The stalwarts of the
hurches, says Thotpe, che people
¥ho sit in the pews, are not pan-
cking but are bewildered and baf-
ied. ‘They wonder what their ce-
iponsibilities should be for che ac-
iions of a previous generation.”

(ONY MERCHANT SAYS HE IS TRY-
ng to avoid actually suing the
“hurches: “They don’t have any
noney and all chey do is whine and
3y they're sorry.” It’s not crue thar
hey don't have money, buc it's
feen, he believes, hard o get at.
A practising Cacholic, Merchant
nakes the observation chat che
loman Catholic Church dida't get
o be worth its maay billions by
surting ic all in one por. Dioceses
nd orders and 5o on are ali legally
eparate ffom onc snother, making
he Catholic Church, in this case,
#58 vulnerable than the Anglican or
Jnited Churches, esch of which is

single legal eatity. (None of che
“hurch institutions appear able ro
ely on insurance policies to pay
heir way in this.) You get rhe sense,
hough, chat Merchane considers
wsuits against Churches o be bad
ublic relations. “We don't want to
e seen as causing che Churches to
o bankeupt.” His real target is the
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TONY MERCHANT IN TORONTO -
LAST MONTH: "WE DON'T WANT
TO BE SEEN AS CAUSING THE

CHURCHES TO GO BANKRUPT™

federal government, Given that it
contracted with the Chuechestorun -
the schools, he likens the relation- |
ship becween the cwo institutionsto
that berween & principal and a
school board, “Something happens,
do you sue the principal or do you
sue the school board?” In some in-
stances, however, the government
bas involved the Churches as a third
party, even in cases where che
Churches were not named in the
initial lawsuits. "It's happened to
the Anglicans and it's happened a
couple of rimes co us,” says Thorpe,
admirting that the Churches expect
mote of this and acknowledging
that ic seerns like dirty pool on the
government's part,

HOW WILL THIS TURN OUT? WILL
Mercbanc’s gamble, that the question
of abuse wili be broadly incerprered,
pay off? Is he the heroic champion of
a whole new swach of nacive justice,
or a cagey manipulator who'll make
millions oace his c issions axe
taken off the settlemencs? Everyone
tatks abour che importance of the
courts. But 6,000 cases and count-
ing? Will chis, in the end, require noc
alegal buta political solution? Some-
thing not from the conrcs, but from
che federsl cabiner?

Merchanc insists thac these are
individual people with individual
grievances and chat the courts are
the approptiate recourse. Buc one
wonders: zll chose Liberal pho-
rographs on the walls of his office.
Might he have some scoacegy for a
huge policical negotiation in the
back of his mind? “First Nations
people, by and large, vote Liberal,”
he tells me. “They have good mem-
ories of the time when Jean Chré-
tien was miniscer of Indian Affairs.
They generally have faith that the
government here will evenruelly
do the right thing." w
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: Killing the indian: Canada’s indian Residential Schools

60 Minutes II: Aired Internationally on CBS o Tuesday, May 8, 2001.

Compled by F.-G. Vaughn-Marshall from CBS sc-een shus and Clossd Caption siream,

>> Bob Simon: A century ago, the Government of Canada set up a system of boarding
schools to educate Indian children. e
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Canada's biggest churches were paid to run the schools.

But the schools were really an exercise in social engineering.

The goal was to eradicate Indian culture from the Canadian nation, The Canadian
government said it hoped the residential schools would tum the "savage child” into a
"civilized adult"; or, as one Canadian official put it, "kill the Indian in the child."
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Today, those schools are closed, but the bifter memorics are very much alive. And
thousands of Indian kids who are not kids anymore are taking legal action which coyld
actually wipe out some of Canada’s most important churches. But thet's the end of the
story. First, the beginning. In the 18&0s, Canada set up the schools, took Indian children
away from their families, and taught them a new way of life. When they got to the
schools, their hair was chapped off, they were put it uniforms, and they were not allowed
to speak their native language, which was often the only language they knew. In fact, the
residential schools weren't really schools as much a3 processing plants. Indian kids went
in one end, little Canadians came out the other. It was not a gentle process.
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Today, those schools are closed, but the bitter memeories are very much alive, And
thousands of Indian kids who are not kids anymore arc taking legal action which could
actually wipe out some of Canada’s most important churches. But that's the end of the
story. First, the beginning. In the 1880s, Canada set up the schools, tock Indian children
away from their families, and taught them a new way of life. When they got to the
schools, their hair was chopped off, they were put in uniforms, and they were not allowed
to speak their native language, which was often the only Junguage they knew. In faot, the
residential schools weren't really schools as much as processing plants. Indian kids went
in one end, little Canadians came out the other, It was not a gentle process.
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Richard Redman:

>> Richard Redman: The people that were there were going to get the Indian out of you
by hool or by crook. If it meant beating the living hell out of you, they were going to do
it.

>> Simon: And in most of the cases, they succeeded, didn't they?

>> Redman: A lot of cases they did, yeah.

>> Simon: Richard Redman is an alumnus, or, rather, a survivor of the Lebret school,
where he spent cight years under the tutclage of catholic nuns and priests. He's one of

hundreds of thousands of Indian kids who went to the schools. The dormitories were
substandard, the food and clothing were miserable, and the teaching staff not much better.
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>> Rcdmgm 1 went there for an education. Unfortunately, they had a different idea.

>> Simon: The idea at Lebret and most of the other schools was to tcach Indian kids how
to become scamstresses, carpenters, laundry workers-- tredes they presumably could use
in later life. Not much reading, writing, or arithmetic; that was for white kids.



Prarai 1. G, Vakghtn Marsusll, Attervey oL LW To) Q6 £, F. A, HITLOSNT, MercEan: Law Greap - Repisa

>> Simon: Did you get a good education?
>> Redman: I gottoughmcd)up.

>> Simon: How did they toughen you up?
>> Redman: You lcarned to take a beating,

>> Simon: Were you beaten a ot?
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>> Redman: Yeah.

>> Simon: The kids were beaten in public and everyone knew about it, but other things
happened in private, behind closed doors-- dark secrets which no one talked about for
decades. Did you have to survive sexual abuse as well?

>> Redman: I suppose you could say that. But at six years old, what do you know about
sexual abuse? You know, where the authorities lies and when the authority tells you to do
sornething, or the authority comes and does something'to you that you don't understand,
you learn to, like anything clse, take it and keep on, keep on going until the next time.

>> Simon’ And there always was a next time. The schools were well placed for keeping
seorets; Most wére in remote comners of the Canadian vastness; desolate prairics where
it's hard to tcll where the winter sky ends and whers the snow-covered fields begin. The
-schools were so isolated that the outside world hardly took notice of their existence, and”
100k no notice at all of what went on inside. Lebret, the town where Richard Redman
went 10 school, is on & lake that's frozen solid nmch of the year. The church is still
standing, but most of the school has been tom down. What's this building there right
behing you?

>> Redman: That's the gymnasium. {t's all that's left of the school. One of the
punishments that was doled out was that you had to get a toothbrush and serub-the
cement floor on the weekend.

>> Simon: Scrub the cement floor with a toothbrush.
. >>Redman: Yeah,

>> Simon: Radman left the place 40 years
2go, but his memories are as fresh as the
snow.

' >>Redman: Couple of guys, one of them
stole a quarter or a dime and it was found out
at the count that this coin was missing. The
prisst came down and they called the guy up
that had taken his money. So he tekes off his
cross and put it down; his ring, puts it down;
; his watch and then his collar, and puts it
down. And 2l of us are sitting around, and
he says, “this is what happcns when you steal." And he reaches into his pocket and he
pulls out a lighter not unlike this one. And he gots the senior boys to hold this guy's hand,
and then he lights it. And he says, "this is what happens when you steal.” And he burns
the guy's fingers,
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Tony Merchant:

. Tony Mercham: That physical cruelty became
the cover for sexual oruelty, and, of course, it
was & ferrible atmosphere in which to run any
sort of an education.

>> Simen: Tony Merchant has heard the horror
stories. He's a lawyer who represents Richard
Redman and 4,000 others who attended the
schoois. But the extreme physical and sexual
abuse, did it just happen re and there, a few
bad apples?

>> Simon: Tony Mecrchant has heard the horror stories. He's a lawyer who represents
Richard Redman and 4,000 others who attended the schools. But the extreme physical
and sexual abuse, did it just happen re and there, a few bad apples?

>> Merchaat: You say a few bad apples? No. It really became bad barrels. Bad apples
accumulated, and it was a system that just kept coming unstuck and never got corrected.

>% Simon: One of the most notorious bad barrels was the «Jordon school in
Saskatchewan, run by the Anglican Church. Ben Pratt was a student there.

Ben Pratt:

>3 Pratt: And I wasn't there more than six months and the sexual sbuse started. I came
out of schoo] with a grade three education. I can't read or write.

>> Simon: You can't read or write?

>> Pratt: No. The whole time i was at the school, the sexual abuse that I went through, I
wanted to t¢ll someone what was happening. I was afraid and i was ashamed and T was
scared.

>> Simon: More than 200 of Pratt’s fellow students say they, too, were sexually abused
at the Gordon school, many by William Starr, who was the school principal for niore than
15 years.

rage 1= ue

00402



Trorpi 1. O. Vasgha M w3naii, £3orw 'y ot haw Ter QG K. £. A, Merchoat, Werchast Law Qrewp - Neginr Date (8417 11 1HRSI87 TIrRe: $lasma2 P LU TRLNTR Y

William Starr
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Starr was later convicted of scxually assaulting ten students. He admitted to molesting
dozens more. The government began closing the schools in the 1970s, and the stories,
that hundreds thousands of children had been abused for a hundred years staried coming
10 the surface. In 1996, 2 povernment commission reported that sexuzl abuse was
"pervasive," that the kids were so poorly cared for that an "incalculable number® had died
from tuberculosis and other diseases. The reaction was swift from both church and state.

>> Merchant: The prime minister of Canads has apologized. The Pope has apologized.
The Archbishop of Canterbury has apologized. The head of the United Church Synod of
Canada has apologized-- very legitimate clajms that everybody recognizes things went
horribly, horribly wrong.

| =...the deepest secret of all - the
b pervasive sexiud abise of D
| chikdren.”

°...the megghoet, ot anub death of
an incalenlable sumber of childien.,”

>> Simon: And everybody wanted to do something about it. Authorities prosecuted a few
of the accused abusers, but most had died. The government set up a $350 million "healing
fund"” to help victims with counselling and treatment. Churches began outrsach programs
to the Indian community. And Canada’s Indians, who have lived in poverty and obscurity
for generations, started speaking out for themselves, Canada’s Indians weren't allowed to
vote or to hire a lawyer until the 1960S. But they're making up for lost time now with a
vengeance-- literally with a vengeance. In the last few years, Indians have filed more than
7,000 lawsuits agdinst Canada’s government and its churches. They're seeking damages
of billions of dollars. But the Canadian government has paid only  handful of those
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claims. Shawn Tupper, the governments point man on the law suits, says there's no rush
to judgment or to payment. Why not just settle the claims instead of forcing them into
courts?

Shawn Tupper

e

L
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>> Tupper: That's what we're frying to do. One of the critical parts of the response is
meking sure we can come up with response that protect people who were abused, and
insure that people who may be coming forward looking for easy money don't get easy
money.

>> 8imon: Those Jawsuits are a big problem for bishop Duncan Watlace, whose Anglican
church ran 30 of the residential schools. Wallace maintaing that they ware operated
according to principles which seemed like a good idea at the time.

Bishop Duncan Wallace”

>> Wallace: The assumption was that the Indian children would be better off and should
be raised as little white children, .

>> Simon: Whether it was well- intended or not doesn't really explain the really bad
things that happened at the schools: The sexual abuse, the physical abuse.

>> Wallace: No. That's inexcusable at any time, any place, any age.

>> Simon: How did that sort of thing go on for so long without the knowledge of the
church authorities and the disciplinary action of the church authorities?

">> Wallace: That's a question for which I have no answer. I simply don't know.

>> Szmon The bishop is the first 1o admit that the church has moral debt to the Indians.
But paying that debt in cash? Not so casy.

>> Wallace: If you want to come directly after the church for money, the first ten are
fine. The first ten people will get their money from us, and the rest, the rest are out of
fuck as far a5 we're concerned, with that kind of settlement. We don't have that money.
People say we have money in property. Do you want to buy & church? ( Laughs )
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>> Simon: The good bishop is already preparing his flock for leaner times. Two Anglican
priests regularly carry the bad news to parishes around the diocese, It is rarely well
received.

>> Helena Houleroft: I can say categorically that residential schools and the policy of
assimilation was dead wrong. And it did a tremendous amount of damage, and i know it's
hard for church people to hear that

Priest Helena Houlcroft

>> Woman 1: These people need some counselling. They nesd some medical help, like,
not just hand them money.

>> Woman 2: Why do you have to be blamed forever for something? I mean...
>> Houlcroft: In what way are you experiencing being blumed?

>> Wornan 2: Well, I hear all the time that we committed this terrible sin, but everybody
didn't do wrong. And for how long do we have to be blamed for it?

>> Simon: How do you know when expiation for guilt has been consummated? How do
you know where it stops, when you've done encugh?

i
}

>> Wallace: Well, I guess the best answer to that is you probably never know. You do
what you can, and what you think is right, I don't know when it's ended.

>> Simon: If courts order the churches to pay for the sins of earlier generations, the
bishop says they will be, quite simply, out of business. Do you really think thisis a
prospect of churches going bankrupt? ‘
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>> Wallace: Oh, yeah. If
things continue in the
present way, with... Down
the litigation course, there's
| 1o question.

>> Simon; No one,
absolurely nio one, wanis the
churches 1o disappear, but
that doesn't mean it's not
going to happen. Would

you like to see these
organizations, these
churches, wipad ou?

A . e ™ >> Redman: I don't think it
would bs a good thing. I think people have a nced to have a church to have some
spirituality in their life.

>> Simon: Yeah, well, it looks like a lot of these churclies are going to got wiped out
because the pending suits are just overwhelming.

>3 Redman: Well; they should of thought of that befure thay started beating the hell out
of us.

>> End.
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Local diocese teels

By ANDREW EHRKAMP
. Leader-Post
and Canadian Press

An agréement to compensate vie-

tims of residential schoo! abuse has

brought “great relief” to the Diocese -

of Qu'Appelle, which ran a residential
schoo! on the Gordon First Nation
northeast of Regina, says its bishop.

Duncan Wallace said nearly 500
lawsuits have been "hanging over our
heads” in the diocese for more than
five years and the diocese has spent
more than $500,000 in litigation costs.

“After five years or more of litiga-
tion going nowhere, some seitlements
are finally going to be made for valid
claims,” Wallace said. "We hope we
will now stop bleeding from litigation
costs, without ever having gone to
court.”

The agreement, announced Wednes-
day, would see the Anglican Church of
Canada pay up to $25 million to those
abused in its native residential
schools.

If ratified by the 30 dioceses across
Canada, the deal would require the
Anglican church to pay 30 per cent of
validated claims for sexual and physi-
cal abuse. The federal government
would pay the rest, along with any
costs that exceed the $25-million cap.

It's estimated that more than 90,000
aboriginal children aged six and older
attended the live-in schools — often
against their will - from 1930 until the

last one closed outside Regina in 1996, -

However, Regina lawyer Tony Mer-
chant says Wednesday's deal metely
removes a delay in settiing lawsuits.

“This is good for First Nations peo-
ple, it's just not very significant,” said
Merchant who represents gbout 800
residential school victims who attend-
ed Anglican church-run schools in
Saskatchewan and Alberta. Settle-
nents could cost taxpayers at least $1

billion, according to government pro-.

eat reliet

Regina lawyer Tony Merchant has represented many First Nations

DON HEALYLgador-Post

people in their fight for compensation for

abuse they say they were subjected to at church-run residential schools in the past,

jections. Merchant said the money
from the Anglican ¢hurch “in a sense
is money going to the government be-
cause it has to pay the whole claim.
“Al} it does is marginally speed up
the process ... the government has
one less means of delay,” Merchant
said. “The process will inevitably go
more quickly because a component of
the delay is out of the way.”
Nevertheless, Wallace said expedit-
ing lawsuits benefits both the church

and plaintiffs. The Diocese of Qu'Ap-

pelle ran a residential school on the
Gordon First Nation near Punnichy
until the 1980s. -

One case against the Diocese of
Qu'Appelle went to court a year and a
half ago, but was dismissed, Wallace
said,

Critics say Wednesday's deal offers
nothing for loss of language or culture.
Most of the mounting lawsuits involv-
ing more than 12,000 plaintiffs include
such cultural claims. )

But Public Works Minister and .

Regina MP Ralph Goodale, who is also
responsible for residential school
claims, said there’s no legal precedent
for compensating former students
punished for speaking their native
tongue in the schools.

Merchant said based on the number
of residential schools, the Roman
Catholic church — named in 72 per
cent of cases — should agree to a larg-
er amount of compensation.

. Talks with the Catholic church
stalled last fall, .




RESIDENTIAL SCHOOL CASES

Federal officials
accused of using
legal tricks to
wear down natives

' .o
BY Ricsano Foor

The lawyer behind half the resi-
dential schoo! lawsuits in Canada
says Herb Gray’s stewardship of
the issue is a facade — because
despite the Deputy Prime Minis-
ter’s conciliatory talk, federal
lawyers are still "shppmg native
peoplearound.”

Tony Merchant says Mr, Gray
lacks the authority to resolve the
thousands of abuse lawsuits
against the government.

He also says Mr. Gray’s state-
ments abont seeking a fair and
comprehensive out-of-court set-
tiement to the suits do notmatch
the aggressive actions of federal
lawyers.

‘!‘hey‘re sounding like they
want to deal in a fair and benign
way with the First Nations
daimants, but they aren’t,” says
Mr. Merchant, whose Regina-
based Merchant Law Group rep-
resents about 4,300 native peo-
Aewho say they were abusedws

stvolved Chy \:rch A
find solutions to all the issues
raised by former students of the
residential school system. Facili-
tatm; healing and reconéiliation
is a primary objective and the’
government has been wrking
with survivor groups to find ways
to move away pr

defending his clients’ Liwsuity-
are using what he calls costly le-
gal “tricks™ to wear down native .
plaintiffs and combat their
claims. He 5ays the gmmznt
is putting claimants thiough .
repetitive discovery processes,”
sitting them in front of peychal

gists and filing vast numbers of -
m-e!evlnt documents on every

'ﬂus isa real mgh—guyhup—
tion lppmlch and very hardon
the victims. And that’s totally in-
consistent with the mood they
want to create,” he says. “They're
telling First Nations .O);oople,
‘We'te Jooking for a solution. "
Here's Herb Gray, senior, respect-"
ed'man who i poing to find & fair
and appropriate out-of-ourt so-
lution” — when in faet their ac-

M. Gray said yesterday it would
be wrong-for federal. hm_

1ally, physically or cul ly, in
fovermment-owned residenhal
xhools.

Mr. Merchant is a former
jaskatchewan MLA, and 2
stominent provincial Liberal
vho was defeated by Ralph
joodale, Ottawa’s Natural Re-
ources Minister, in a federal
somination racein 1993.
Mr. Gray was appointed last
ear by Jean Chrétien, the Prime
{inister, to find a way to solve
1¢ residential schools impasse —
nulti-billion-dollar legal strug-
1 1 againat Ottawa and various
that helped

not likely to happen in the near:
future. .

“The Department of Justice
and their lawyexs have to make
sure any rights of the Crown are’
noﬂostbymt pursuing matters
in court,” ke said. “I never sug-
gested my discussions were
such 2 nature that there wonl
be no further litigation setivity - .

while my discussions were un- hm]wmm uyiH-*Grq, &qulym luhth: Mh unlehwunm
derway” o ,

dnlmgaton
*‘He said the federal Cabinet has

the

thg, not ‘tedched & décision sbout
‘whethesMr, Gray should Jaunch
lmmnulofunuo:: anyspe-

P
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Ottawa
As the leader of the L\beul party leads d:e
members of hi hei

that Aboriginal people and issues are in ¢
key category of. principal impor

sulcide rates, physical and mental illness,
coruption, crime, and 8 lack of educa-
tional resource snd economic stability,
from remote tesesves to the streets of urban

Canade, in comperison to the general ’

population. Mr. Chretien has said that now
is the time to begin the acutely fragile task
of escablishing a dipl and

belanee and smtegy for Aboriginal people.
Al he has v do now is act.

Ottawa
The federal government has plans to

amend and develop the current state of
elecroral affaits on Native reserves alt

gccoss the nation, Plans they hope “will

even out the playing field for elécted band
council members and promote a truer sense
of democtatic responsibility and civic
accounability for Fitst Nation leademship.
As well, the changes will assist First Nation
councils in spending more time estab-
lishing and imp) ing their mand;

. as the current process holds elections every

two years, which is simply not enough time
to expect to see significant results from
administrations. Plans also include a
s[rategv to protect merve employees from
! by i g band ls and
having Election Canads (rather than
Indian Affalis) supervise voting and giving
band councils the ability to levy raxes.

awe
]enn Chrenen‘s Liberal government is

mmmtmg legal costs of residential school
lawsuics against them and four major reli-
gious sects. The suits are alleging loss of
culture and language, 83 well as wany
claima of physical, psychological and sexual
abuse. The schools were tun for more than
100 years by four major church groups
including the Roman Catholic, Anglican,
Presbyterian, and United churches, under
contract from the govemment, with the

asked 0 put up the|r own money; most
likely & one-time disbursemeni to Ottawa,
to contribite to rising costs in the court-

feb2001march200!

cootiued fiom page 9

rooms, whu:h
€ yet. The - Anglican Chutch
a has been asked to come up with
$96.6-million over the next 10 to 15 years
1o fund settlement. The government
suggested a long-term fund raisin
aign be initiated.

Ottawa

“It’s in every community. We nieed to miove

on this issue...because it's a form of slavery,

talk vo me, 'l fix you...[Suits) have never
been on the streets to the point where
they'te dinty and gioss and smelly and

om Vancouver. Senator Landon Pearson,
who worked on the report as well, and
currently advises the government on youth
issues, says that che biggest problem facing
Aboriginol prostitutes s racism. He also
says solutions must come from within the
native commungity. Matthew Coon Come,
National Chief of the Asserbly of Fiese

one of the worst forms of exploltation and
abuse. 1 have survived this issue, 1 know it
to be true.” Ms. Cherry Kingsley was once
a prostirute and has since gone through a
dramatic change. She now advocates ont
behalf of Aborlgmal youth lnvolved in the

sex trade throogh the pi
tions Save the Children. Ms. ngsley and
thor Melanie' Mack released their

report, Sacrcd Lives, in early December; a
tepott stating some fairly disturbing facts.
According to the teport, some 90% of pros-
titutes in the province of Manitoba are
Abodgu\aL The two authors denioutice the
“aver representation” of native youth in
the sex tade. They say solutions developad
for won-native prostitures cannot bhelp
Aboriginal youth and that Canada needs to
appoint a board of government afficials,
nmve l:aders and youth who have been
lved, to work her on a2 national
strategy. « A collection of quotes from 150
sborigivial youth involved in prostitution
made up the herdest-hitting past of the
teport. They speak of horrible past abuse
and low self-esteem ~ brought on by things
like discrimination..I lost my virginity to
rape and | was consistently abused by my
mother,” said one female in Winnipeg, "1
was ashamed of myself, who | was and what
1 looked like and when I met this man he
was the world to me. He said ‘Oh, you'te so
pretey, and 1 fell for . The solution,
sccording 1o them, is to get help from other
native youth who have been there and
know how to escape the vicious circle.
"You don’t want to go in and have 2 suit
sitting there saying ‘Come over here and

Nations seid the ceport shows the itmense
impace disccimination has had on native
youth, The Canadian Alliance says the
solution is not to spend more money at
Indion and Northern Affairs, but to invest
more on drug and alcohol treatment
centres for all young prostinuces.

Toronto

As teported in the Globe and Mail on
Monday December 11, 2000, the successhul
American exteadition of Indian activist
Leonard Pelvier foc the shooting deaths of

two FBI agents on June 26, 1975, was found.

by a Canadian commissicner of inquiry to
be based on ecroneous pretense snd was
“highly questionable”. Key witness Myrtle
Paor Beac has sdmitted to what many have
suspected for years — her testimony was
false becausé she was coerced and threat-
ened by FB agents acting out of vengeance

- for their slain comrades.

Commissioner Fred Kaufman, a judge of
the Quebec couce of Appeal for 16 years,
concluded in o lecter to US President Bill
Clinton, "As you can see from her
evidence, she acted wnder duress at the

tinky and hucting” said a female youth:

time and, much of what she said was false®.

The letter urges President Clinton to
consider Peltier for executive clediency. *
am satisfied that if this had been known
when the exteadition hearings took place,
the request to extradite Peltier would likely
have been refused.” The wial took place in
1977 in Fargo N.D.. Peltier has sppealed
the conviction of double homicide for the

L1700
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tich off the it will cost $840,000 (o deal with each

“We thought we would do wel finan-
we will do well finan-

e
WINNIPEG (CP) — A juige bas or- | [N

KLEIN VOTED OFF

'Socxely of plamed [ dle law
licitation leites from sndhe‘

'Lofus ate uken wuh the ynlled lax:fmcmﬂdmved:lm

lmgsﬁon!es Theremdee w “I0's unfeistunate, [ dou’t want to sin-
ed byt (n aboriginal commurities), A iz he pei and suffcig of the vic-
igantic burt, ] dow’t thik there’s a sin- ~tims, But my conteation allalong i the
&‘; ary First Nation person who  govermment bas sdmitied wrongoing,

foeen affesied by the residential the churches have admitied wrongdo-
k" iog, why ale the lawyers involved? We
t- should be focused on healing”
of.lndlm ﬂ?lmnd Northem Meanwhile,,  Federstion  of
 menl's (DIAND) residential school unit, . Saskatchewan ‘Indien- Nasions (FSIN)

“Yiliclaiins s biéed O an “aalysis of - disappoindedand disturbed by “Mer-
V. sbuse commited atthe Mount Cashelr.  chant’s admissfon. -

in Newfoundland and 12 other | Ina statemcnt, he blames DIAND fm
“refising 10 act “when it becamé ndeai-

wdﬂngowmmmtsemmnleofjs,ﬂoo vice-chief Lawrence, sz:l said e s -

“We realized thalmughiy 21015 per able that the resideatial schools were..

ed validated clajms. Qur umber  residential school survivors have no ofh-

's po- (ofls,mﬂ)lshasedonlw,otnmden er chaice but “to 20 o lawyers who
the residential tentil gross camvings it ol anly acct- tiak school survivors across the country”
10 settle over the next 10 years. A gov- school system, P Just @ Bandil of vate, Sut likely conservative. When
enment spokesperson said the estitate lawsuits have bien setlsd in the past asked if he's ‘“‘“f
canservalive. two 'm

"lmltunmnber(ﬂbﬂﬂon

don't seem to have any dilemma
abont gmug nch off the tragedy of an
entire people.”

case, p total which includes its own le-  He said Iegtl sotion Wwould not Iuve
oosts, However, he said recent court bwl necessney if Ottawa fad o

'!\:ﬁper said the govemnment estimettes

other Indian groups.

Tobin: Grad-student count

 |burts grant chances: pre31dentf

lOoaned!rumM mmulm\ngKmhmlmwhng
But MacKinnon was concemsd about 1o stem, he said.

e relatively poor showing of the U of $ OnThmsduyhelobbndTobmtohavc

‘compared 10 the national average, The the government revies, for example,:

money was shared among 50 Canadian - hﬁ.:n gmay formvh chairs is bemg

g stitions and universities.

Partof the reason the U of § did poorly Almoughlludmsandneawardsm

" wisitselavelylow raoof gradudestu- gven out base on peer reviow and at

deats 4o undergrads, be said. anm’s Jength from the minister, he is

But he belioves the govemment wil ce.molllwpopu jon was abused, They  sges of-cultural genocide” He said .

ecisions in British Columbia suggests “a better setttement” with the F 1N and .
¢ prominent Liberal, who  the éstimate could be low.

2100







Paga s 00415

Phone: 565-8300 Fax: 565-2588 -

Gov't eyes huge award

By LEADER-POST STAFF

Ottawa is studying a court decision
{hat awarded more than $370,000 to a
Regina man who was sexually abused
by a residential school administrator in
the 1970s. . .

“My understanding is, it's the biggest
50 far that has been awarded by the

the decision set a precedent both for the
size 'of the award and for the fact that
the courts have found Ottawa liable
even though the victim wasn't a resident
of ihe school.

The plaintiff in the case is a status
Indian and member of thé Gordon First
Nation reserve who was victimized in
the mid- -"10s on three petasions by

4 tourls,” said Lyane Boyer, residential
schools policy adviser for the federal
Indian and Northern Affairs Depart-\
ment.

. However, no declsm has been made
yet about whether the decision kanded

downluSaskatchewanom'tonueens .

Bench Justice John Klebuc earlier this
week wil] b appesled, Boyer said

In his deeigion, Klebuc awarded
$377,000 1o the man, why is identife ed-as
HL., in compensation for, sexual abusé
suffered while he was in ilie Boxing
Club at Gordon’s Resitentia) School.

HL's Iawyer. Tony Hercbant. smd

William P Starr. Starr was the
pnncipal of the Gordon's ‘Indian

1 School and of
the school residence. The school and
residenceé were owned and operated hv
the federal governmént.

HL 'to" masturbate him and Starr doing
thesameto HI. .

- Huindreds of former Gordon's resi-

deats-have filed suits against Starr, a

» convicted pedophile who wis seatenced

i 1983 to 4% years in prison after pleagd-

;lfelmw to semally aasu!tmg 10 male

dents.

. The’ mculents involved Sh}r gettlng .

H.L. said that as a result of his experi-
ences, he experienced Jow-self esteem,
feelings of shame, humiliation, and self
blame. Court beard be dropped out of
school, became an alcoholic, suffered
emotional problems and bad trouble
holding dewn a job.

Aod 4

the baxing club and held it out to be a2
signficant achievement on the part of
the Department .of Indian Affairs,”
Kiebuc.wrote in his decision. “The
Department’s involvement went far be-
Yond xmmdmg facilities and some fund-

mg = m doing so, it created or

The j ent > i‘or
lost fusture ummg against

Starr and Ottaws ia the amoant of
$179,19. Damages. for lost past income
‘were set at $97,213. Nop-pecuniary dag-
apes were $60,000 and aggravated dam-
ages were 320000 Further punitive
damuges ofm.(m were assr_aled to

Turing the trial; -Goveument of Can: ¢

adxlmushadatww\!&urhad

committed the assailts, suich conduet -

was outside the scope of his employ-
ment and therefore a wasn't Bi-
able. However, Klebuc rejected that
line of

deéfence. .
“T am s-hsﬁed !.hnt Canada q:erated y

| ing
-1 ficials at SaskTel-
" calls expected wi

d the risks which are the sub-

both ject of the within action,”

Boyer said about 8,100 individuals”
have ﬁled lawsuus over resxdenhal

ng Ottawa as a defendant.

Between 350 and 400 suits have been
settled out of cowst, while a handful, of
cases havé gone to trial, she said,

- Boyer said each case must be ponsid-
ered on its individual méxits, so it:does-
n't necessanly follow that.Ybe HL.
decision will lead to n-ﬂwl'ol‘m-:si-
b e S by e

ey, Yesi
tial school cgses that went to trial whiere
Ottawa has been foudd Yiable fur dam- ..
ages. none lxave been appeﬂ .

ytm’ls Fowg.sn

Hmﬂunmmopeoplemllbedhl- -
their moims this Mother's Day, sayof- .
e huge volume of
1 likely set a new
retord for what has traditionaily been
SaskTel's busiest calling day of the vear.
With such a huge aumber of calls ‘tak-
ing place, callers might have to deal
with network congestion dnrmg the
busy calling héurs.

wm\thalmmmi SaskTel is advising *

. le to' avoid calling between 10 am.
mpmmdbeimn'l:!)pmmdlo

: Snmemnrehps for # basslerfree call
toyw.rmom are to dial the number di-
rectly instead of using the operator for |
.assistance, and to check the phone num- ,
Der and consider the time zones before
dialing, After that, all that's leltis t
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Mﬂhons spent
researching records
of residential schools

BY RicHARD Foot

.The federa! government spent
more than $440,000 last year
searching its archives for histor-
jcal documents required to de-
fend lawsuits from former stu-~

. dents of one Indian residential
school in Saskatchewan,

The figure, disclosed in govern-
ment court records, reveals Ot-
tawa is spending millions of do)-
lars on document research alond
as it deals with allegations of
abuse at dozens of residential
schools dcross Canada.

The government is also paying
the salaries and expenses of
teams of lawyers dedicated to
residential school cases and has
already paid out $33-million on
residential school compensation.
But it is the task of combing
through residential school
records that is rackmg up some
of the highest bills.

In a decision in July, Justice
Gerald Kraus of the Sask-
atchewan Court of Queen’s
Bench said federal lawyers told
hifn the search for documents
relating to thé 500 claims from
the Lebret residential school
north of Regina “has been a

John'Sieben, a consultant who

 Merchant

mammoth and expensive under-

staggering logistical problem
with document production in le-
gal proceedings” -

Tony Merchant, alawyer repre-
senting some of the Lebret
claimants, says the paper chase is

" a waste of time and money and

calls Ortawa’s endless pursuit of
archived records "a demonstra-
tion of the extremes of silliness'of
the approach to this ht:gatxon by
the parties being sued

Rather thdn spend $440,000
on “clerks fiddling around in the
bowels of Ottawa,” he says, the
government should use its mon-
ey tosettle claims.

"At the Lebret school, like many
others across Canada, former
students are suing both the gov-
ernment and one of four church-
es — in this
case the Ro-
man ‘Cathelic
Oblates of
Manitoba -~
which. shared
in the opera-
tion of the
school. At issue
between the
two groups is
who controlled
residential schools and who
should bear the Liability for any
abuse at them.

- To solve this question, Ottawa

and church organizations.are
hiring researchers to scour gov-
ernment archives for records
dating back over
years that may shed light on how
responsibility forthe schools was
divvied up.

Mr. Merchant says lf Ottawa
and the churches could reach
agreement on thxs, t'hen trials

has searched the records himself
says for many decades Ottawa
micro-managed the. schools,
leaving a paper trail of millions
of documents at the Department
of Indian Affairs.

Now, he says, “the feds face a

could proceed and native plain-
tiffs could present their cases.
Butthat's not likely to happen, he
says, as the bickering over
archived records from the Lebret
school proves. .

"'The gavemmenthas so far'pro-

‘more time seardnng the Lebs

e last 100

want the Saskatchewanmr,k
order Ottawa to progduce.in
The Oblates believe tha.i
ment has Cabinet and
al records proving the" chy
was not the controllitz pay
intheschool. - -
In July, Jan Maydah,, & SeabF
advisor in the federal Office’
Indian Residential ‘Schah
Resolution, told the &

files. L
In an affidavit, shes

“the salaries and travel of fe
government employees 2
in this litigation.” :

Plus, she said her ofﬁoe‘ﬂa.&
spent $50,000 paying four full
time contractors to, search f
records’ requested by
Oblates. .

“We were preﬁ:y sh
those numbexs,” says Paul’
asen, a lawyer for the Oblaté:
He says he doesn't believe oy
tawa is hiding documents, buf -~
that its researchers have faﬂédtﬁ
seek out specific recérds “that-
mxght harm the government

The Oblates have hu-ed thei

tional Archives for records, but-
private reseaschers, Mr, Hamen
says, aren’t being given acmsto
residential school ﬁlm not Open
fo public strutiny. T
Federal officials have dedumd. T
to reveal the exact cost of rez .- ';
searching records for other res- . - -
jdential schools across the

country. . ,
N I Py ;
ational Post &a 'ﬁ g i



COMMENT EDITOR: PATRICK MARTIN -
commens@globeandmailca

schools .

. e the undersi'gnles,gqmberéity
professqrs, researchers, * dod
students of Native -history :in

eral government bears primaty ;
responsibility for abuse . cldims
from the treatment of fopmer.
Indian residential schools. '
In eardy September, Prime Mipis
Jean Chrétien, named you as his
Representative to the church
' tions i

direct this letter to you in that capacity. © -
Litigation to date has resultéd iii: 60 per.-

the federal government.- This has led to -
heavy financial demands on-tliesé institi-

fice of the Anglican Church of Canada..ha; :
already caused a reduction’ of ight full:

. of Justice have led one Anglican diocese;
... Yet, were, and are, the churches really -

schools?

Canada, helieve that: the fed-- °
et

cent of the financial Bability. béing as- - -
signed to the chirches and 40 pej'cerit fo

[ tions, which in the case of the riatidhal.of- .

‘time staff members.'C.r'lpp_l_ Javgsuits -
brought forward by Canada’s:Department .
British Columbia to declare bankruptcy.. -

or solely responsible for tie, xﬁ(@m

While the federal government assignig
the responsibility for schooling: to.
Christian churches, it remained legally:
sponsible for Status Indians who attendéd;
residential schools. It then neglected o

provide adequate funding for, and inspeg .- .

tion of, the schools' operations. At "th
same time, many Christian missionaries.
attempted to protect their students fiom
past injustices, and to assist the First' N
Hons 10 reach an equal position with il
Newcomers. In. hindsight, we now realize
that they were as culture-bound s any.
people of their own time, or of outs. They
assumed that their culture and religidn
were superior. They sought to teach the
First Nation ¢hildren English (or French),
as well as Buropean work habits, and
Christianity. There was no reciprocity..-
Over the course of the Jast 15 years

Christian  denominations responsible 5~ -

have all publicly apologized-and accepted "
muoral responsibility. They are willing.%g
accept some * financial responsibilify. -

However, the cument 60-40 aliocation bf -
financial responsibility . . . recommendgd "

by the courts is teo onerous and -unfair.

The primary financial responsibikity b_é-‘:.“ ’

longs with the federal government, Cea
The Canadian government can do.a ~
great deal more to funding rehebilitatipe -

programs now -and in the future. The'- -

churches are already funding some of {kijs

healing through grants to First Nations. Jt ..

is acknowledged that Canada'’s 1998 state-
ment of reconciliation in regard to resi-,

dential schools and the accompanying -~ .

policy and program initiatives are steps in -

the right direction, but mare work ni ’
to be done for reconciliation and forgives -
ness. N

putting more resources into indigénoxs . -
language programs. And it could -help
local communites and individuals fo
communicate their feelings in order to -

{ work them through towatds healing.

| Keity Abel, professor of history, Carleton .
University; Jennifer Brown, professorof - - ..

history, University of Winnipeg; Ann ten, .

Cate, archivist; Janet E. Chute, research | '

associate, Dalhousie University School for.
Resource Management and Environmental
Studies; Ken Coates, historian, Saskatoon; -
Olive Dickason, professor emeritus of - i
history, University of Alberta and adfunct,
professor, University of Ottawa; Tony Hall,
associate professor of Native American .-

Studies, University of Lethbridge; Wayne . o

Holst, instructor, Department of
Continuing Education, University of .
Calgary; Dr. Jean Manore, assistant W
professor of history and Canadian Studies,. -
Trent University; Jim Miller, professor of *
history, University of Saskatchewan; Johm; -
Milloy, professor of histery and native ‘.
studies, Trent University; Jennifer Pertit, R
history professor, Mount Royal College;
Donald Smith, professor of history,
University of Calgary. o :

ey

Canada could also make amends by

- 00417
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1o residential
schools offer

BY XL MAHONEY, EDMONTON

For Flora Northwest, there was little
comfort in the 'federal govern-

ment’s announcement that it will
caver 70 per cent of out-of-court

‘settlements for victims of dbuse at
native fesidential schools. -

- Her case, like thousands of oth-
_ex3, could be years away from reso-
luifon because of court delays and
the long process required 16 vali-
date each claim.

- ““They should: speed it wp ...
we've wailed tdo long" said the
56-year-old who spent nine years in

* the 1950s and 60s at the Exmineskin

Indjan residential school in Alberta,
where she says she experienced
several forms of abuse.
‘Ms. Nonhwat also rejects as
overstaied  assertions by- "church
groups that payouts would push
many congregations' to poverty or
bankzuptcy. -

tcy.
“Why should they get off scot-
free?” she asked.

On Monday, Deputy Prime Min-
ister Hertb Gray, said the govem-
mem will pay 70 per cemt of
negitiated by vali-

compensation
-dated victimis'of sexual or physical

abuse whd settle ‘out of couft or
‘throiigh * other dispute-resolution
arbitration. Soiirces said this could
represent about $700-million.
Victims can take church organiz-

ations, which say 30 per cent is too -
- [arge -2 burden to bear, to court 0

recover the remainder. .
It’s not clear how.many former
students will acoept Ottawa’s offer.
More;than 8,500 people have

Sled munst 'the government

alleging'pl sexual and other
abuse, indudmg loss of culture and
language. Thereé are 4,500 court
cases ‘because some claims have

'.beénlu:qped together while others

‘are updugomg arbitration or have
; ty&bwn filed in cowrt.
“Ton Memhant. a Regina lawyer

t@ : its about 4,900 plain-
t éﬁunpatcs.a very small” per-
| centagewill: atoept the offer:

Gnlyhl; cases have been setued;

N gaaymenxs 'range from $15,000 to

00,000, with dn average of about

| $200,000, MrMerchant said. .
The

dmn:hes — Roman' Catho-
lic; United,” Anglican and Presby-
terian — that opexated the schools
with the gmemmem Ottawa’s

i unﬂamahmonisunfautod:em

L mrepmtﬁomShaumMcCanhy
. andSmﬁmGiasemOmm
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. & Many of the questions involve historical issues #

‘|
'1

LAWYER VAUGHN MARSHALL, WHO REPRESENTS ABOUT 600 ALBERTA NATIVE COMPLAINANTS

Lawyers have 90 days
to finalize questions

. DARYL SLADE
CaLGARY HERALD

judge assigned to manage
& multibilion-dollar law-
suft by aborigimals al-
legedly abused in federal
- government-owned,
church-run zesidential schools has es-
tablished a strici schedule to help
move the case closer to trial
With a Feb. 28 deadline about to
pass Jor prospective clairnants to reg-
ister as part of the class-action suit,
Alberta Court of Queen’s Bench Jus-
tice Terrance McMahon attempted
Wednesday to move quickly on to the
nextphase.
During a regular case mapagement
meeting in Calgary, McMahon gave
lavryers for both sides 9o days to firial-

3 L

1ze their questions for pre~trial exami-
nation of witnesses. -

Lawyexs for about 2,500 Alberta abo~
riginals claiming sexusl, physical and
cultural abuse while at the schools
from the 19205 16 the 19605 subraitted
140 pages of “interrpgatories® to be
asked of government and church wit-
nesses. .

‘They, in turn, will submit their ques-
tions to be asked of o plalntiffs who
will be the test cases in the trial. :

Lawyers for alt sides must voice
their objections on the relevance o
materiality of questions by the n
meeting on 4pril 20, and have all gus
tions finalized by the deadiine of Ma
30, 50 they can progeed at a une

' case manggement meeting.

“Many of the questions involve-hi
torical issues,” said lawyer Vaugh

Marshall, who represents abou( 600 of
{he Alberia complainants. :
“Tt's quicker to provide the written
questions beforehand, so they (wit-
Desses) can take the time to Iook up
answers and provide them in writing,
It just saves a lot of thue and moves
the process ahead more quickly®
Marshall said he is optimistic the
case, one of many involving 6,000 to -
8,000 alleged victims nationally, could

proceed to trial by sometime next

year.

But McMahon told the gathering of
more than 20 lawyers it still has to be
determined who among the so test
cases will proceed. to itial, whether

. they will be handled by one or more

judges, and if separate trials ave held,
whether they would be concatrent or
at different tirnes. ' .

It also has to be determined where
the trials would have to be held — Cal-
gary, Edmonton or othex relevant loca-
tions,

. One of the biggest stl;mbﬁng blocks

Judge speeds up aboriginal suit

to any out-of-court settlernent is the
governament's tefusal o compensate
victims for non-physical or sexual

abuse, in particular loss of culture and
language, e

“F think most of us plaintiffs' counsel |

are eternally optimistic thaf some-
thing along those lnes will happen*’
Marshall said.

“The way it has been described by
some defendants’ lawyers Is they con-
sider them untested claims- and that
they would want the court to-rule on
those issues before they would be pre-
pared to copsider them in asettiement.”

Frans Slatter, lawyer for several Ro-
man Catholic institutions in Alberta,
Saskatchewan and the Northwest Ter-
ritories, agreed. ' '

He sald last week the issue of cul-
tural suppression has never been rec
ognized by the courts in this country,

Marshall said, howeves, there is
precedent in Australia wheze the gov-
ernmené compensated aboriginal vie-
tims for cultural abuse 15 years ago. )

61v00
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Chief Justice Donald Brenner laid groundivork for study.

Celebrating 20 Years of Service to Canada’s Legal Community 1983-2003 September 19, 2003

CJC inviting public input
on e-access to court records

By Gary Oakes

Vietoria -

. he Canadian Judicial
Council (CJC) wants to

hear from.all players in
the legal system — “including
media, litigants, legal and acad-

emic ities and commer. .

cial users"— on issues arising

from electronic access to court

records, IR
Regardless of the challenges
invelved, & discussion paper on

* . the subject warns that “it is not a
" question of whether the elec-

tronic environment wil] domi-
nate the administration ‘of jus-
tice. Ttis a question of when”
Although prepared for a closed
mieeting of the council last May,
the 51-page paper, "Oper Courts,

Records, and Privacy,” was
released only earlier this month.

Prepared by a subcommittee
of the CJC's Judges Technology
Advizory Committee (JTAC), the
paper says the ."right of the
public to open courts is an impor-
tant constitutional fule, that the
right of an individual to privacy
is a fundamental value, and that
the right to open courts generally

-Outweighs the right to privacy."

The paper reaches 32 other
conclugions, ineluding one that
the CJC “hasa leadership role in
initiating discussions and debate
about the development of elec-
tronic access policies and that
such policies be as consistent as
possible throughout Canada.”

In an executive summary, the
subcommittee credits “the

important work initially under-
taken for the Administration of
Justice Committee” by Chief
Justice Donald Brenner of the
B.C. Supreme Court and its law
officer, Judith Hoffman. It says
the paper “further develops Lhe
many policy and logistical issues
which arise when courts accom-
modate electronic filing and elec-
Ltronic retrieval of courts records
and docket information.”

It says that because of "the
complexity of the issues and the
importance of consultation
amongst those interested in and
invoived in electronic access poli-
cies, JTAC has concliuded that it
would be inappropriate for it to
recommerid a model policy.

see CJC p.3

Bad faith not a prerequisite
for ordering costs payable
by counsel personally: cowrt
By John;laﬂ’ey . in the course of proce'edings

Toronto . before he or she should” be
A n Ontario Superior rgquiredtapayooatspersonaﬂy.

Convt LIT P

Electronic Access to Court

Saskatchewan Court of Appeal grants

rareleave to appeal its own decision

a resident at the Gordon's Day because they thought their
Regina School when an employee of the courts of appeal would say,
Tn a rare move, a provincial  school, William Starr, molested . "We're right and why should we (-
court of abneal hoe  him ' . -

By Déana Driver

0¢v0




review one of the appaal court's

D v s Gandag "Any member of the legal Ppro-
tuling, hss held that bad faith js feasion might be aubject to z
Bot a prerequisite fo; doing so, tompensatory order for costs if it
Justice Joseph Quinn applied is shown that repatitive and
rule 57,07 or Ontario's Rules of irrelevant material, and oxces-
ivil Pracedure. which states: sive motiong and applications,
ere a golicitor for a4 party hag characterized the broceedings i
caused costs to he incurred “which they were ini'olved. and
without reagonable causeortobe -that ghe lawyer acted in bad
wasted by undye delay, negli- “faith in eéncouraging this abuge
gence or other default, the court and delay” s
May make an order . requiring Justice MeLac d
. *he golicitor personally to pay the that courts “muyst be extremely
053 of any party* . cautious in awarding costs per-
n ordering Torontp lawyer . sonally againgt lawyer, given
’aul M. Feldmap to Personally the duties u Pon & lawyer to
ay costs of $6,527, Justice guard conﬁdentiality of ingtrue-
Winn wrestleq with' the top  tions ang to bring forwarg with
urt's finding that has usually courage even unpopular cauges,
len interpretad g requiring a : :
Wyer to have acted in bag faith see cosTS p. 19

'pictUre yoLfrself. .

satisfied that therg js legol services coverage on the reqf
estote tansaction yoy just closed — should it be needed, *

th'attheappeal
In a unanimous decision, Supreme Cour

chewan Court of Appeal found 1) What is th
at, in the words of the Act's  dard of review o
8. 37, “the question involved in court of

the appeal ja one‘that ought tq standard different for the appel.
be submitteq te the Supreme late court of Saskatchewan?
Court for decision,” - 2) Did the Saskatchewan
" In May.'2001, & provincial Courg of Appeal misapply that
Court of Queen’s Bench judge standard regarding: (a) expert
awarded Native plaintiff HL., witnesags (b) Pecuniary dam-
damages of $407,000 — the ages?
ighest award ever granteqd ina Merchant told The Lawyers
Tresidentjal 8choo] case. Byt in Weekly he choge to take the
December 2002, the appeal court unusual move instead of seeking
cut the award g $86,000 by leave from the Sy, r
removing compensation for past  for more than one reason.
and fature earnings, The court “Lawyers have not gone to thejr
also held the federa] Bovernment

courts of appeal and asked for
liable, even though HI.,, wasnot leave .t appeal, to some extent

@ correct stan.

hlin explained

1-800-410-1013 filléplus.lawyerdonedegl.com

tileplus.ca -

Ftleﬂ’ﬁu;'
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TN gy e e e

IR i g o P e el

“4vup 1 neging, made an appli- ;;uite a risk

cation under g, 37, suggesting Court of Appeal and not to the
own decisiong, court require the Supreme Court, because you
A t Lo answer two only have 60 days to apply to I;he
thres judges of the Saskat. questions: Supreme Court? "

ToT TSI, auen L you taking

For ona thing, he had no doubt

f the appellate that if the appeal court thought
a province, and is that the further appeal had merit,
“they would send it to the
upreme Court without any per-
sonal considerations,” he sajd. .

See APFEAL p. 19
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APPEAL
~continued from front page- "

“If anything, I thought it pos-
sible the Court of Appeal would
be magnanimous and say,
'"Maybe this should go on.’”

With Juatices Calvin Tallis
and Nicholas Sherstobitoff con-
curring, Chief Justics Ed Bayda
accepted his arguments.

Citing caselaw, he acknowl-
edged that provincial courts usu-
ally leave it to the Supreme
Court to decide which cases it

" hears, and “insist upon litigants
making their applications for
leave not under s. 37 but uader
8. 40(1).

“However, on rare occasmns, a
ptovincial or regional concern of
compelling importance will
arise, rendering a provincial

court of appeal pecu11ar1y~smted
to determine if that case is one’

‘that ought to be decided by the

country’s highest court. And,
whsen that happens, the Court
should not shirk from exercising
the jurisdiction bestowed upon it
by s. 37."

Justice Bayda pomted to the '

conflictiig interpretationa of

whether the Saskatchewan'

Court of Appeal should heara
cage by way of rehearing or
review for error.

He said that while Justices
Stuart Cemeron, William Van-
cise and Gary Lane had decided
to hear the appeal by way of

rehearing, the Supreme Courtin -

Housen v. Nikolaisen, (2002]

' 28.C.R. 235, seemed to conclude

that ariy such appeal should be
heard by way of review {or error. .

' “Both cunclusxons cannot be
right,” the chief justice wrote.
“The first conclusion enables this
Court to do considerably more
than the second conclusion.”

He eaid that in delineating the
boundariea of the powers of his
court, the omission by the
majority in Housen “to consider
or refer to the statutory powers
that are expresaly spelled out for

_that court in the statute consti-

tuting it, may well mean that
the majority's judgment as it
relates to that delineation is per
incurigm. ... Only the Supreme -
Court can find its earlier judg-
ment per incuriam.”

He said the court had used the,
power to rehear rather ‘than
review for error because of issues
relating to the proper assess-
ment of the qualifications and

Trustee’s .aff1dav1t described as ‘Ripleyian in nature’

: COSTS
—continued from front page-

“Alawyer should not be placed
. in a situation wheré ... fear of an
adverse order of costs may con-
flict with these fundamental
duties of his or her ¢alling."
However, Justice Quinn found
that the psssage has been
applied too broadly. “I do not
think Young v, Young was
. intended to be-a cross-country
comprehensive assault on the
statutory jurisdiction of a Supe-
vior Court to order a solicitor to
personally pay costs,.”
Although conceding that the

disrretian  availahls tn him

In support, he submitted
Canavan's affidavit containing
an account Justice Qumn
described as “Ripleyian in
nature. In essence, he deposes
that most of the orders were
obtained without his knowledge
and certainly without his con-
sent and that he was unaware
that he was in jeopardy of going
tojail” _

Canavan also deposéd that on
discovering he had beén found in
contempt, he was assured by

Feldman “that I did not have to-

worry, and that he_ would be
appearing in court ... to take

rore nf maottare ©

hzd asked Feldman whether he
had read and understood it and,
through his counsel, he said Yes.
“The affidavit of Canavan
recounts an amazing tale and my
first reaction is disbelief,” the
judge said. “I am concerned why
Canavan did not part company
with Feldman earlier.... Is his
affidavit merely some bold get-
out-of-jail ploy? After all, had I
not instigated the arrsst.of
Canavan én May 23, Feldman
would still be his counsel. Yet,
with Paldrifirrackiowlelging .75 ¢
Canavan’s affidavit ... I am -
pretty well obliged to accept the,

tenth afthn nbntamanta in tha

pecumary damagea

“It is difficult to say what, t.he .
final anewer would have been in.-

each’case had it taken the oppo-
site approach,” he said. “This
ungatisfactory situation, al-
though, strictly speaking, rele-
vant only to Saskatchewan,
forme the basis for a question
that is of compelling and funda-
mental importance and one that

-ig either best resolved (perhaps

ong that can be resolved only) by
the Supreme Court,” he wrote.
“Moreover, thie situation pre-
sents one of those rare occasions
where this court is peculiarly
suited to assess whether the
question ought to be tried by the

. Supreme Court.”

The chief justice said he had
not examined the statutes of
ather provinces' appellate courts,
somme of which might find them-
selvea in this same situation.

Merchant said  Justice
Cameron, who wrote the deci-
sion now under appeal, “went on
for 20 pages talking about what
is our (the court’s] power — can
we substitute what we think
ought to have resulted, or are we
only abla to dabble.

"It's a very important prin-

.ciple for the justice system andl
for the public as well, because

the way I see it, you would end

up-with dress rehearsals before:
t‘h‘_!'ﬁa‘burbof Queen’s Bench or-

the Supreme Court or the
Ontario Court of Justice and the

wanl ahawe wianld ha ia the annnl

a problemin B.C,, you un'sﬁt D)

only get $196,000." -~ -
He said the Supreme Cour

10 $246,000 and 1f oir hdve a '

will have to decide whather:’:
there should be “markedly dif; :

ferent* financial"

you're in, or that these financial

awards ought to be pretty much .

the same across Canada.”

Merchant said that by com-

parison with H.L., Caucasian

victims of similar abuse “have

had that much and more. There
wasg a Caucasian girl who just
got over $500,000 in Alberta. Not
wanting to sound like I'm seeing
racism, but you could make a
pretty good argument that for
some reason the compensation

for Indians with the same sort of -

case often seems to be lower
than for the same sort of case for
whita people.”

The appeal court also allowed
the federal government leave to
cross-appeal on the ground the
appellate court erved in applying
principles of vicarious liability to
the facts in the case. Chief Jus-

- tice Bayda said the issue of vie:
" arious liability raises an impor-

tant guestion that ought to be
decided by the Supreme Court.
He suggested that since both
appellant and respondent would
be arguing that the appellate

rnanrt arvod in ioevec narteining

awards, *,
depending upon which province’

o
o
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utmost care and only in the
. clearest of cases and that any
doubt should be resolved in
favour of the solicitor, he said
that what should-have been the
rautine winding up of a $1.4 mil-
lion estate had become “an
expensive merry-go-round.”

A residual beneficiary brought
a motion in Octobier 2001 to force
the trustee to pass accounts, but
over the next 18 months it
expanded to 10 motions. In pre-
siding over the 10th last May,
Justice Quinn declared himself
seized of the passing of accounts
and all outstanding and future
motions, “on the theory that no
more than 10 judges should ever
be involved in the same case.”

He also took the extraordinary
step of summoning a police
officer into.court to arrest the
estate trustee, Jack Canavan
after the applicant’s counsel,
Ronald Bohm of Richmond Hill's
Stong, Blackburn, Machon,
Bohn, told'the court a motions
judge two months earlier had
found Canavan in contempt, sen-
tenced him to six months’ impris-
onment and issued abench war-
rant for his arrest.

Soon after, Canavan dis-
charged Feldman and retained
John DiFiore, who appeared
befote Justice Quinn on June 26
seeking reaclssion ‘of the con-

‘tempt finding- and Canavan's
release from jail.

‘Is his affidavit
merely some bold
get-out-of-jail ploy?

He said he also believed
Feldman had told the other
counsel and the court “that he
had spoken with me and that he
had specifically obtained my con-
sent to the finding of contempt.

“At no time did ... Feldman

. ever discuss with rie ahy possi-

bility of consenting to a finding of
contempt, or that I would have
three days within which to purge
any such contempt, or that I
would have to attend on a
peremptory basis on March 4.
2003, or that I was to pay .
costs personaily

He said Feldman’s counsel,
Patrice Cété, also tried to obtain
his release by filing & motion
record containing an affidavit by
Feldman which “implies that he
had discussions with me since
my incarceration and that I was
repentant of the delay which I
caused in the administration of
the estate, and that I apologized
to the court for failing to comply
with previous orders. .
have any such discussions with
Feldman while I was incarcer-
ated.” .

Noting that Feldman did not
deliver a response to Canavan's
affidavit, Justice Quinn said he

T R Y L R T

.Idid not *

Accordingly, he rescinded the
finding of contempt and the
bench warrant against Canavan
and ordered that he be released
from jail immediately. .

At the end of his decision, Jus-
tice Quinn added a new twist
which . might explain  why
Canavan did not part company
with Feldman earlier.

“What I have not mentioned so
far is that"Canavan asked for,

and was paid by Feldman from -

estate funds, epproximately

'$96,000 in trustee’s compensa-

tion even though the will of the
deceased does not provide for the
pre-taking of compensation and
the estate accounts ... have not
been passed. ... Canavan seems
to have viewed the estate as his
personal short-term a.nmnty"

In adjourning the passing of
accounts for a month, he ordered’
Canavan to reimburse the
estate.

. DiFiore advised The Lawyers
Weekly that the money has been
repaid and that on July 28, min-

utes of settlement were arrived

at between his client, Canavan,
and the beneficiary who brought
the original application to_ have
the accounts passed.

DiFiore also said the motlon

‘'was adjourned sine die, and he

expects the accounts to be passed
in the near future.

Reasons In Belanger v. McGrade Estale,
[2003) O.J. No. 2853, ara available from
FULL TEXT: 2319021, 16 pp.

late court can read the record
and read what the judge did and
say, ‘nah, they got this result
wrong, 'm going to change it,’
then appeals ave going to be far
more significant and there are
going to be a whole lot more
appeals.”

Justice Bayda also wants the .
.- Supreme Court to offer guidance

on the 12,000 residential school
claiins before Canadian courts.
“Itis highly desirable, if not
necessary, ‘that the courts
hearing this plethora of cases
have early guidance {rom the
higfxgst court in the country on
the questions that are commonly

- raised by the claims for pecu-

niary damages,” he said.

“This guidance, in addition to -

assisting trial judges in making
their assessments, will have the
salutary effect of abviating
appeals that would ordinarily
ensue. ... A decision from the
Supreme Court would go a long

. way to promote the expedition of

and finality to these cases, not to
mention justice for the thou
sands of litigants.”

Merchant sees “a strangeness
in the awards system in residen-
tial school awards" -— that

' awardsg in British Columbia tend

to be much larger than those in
Saskatchewan.

“Saskatchewan is giving gen-
eral damages of $60,000 to
$76,000. B.C. is giving $125,000.

oA g2 e ot \,.,, S-S At S

tion of Saskatchewan's Court of
Appeal Act, 2000, the provincial
attorney general might want to
conaider an application to inter-
vene "with a view to presenting
an argument restricted to those
issue pertaining to the interpre-
tation and construction of that
Act.”

Merchant said he told the
appeal court he went back there
because the Supreme Court
“ought to see that these issues
related to First Nations people
are important, but you arein &
court of appeal where 20 per
cent of the province is First
Nations and growing, you are in
a provinee where there are 3,000
residential school litigations.

“The Supreme Court, located
in central Canada where there
are few First Nations people,
would also grant leave to appeal,
but you in Saskatchewan are
better to see the importance of
this issue.

“It’s the same kind of argu-
ment [ might make if [ were in
Nova Scatia or Newfoundland
over the fisheries, or over oil and
gas and cattle in Alberta.”

Thor Kristiansen of Justice
Canada's Indian Residential
Schools team in Saskatoon acted
for the respondent Attorney
General.of Canada.

Reasons In H.L. v. Caneda (Atlorney

General), (2003} 5.J. No. 555, are avail-
able from FULL TEXT: 2318-023, 10 pp.
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SUPREME COURT

Dec:1$1on reserved on residential school abuse case

By BARB PACHOLIK
Leader-Post

The Supreme Court of Canada has resérved .
decmon ona Sashatche\van case that could -

have farreaching iinplications for victims of" ;

. ‘abuse suffered at Indian residential &chools.
kR The appeal was heard Thursday in Ottawa. -
Last August in a rare move, the Saskatche-
wan Court 6f Appeal granted H.L., who cannot
e named, permission to take his case to Cana-
da's top court. Ordinarily those seeking te ap-
::peal would apply directly to the Supreme
Court, but HL.'s lawye.r. Tony Memh'ant.::hnse
an alternate — and rarely used - route of ap-

. the contested decision

In the ruling; grapting leave to appeal
Saskatchiewan Chijef Justice Eid Bayda said the
case could offer guidance on' thie 12,000 resi- .
dential school cases now before the: eouris
across Capada,

.“A decision tom the Supreme Court would
gnalongwayto promote the expedition, of and
to these cases, not to mention justice’
forﬂ:ethousandsofhhganxs, hewrote, .
“fL.,aow 42, was assaulted almost three -

decades ago while participafing in a boxing. . -

club run by William Penistan Starr onbehalf .
of the government-run Gordon’s Residential -
..School near Punnichy. Starr was ‘the resi-:

the victim didn’t attend the school, the
+ Saskatchewan appeal couwrt held that- the fed-
eral government was still vicariously liable.
Starr was.senenced in a Regina cotirtroon in
1993 to 4% years in prison after l eadinggmlty
to'sexually assaulting 10 mile&tuﬂents who at-
‘tended the school between1988 anid 1854. ..

- In May 2001, Queen’s-Bexth Justice John
Klebuc ordered H.L: receive $407,
December 2002, the Saskatchewan Court-of Ap-
. peal reduced the .award-to Mbymmng

any compensation:for past and fiiture éarnings,
"Among the issues the Supréme Court was
asked to decide was the correct standard of
revxe’wforanappealcourt andv:lcmous lia-

plymg to the same appeal court tlmt issued dence administrator at the sehool. Al’dxough bllny B
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Merchamt says gov’t stallmg on lawsuits

By JAMES PARKER
Saskatchewan News Network

SASKATOON Oltawa 's foot draggmg in deal-
ing-with residential school lawsuits is subjecting
victims of the schools to more abuse, say
Saskatchewan lawyers,

But a federal representative said the govern-
ment is trying to validate claims in a wiy that's fi-
nancially responsible and sensitive to the
plaintiffs. - .

“Nobody should think this is an easy way to get
fast money,” said Sean Tupper, director of the resi-
dential school unit at the Department of Indian
Affairs angd Northern Development (DIAND),

“Validation will be a critical and important part
of these processes. It's important that the publie
know we aren't just giving away money. And‘it's al-
so important that through validatien, people bave
their stories heard. That’s part of the healing
process.”!

However, lawyers Tony Merchant, Barry Sioger
and Ron Cherkewich say the last thing Ottawa is
concerned about is healing.

The three men claim the federal Department of
Justice is stalling every step of the way, often
putting their clientsthrough a painful examination

of discovery pg'ocess o two, three or four separate .

occasions. .

“This is hke tenr!ng an emohonal bandage ol’f a
wound slowly and repeatedly,” said Merchant,
‘whose firm represents 4.300 of the 7,000 former stu-
dents'who have filed suit against the goverpment
m'('llt the ghmhes which ran most of the schools.

is des]gned 10! ereate a c)nll over migauon

Elias charged
after fatal
accident

"Loren Elias, 20, from Wymark, has
been charged in relation to a fatal mo-
tor vehicle accident that nrnirrad Nas

and make it hiard for First Nations people and for

Ottawa heheves there are 15,000 valid claims
which will cost at least $2 billion to settle over the
next decade. -.

So far, the govemment has paad out $27 million
settling 300 suits.

Much of the mnne}f has gone to First Nations
peopie who allended the Gordon Residential
School,

The Department of Justice has 88 lawyers work-
ing on residential school work throughout the
country, including 15 in Saskatoon. .

Business has heen so brisk here the department

is moving into new offices to accommodate iis -

growing staff.-

Merchant said the government became a lot~

more hardnosed about dealing with the cases at
the end of 1997. Since then, there have been jist a
handful of settlements.

“They demand everything you would demand in
a$5-million fawsuit,” said Merchant.

“They do nothing illegal or anything against the

rules. But what they do is in & sense ismoral, They -

ask a whole series of meaningless, non-productive

questions and they want documentation in meag- _

ingless issves,”

Cherkewich said it’s clear to him the federal

lawyers have begn jostructed to stall.

“These are good lawyers, Before, I've negohated '
seftlements over the phone with them But on this, ]

they don’t hiave the authority o change the toilet
paper jn the bathroom.”
Singer suspects the federal govemment may not

want lltigaﬁon to proceed unul it ha,s worked out a”

Sa)

Bring in an article

depl w1th the chtirches. Ottawa is negotiating with
th¢ Anglican, United, Roman Catholic and
Presbyteuan churches, -

The lawsuits are a major financial burden for
the churches and they want the Zovernment to take
full responsibility. -

And Singer, whosepresents 180 former students,
satd Ottawa may have a darker motive,

*'They are like anybody else who has to pay mon-
ey; They are trying not to pay money. They figure
maybe people will quit, die or go away. They aren’t
being very honest or forthright about.”

* Tupper said the process is also taking longer
t.han normal because the cases deal with complex

issues, an assertion the lawyers dispute,

“We're dealing with things like breach of treaty,
loss of education, language and culture, loss of
companionship of families. You can’t deal with
those over night. There s a ot of stuff to grapple
with.”

Tupper said the government hopes some of the
lawsuits can be seftled through alternative dispute
resolution mechanisms. There are three pilot pro-
Jects under way in Saskatchewan.

' Merchant, for one, is unimpressed.

“1t’s nothing more than a new way to stall and

delay
SASKATOON STARPHOENIX
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Abuse' Process
hurts victims,

Merchant says

: l Continued from A3
.‘ .Tony Merchant, whose Regina-based
; + law firm represents about 5,000 plaintiffs,
: said in the past an increase in the number
:~ of justice lawyers working on the cases has
gn']wentobemoreofalundmcemana

C!

: Merchant has frequeitly complained

RGP

, that Ottawa's “overly litigious, overly

e volv&s a rigbrous éxamination for discov-

ey in. some cases ~— is putting victims
+ through more pain and suffering,

.. “What's really happening is the govern-

B ment is prepared to -spend money on

orgenization would be p: to do be-
cause it’s uneconornical. The government
- has spent $33 million on administration
i+; and $20 million actually paying money to
- First ‘Nations people who suffered the

s e abusa'l"kmsegrossnmnbetsaregross"
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 ‘ing settled more quickly because of recent
: court decisions, some plaintiffs are fun-
+ ping out of ime. -
;:: " Archdeacon Jim Boyles, a kcsper—
i son for the Anglican Church of Canada,
‘. - said lawsuits would be resolved at a quick-
- er rate if the. churches which ran the
,x :+ schools (Catholic, Anglican, Presbytefian
iz. and United) and the government agreed
-+ upén liabifity. -
> ."Last October, Ottawa surprised the
{ : bhumh&shyoﬁ'enngmpay'mpercentof
-; any claims that were settled. -
'I‘hatWasaumlateralmuonbythegOV-
; enunent, szid Boyles. “Qur response has

)
i
i,

1 Jawyered™ validation process —whichin- -

lawyets and mnvestigation that no private .

"~ While Merchant said cases are now be-

BY SUE BANEY, bﬁA\iv'A

Angry native leaderssre
*ing to derail Ottawa'’s’

plan to settle a crushing’

reSll_genual school la

e growing’

cost Ottawa millions i

to save by keepi

sluggish comtsyfs!\:g 2
At current_rates,

the claims would

years and run up

least $2- blllxon

; .

'e‘mbly of First Na-
tions rwdentml schaols survivors
group. X5 .also shamaﬁﬂ, Ted’

- been ‘yes we want to resolve these claims, - Quewezince said,

, “Thé pian fails to address ... . .
hm?{careunablefodothatatmm " many differentkinds of harims suf- - -

- ; fered by childrén in the institu- -
, tods. The government shuu]d be
ashamed of itself.

: Ata heated dos d-d m‘eetlng 5 :-'
- demanded changes. - S

“If they don’t fly, we’ll tell our
i people not to touch it,” Mr. Que-.
wezance said of the faltering deal.

"Vl! Another option miight ' be a -
o class-action lawsuit, led by 19 law
ngzil ﬁrenis across t?oanada, that would
¥ seek,damages for. up to 90,000 for-~
Don't muss an §-page preview Base mer students, he said, - .
rowir The lawsuit, if certified this falt,

ot th

would seek $12-billion from the
}’ government for physipal, samal

and miltural Aamacsc




Monday, June 30, 2003

SASKATOON (CP) — A federal deci-
sion to appoint 32 full-time adjudicators
to help settle residential school law-
suits has been dismissed as “yet anoth-
ér disingenuous stall tactic” by a lawyer
whose firm represents about balf of the
11,500 former students suing Ottawa.

Tony Merchant predicted there will
be long delays before the ad)udlcators

. actually begin work.
. “Victims have learned the govem—
ment is playing games,” said Merchant.
- *They have learned this is just like land
-1.*- claims entitlement, native justice on re-
serves, hunting and fishing rights — it's
stallmg, keep talldng it up like you Te
acmanydomg something.”
* But the man overséeéing the process
‘ said Sunday he’s confident it will be a
legmmate option for phnmffs
“This is a subject thit requires atten-

judge who has headed a

.;and has:éxperience in mediation and
dispute tg%)lnhou«)f’&“" Sty

and fomthought

* tion,"said Ted Hughes, a retired

: Saska
" riumber of Inglrpmﬁe public inquiries "
. think it was worthwhile." - t

¢ “In my Judment; a;’l“at of planning
into this pro- _

RESIDENTIAL SCHOOL LAWSUITS

Merchant dismisses hirings

posal, on the part of the government, the
aboriginal community and the chureh-
es.I'm sahsfied entxrely in the integrity
of the
On June 20, Public Works Minister
‘Ralph Goodale announced Hughes has
agreed to serve for two years as chief
adjudicator for a formal alternative dis-
pute resolution process to deal wnth the
-lawsuits, -

A fiew ad;ﬁdzcanon secretanat wm .

be established in Regina.

Merchant suggested Bughes was ap- |

pointed to give the process ¥ stamp of
legitimacy.
“Mr. Justice Hughes retired from the

- court in 1980. He was appointed to the

court in 1962. So, he’s certainly senior
and elderly, and "of the “highest repute.

**But one wonders how active he’s likely

tobe whenhebeanlascareerﬂyw-s
ago”

‘Bughes,- who is 'Iﬁ, said be wou]dn’t
be involved in the- mmauve lfhe dldn’t

He said be doesn’t ‘plan to move: to
" Regina fromhis'home in- Vxetoru for
the dnratlou of his appointment -

2.
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ASKATOON {0P)--Some dwsuits ing withthieicases. .
fgainstSaélcch;(eWa)x: residential schools ' Regina lawyer, Tony Merchant, says |
are being fast tracked by a Regina judge.  {béy mdyall be t;o:cluded over the next

ight clai ve u "case five months.: .
Eight claims will serve us tests'cases  four or five.months ‘
deali th ard'a suits i i, jaw firm-represents 3,000 former
e S I o obrorasrons T somaty s
ATy ot H’:-"n:th-‘"éqj

it ol

Residential lawsuits fast-tracked

Several Lawsuits against residential schools in Saskaichewan
have been fast-tracked by Regina provincial judge, Justice
Gene Maurice, who met with over 50 law firms involved in
over a thousand abuse claims from former students,

Eight of those claims will act as test cases in order to deal
With the mountain of individual claims that allege abuse at the
hands of residential school staff.

By fast-acking the eight test cases, the courts hope to pre-
pare the framework on which the remaining cases will also be
dealt with.
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. Faced with the progpects of
bankruptey, some of the coun-

3ty’s largest Christian chiwch -

groups could be getting a

hapd from Ottawa in de;m
themselves against mountin,
Jawvsuitsinthe residential schoj

- Asenidrfedcralafficialtold The |

goumal the government is wﬂl
# qumber of key issues tha:

% govmmem estiniates irwill

& to pay-in compensatioh o
former residential school st
deﬂts who claim da? weresex-
hysically an culturally
abused in the more thau, 100
acToly

“schoolstharwere
theommg‘bv the government
andthe cliurthes;

* Church feaders, however, be-
Tieveitwill be asma!lpncempay
given the jnvestments they have
nndemwodongwithaboxmai

“We hﬂve 1ot been given an;
formal notlce of this, but if th:e
ggvlgrnment is serious, then £
abigstep in geding
it
versonof the o
" ‘Cabada,

"it’s very similar to what we've
allalong™
‘Ség "CHURCHES / buck

As other world leaders look on, South African Presitiiit Thabo Mbeki rushes {othea uf
leanoxrdrenonmufsdayhosmppartofclmﬁensspeedﬂrom b!mngawayasﬂveym
2roup photograph.at the 68 Summit at Kananaskis.

Plan for Afresfatle
short of expectatmn

MIKE TRICKEY Imtxahve offers no “The systen
Southatn Newspapers ) !aunched 'f-"ﬁ
GALGARY, new G-81 dl'llg d;mepnmem,mjmn,
Pnc!fed Mémmrh G.—Jgan Chretien, C.O!I_mlltl_, nents :‘*In the t‘:‘mm
coricladed the suminit on "‘"ﬁﬁﬁ‘“l 0éa~.* FUES
ﬁmﬁﬁm‘?ﬁng -a bive- T CU cric - Aftmmbhns
nt evelopment will be remer
p&tathehaﬁedasa"new%?egm African ageinds hijacked | A2
nmgand&eshlmpe for tmpov- An altermabive mediavisw /A3 we have acte:
erished Afticany.” Worth fhe cost JA20 make sure th
But thie G-8 Africa Action Plan, benefits all of 1
as ftisformally Hiled, wasgreer- eraiSecmtaryKoﬁAmananhe the globe and-
ed with muted enthusiasmby Rocky Mountain tesort ‘of should be Jeft i
African$leaders dttending the  Kananasids. e
suramitand roundly criticized as
insdequare byinternarionat aid . - §
groupswoddngin Aftica.” |
Weatem&dwndathlsm

mitment,” s3id Nigerian Presi- Chrerim. whohd pnom:sed, i 'fora
tomakeAfican devidopmentthe -

dent Obasarjo, speak- .

ing on behalf of the fout African cenucpxecebfﬂnq-eswnmxt,~ R
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;(E]hurch bankruptcy still possible, official says-

CHURCHES
Qanmwcd from '.'“

{ fverson was part of the ecu-
Mesica) group that was twmed
dfwrilast year when it asked the
Bleral governmentto give the
dRusches credit for past amd fu-

tawa to back away from its insis-

- tance that the churches pay 30.

pércent of whatever compensa-
o is paid oo former residentizl
sehool victints ot of court. -
:Jhe churchesclaimed that they
dould go bankruptlong before
ndost of the claims were settled
Hyhey agreed to the farmula.

{ That contpensation formula is
palongersetia stone, said Shawn
Thppey, the executive director of
titeQffice of Indian Residenitial
$thools Resolution of Canada,

" Which waszeceutly secup by the

federal government. )

- Hesaid the federal goverrigent
itnow:willing to consider’giving
the ciirches credit for the char-
irable{vork that they have un-
dentaken in the-past andimay do

'i;’i.thafuture,'and negbtiate a

sures that the church groupspay
for wrongs done in the residen-
tiakschool in a wiy that does not
bandrupt them.

“1 don’t want to be taken tog,
Titetally,” said Tupper. .

“We are not pramising that no
part of the church will go bank-
rupt. I doni't think we can make
that promise, But 1 can say that
we want to make sure that their
faith and their institutions con-
tinue to exist.” .

Tupper said a lot has been
learne mme pasucytvwr tawar-
mnta ge in policy.

“The dif!

ficulties ovec the last

few yearshavebeen driven by the

fact that dll of ys-were alittle in

the darle,” said Tipper.
“PDealing with the lawsuits was

all newfor everybodly, and [ tiink *

the morewe've been able toclar-
ify issues, the more we'vebeen
able to overcome suspicion and

mistnust.”
- Catholicchurchrepresesatives
said Tupper’s overtures were
WOSt encouraging. ’
“Several of their organizations
have aiready filed, or anéabout o
file for court protection because

of the mounting legal fees they

have had to pay defeading them-
“neil we see their poposalson

papes, it’s difficult to know how
torespond,” sald Gerry Kelly, a
consultant working with the
Canadian Conferenceaf Catholic
Bishops. -

“But this is good news, and
think we would be willing to go
back to the negotiatin, tiu,wble if
they ate serious about-this.”

Sources say the government
was persuaded to change drs
thinking ou tlie compensation
formula by Anglican Church
leadets who continued to nego-

tare adealwith Otawawhenthe | £¥
ecumenical group di
October.

Minister John M is deter-
minedto seetheresohutionof the
residential school lawsuits ex-
pedited in a way that does not
bring further haro to chunch ar-
j nswhichhave commit-
ted sornuch tinie, moneyand en-
erpy to charitable causes,
“ %A Iot of time has beenlost, but
I don't think it's too latéto.give it

They also saymty Prime

another try," said Rev. Carnillé | §
Piche, head of the Grandin Order | §
of Gathalic Oblates which faces 3

more than 3,000 lawsuits.

“Weneed to have a processthat

is less confrontational, protects

not bankrupt the churches”
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. the agent and
o drenof this family: . )
--As for.any opposltion ftom the bands in closmg the -
. residenhal schools,'a brief research will show it may have

; beenﬁorthe sple- gurpose of the bdnd gaining full control and

-.",ﬁmmmous'nospm atis towerof Weybum,

B8 i--ﬂead_ér@ost‘. -

desné'rved td b'eﬁ

‘ harshly cntlczzed

e “Why are resndenhal schools’ vutues bemg ignored"
Tom Schuck (Létters, Leader-Post,. Sept.2), it's amazmgthe

: amonnt of eriticism and racism that.arises when minority

people -—especially if it’s First Nation people — reveal the -

", terrible ordeal they have experienced at the hands of author
ity figures. -

. In this case, xt’s xmfortunnte that someone remembered
. thathed:dwellmthh:scwansmhndergamnschool,then .
" -decided to-write'an article at the expense of victims. ou
" hearsay and second-hand information in trying to contradiet-.
.. the obvious truth.of harrible abuse suffered by the majority - -
- of First Nation people in those rehgous-andgovemm-t—mn .
- .fesidential schools. .. .: -
.+ - - From-the years, 1946-1954, 1 was 2 survivor of those said.
. schoolsand,xfmymemoxysavesmewen,tberewerb .
. few children from my reserve who were notforcedtoattend,
" residential school -Any opposition froi our parents was met -.
.- with threats of incarceration by the government Indian agent . .
- . and Jocal RCMP: I’msm'etlnswasmesamemmuononmost_

reservations. However, I doTemember one.family that-was

. '-abletowcapeﬁ'omsa:dschobl.wbentheyleﬁmthemxddle'
L otu;emg.\tandwenttnhvemlworkona&m :

" Fottunately for-them, the white farmer was able to fend off

t of these schools. However, many reserves

managemen .
" “@ecided it worild be in the best iiiterest of so many to demol- .
lsh their resldentia.l school.s and. perbaps the nightmares '

* Today, :he:e are some memo:ials standmg on vacant sxtes. '

_in memory of such aitragedy, -
- Afithe discovéry hearing of the Fust Nahon resxdentlal

. '-school lawsuits; the government lawyers ave amazed at the
. aemracyandsxmﬂanﬁeaofatmewentsshmd by the many

survivors they have heard thusfar. The rumour is sonie of said

"-lawyers bave simply quit their role in these lawsuiis when |
’ they culd no Ionger stand to hear those true stories of abuse;

, the First-Nation people are well aware of their

" ‘ordeal and that it would be presumptuous of any ambition on

their part 1o usé these 1awsuits and the govemmentas a cash
‘cow, They.are also well aware that the governmeént is simply

_.walting for them to die off in order to save on.compensation.
‘So whenyou think abiout it, it's really the government that is

guilty of using the taxpayers’ money as a cash cow. It has
already paid out a tremendous amount of money to its

’ Jaw;rersandadmnlsﬁ:honﬂuthllbealotmonthanany

on it intends to pay out.

Iamqmtesnmtheselawyerswxuiotbespendmgthen

money in any small towns and communities bordering the
reservations. So,instead of condemning First Nations people

»and their lawsuits, other Canadians should be supporting
their cause. In turn, they will probably. beneﬂt from cus-
‘, tomarsmﬂlcomnensaﬂonm oney. -

And if Schuck stili thinks that 10,000 survivors of the
residential schools. ali got together in a big conspiracy. to.
“defrand: the government; then he should do us a favour by

simply walking arotind the corner and admiting himselfin to -

. GEORGE YOUNG
Airdne.AB

police whzn ﬁ:ey tned to apprehend the chil- - 1
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Settlements takmg too long &
in abuse program: lawyer. :z

how
REGINA (SN - Crtics conténd i B tims are coming 2wy worth the delay;” be said. “They (the adja- 200 1"
not exactly the speedy justice pmnused. : wnh a sense that they dicators) should be saying to the govem- claim™
but a program aimed at accelerating settl . were heard ment, we're going to go ahead with this ~ T |

memofabuseclaunsfromCanadashdl .
- an residential schools is putting cash into
victims’ hands, says the man in charge.

1 think it's been very sucoessful” said

pna&ely Merchant smediation . without those records. Have gagard
said. them in a reasonable time, . . . Ifit's not quarte
Buthebehevesalot readily available, it’s pmbably not impor- %}'

of goodwill was erod- tant” he argued. - icatio

“Ted Hughes, chief adjudicator in the Indi- |4 il e by the delay in Nicole Dauz, spokesperson for Indian

an Residential Schools Adjudication Sec- {5 1 starting the program. Residential Schools Resolution Carada deceit,
retariat. His Regina-based office oversees “When the program (IRSRC), said when the program was an- tising
the Alternative stpute Resolution (ADR) 7

came out, there was nounced, applicants were told (o expect a sprvice
process. “This is giving people a chance to enthusmsm by us and others to try it. Of nine-month wait for a hearing. “Nine monthlz
come out and tell thexr story and start fo cmnse,aywwmtbeforeyuucmldtry months is still a imely option,” she said. charged
feel better about the process and.heal. -it” *The government has always been consis- g qua.r{
That's why the program-was launched,. - With 90 pcr cent of the 12,000 residen- tently clear that altemative methods of res- Wednes
coupled with it being ap’ aiternate to 2 tml scbool lawsuits uoresolved after 16 ofution will include some level of valida-  Tejus|
corplicated court case.” g laintiffs dying, Ottawa un- tion,” she added. confixm|
In the year since jons for ADR valed the $1.7-bilion, seven-year pro-  Hughes temains o tnmstxc the process the clasd
became available and vemomﬂ:saﬁenhe gram in December 2002 o fast-track will speed up mmpYanswh\remorere- The
first case was heard, 27 decisions have claims. But applications weren’t availsble searchers. 'nvelve ‘nore adjndicators are poged
been rendered, with awards ranging from until November 2003. A mouth later, the also being added to the existing 38 be- 3 clas
$500 to $166,000. Another 24 have been first one arrived in Ottawa and about '950 canse ‘Hughes wants more with an aborig- said the
heard and are awaiting decision. Among have since Followed. hcants who are inal background.

the 27 awards, 13 have accepted, one  elderly ormﬁulmg mexve pnqnty Some survivors have worried ADR m 4

yerson withdrew, 10 claimants have yetto ~— curesily about 300 won't - provide - sufficient compensauon An i
decide, and reviews are pending in three.  Yet only 78- ag&}g;:nons ‘iave feached co to the couts. - . pnlsg

“I think the percentage of acceptance of the adjudication Hughesisalsodis- ‘- ADR awards for less severe physmal £5S stang
the gwards § Peaksreasonab!y well for the appotated with the pace, but said the delay abuse and wrongful confinement are Jion this
satisfaction,’ Hughes maintained. ADR is out of his bands because it originates in capped at $3,500. For severe physical gp 1
takes an mformial proach,mthanaver— Ottawa where federal researchers amass abuseandallsexualamse,tlwmaxxmumb
age hearing lasung four hours. They've the claimant’s records before sending the is $245,000 in British Columbia, Ontari
been held in claimant’s homes or at hospi- file to adjudication. and the Yikon {where court awards have
tal bedsides and have included smudge “As soon as the cases come here, theyre generally been highex) and $195,000 else-
ceremonies at claimants’ requests assigned that same day,” he added. The where,

Regina lawyer Tony Merchant, whose first case reached his office in April;and  Awards in the nearly 1 ,300 out-of-court
firn represeats some 6,800 residential the first hearing followed in May. setﬂcments (excluding the current ADR |
school claims, said the gwards Seem rea-  Merchant confends more should be ) range from $700 to $314,813.
sonable and his few clients who have used done to speed things up, e courts have rendered judgments in |
ADR have been mostly satisfied. ““The question shouid be why in the hell only 19 cases, involving 29 claimants,

- “The mediators are handling the ex- are you finding all of these records be- with awards from zero to $250,000. © -
Jaangc of knowledge well, and the vic- canse lt’s not wonh the money and it’s not (REGINALEADER—POSI‘)

—_— = > "
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villages have disappeared / B1

FEDERAL ELECTION

Linasay Lorur
is February’s
Vanity Fair
covergirl, but
she's no fan of the
magazine’s story
about her.

A9

vorry aboriginals

scrap Liberals’ First Nations deal for their own

ONES AND SPEED BUMPS

TTAWA. (CP) — Aboriginal
groups are bristling over
tke Conservative finance
eritic’s statement that the
Tories would ignore a $5.2-
billion deal to improve
housing and health care for native com-

_ munities.

In an interview with a Saskatchewan
radio station,

Monte Solberg
said a Conserv-
ative govern-
ment would not
live up to the
agreement,
reaghed in Nov-
ember.

“The) Kel- MVIORE INSIDE
owna agree- B Mayor Pat Fiacco
ment is wants to know
-sg}meﬁ?z thlag what parties will
(the Liberals i
i:raﬁed 2t the dofor Regina.

ast moment on Page
the 1gack ofha B2
napkin on the s <
eve of an elec- W ﬁomp%t?m
tion,” Solberg 9

told radio sta- saying how

tion CJWW on promls&s will be
Monday. -paid for.

“We're not
going to honour Page B6

that. We will
have our own plan that will help natives
alot more than the Liberals’.”

Metis National Council president
Clement Chartier said the statement is
of concern to all who took part in craft-
ing the deal. “This just shows that the
Conservatives have little to no respect
or appreciation for aboriginal peoples,”

Mnrkincm anid 3n o rtatamont
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Debate
yets nasty

By ELIZABETH THOMPSON
CanWest News Service

ONTREAL ~- The federal election campaign took a
for the nasty Tuesday with charges of scandal and cor-
ion flying fast and furious as the leaders of Canada’s
apolitical parties met for thejr final debate.
. what was easily the most vigorous and aggressive of
‘our debates for the Jan, 23 election, sparks flew among
-eaders as they accused each other of being tainted and
a1able to bring about the kind of change that Canadians
seeking. However, the debate also forced the leaders
some slippery moral ground, such as how they wonld
ile the thorny questions of decriminalizing marijuana
whether dying patients should be allowed to choose as-
« suicide.
om the opening statements, it was clear that no holds
» barred with Bloc Quebecois Leader Gilles Duceppe
ising both Paul Martin's Liberals and Stephen Harper's
servatives of being dogged by scandal.
“he scandal of Option Canada shows that the Liberals
the Conservatives aren't different. They deliberately
1sed publie funds and broke Rene Levesque’s rules on
iscites. If the sponsorship scandal was a Liberal scan-
Option Canada is a federal scandal, When Quebec’s as-
tions are at stake, for the Liberals and the
iervatives, anything goes.”
arper characterized the Liberals as corrupt and the
as impotent.
‘or Quebecers watching tonight: there’s a choice be-
1 a corrupt party, and perpetual opposition,” said
yer. “This is the only government which is continually
g investigated by the police.”
Quebecers want change, they have a better chance of
ng it by voting for Conservatives who will sit around
:abinet table than for the Bloc which will never be part
jovernment, he said.
rper countered Duceppe on his conteuhon that Con-
stives were corrupt because prominent Tories were in-
»d in the Council for Canadian Unity which had close
to Option Canada, saying federalists have a right to
for Canada and that fighting for Canada is not a crime.
{r. Duceppe says that anyone who defends federalism
rrupt and that’s not true, It's not a crime to defend fed-
smizs Quebec.”
artin sought to attack both the Conservatives and the
at the same time, saying the Bloe would be nowerless
’p a Harper government from scrapping the Kyoto pro-
or getting Canada involved in the war in Iraq.
he Bloc can't stop this slide to the right”
en the NDP got info the act, sending missives to re-
:r5 during the debate, pointing out that the Conserva-
had their own share of scandals when they were in

;sday's debate also marked the first time that all four
'leaders have been ninned down on their nasitione nn

FROM Al

Tories

Centinued from Page Al

“Mr. Solberg conveniently ignores
that over 14 months of consultations
and negotiations led up to the Kelow-
na agreement.”

The deal was reached just days be-
fore Prime Minister Paul Martin
called the Jan. 23 election.

- Just weeks after helping achieve the
agreement, Assembly of First Nations
Grand Chief Phil Fontaine suggested
aboriginals would be best served by
voting Liberal or NDP, but not Conser-
vative, to ensure the deal moves
ahead.

In an interview Tuesday, Solberg
said a government led by Stephen
Harper should not be obligated to live
up to an agreement reached by Paul
Martin’s Liberals.

“We don’t feel bound toit,” he said.

“A Conservative government would
want to have a look at the agreement,
and we're not going to commit to every
1ast bit of it without having any input
intoit”

However, the party’s Indian Affairs
critic, Jim Prentice, disagreed with
Solberg.

“We support the targets and objec-
tives that were defined in Kelowna,”
Prentice told The Canadian Press.

“The five- and 10-year plans that
were talked about at Kelowna are the
way to go.”

‘What Prentice has an issue with is
the notion that $5.2 billion will be
spent without determining how the

“The issue surrounds the ambiguity -

on the finance plan,” he said,

“There was quite a bit of uncertain-
ty at the close of Kelowna on where
the $5 billion would come from and
how it would be allocated and spent,
and over what period of time.” .

When pressed, Solberg would not
say the Tories would scrap the deal al-
together.

However, he did say the Conserva-
tives would want to meet again with
aboriginal groups before deciding the
fate of the agreement,

“How extensively you would have to
go back, 1don’t know,” Solberg said.

“But clearly we want input on some-
thing like this. That's the responsible
approach.”

Solberg’s statements are indicative
of the real nature of the Conservitive
party's policy ideas, said Indian Af-

fairs Minister Andy Scott.

“It does reveal the true intent be~
hind the Conservatives on aboriginal
issues,” he said.

“What other hidden agenda items
are we going to fing out about?”

Scott was especially upset by Sol-
berg's suggestion that the Kelowna
agreement was penned just as an elec-
tion was loomi

“To suggest that this was done at the
last minute ... reveals their complete
absence of respect for the process that
communities across the country were
engaged in," said Scott. :

“The accord’s loss for the (aborigi-
nal) commumty and the conntry,

cautions like amber lights, radar
speed signs, or crossing guards in
school zones, Dion said the speed
bump is the only device that could
offer 24-hour protection,

But Kelly Wyatt, a senior engineer
for traffie and cafoty in Radina - eaid

money will be distributed. would be tragic”
FROM A1 FROM A1 .
Baking MRIs .
Continued from Page A1 Continved from Page Al
- “1don’t want another parent to The new MRI1 is twice as East as
feel how my wife and I felt.” the older unit, which will shorten
Dion has already spoken to his waiting lists, said Dwight Nelson,
MLA, and plans on taking the cause . CEO of the Regina Qu’Appelle
" -to city hall once his daughter has re- Health Region.
covered from her injuries. In additien, some pecp!q eurt
Although some people have sug- rently requiring a general anesthet-
gested developing other safety pre- ie before a scan will no longer need

it, and others will need much less
anesthetic because they will be in
the machine for a shorter time, he
said.

The new MRI will also be able to
scan the vascular system, from the

haart tn the tnoe in nno enan in.
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Canada's
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Quebec history have ever been removed
from the beach. Richard Therrien was
dismissed in 1996 for concealing his
criminal past as an FLQ sympathizer
from the provincial government when
he was appointed to Quebec Superior
Court. A part-time municipal court
judge was unseated in 2003

$80-million fees payout in

residential schools scandat

Canada’ class action bar is likely still
marveling at news of the record-break-
ing $80-million payout for legal fees
tentatively agreed to by the federal
government for lawyers representing
Aboriginal “survivors” of church-run
residendial schools.

Half of that monpey, $40 millios, goes
to Regina-based Merchant Law Group,
according to the draft 2gecement given
to news media in May. Tony Merchant,
Q.C., all bue sealed his fiem’s monuwmen-
tal settlement after a 2005 Supreme
Count of Canadz win on behalf of one
such client, which roled Ortawa was
liable to the tune of $350,000 for
abuse suffered by that individval in-a
residential school. The Merchant fitm
also represents about 9,000 otbers in a

class proceeding — about half of all
claimants, says the firm. ’

The firm has about 50 Jawyers spread
throughout 14 offices, mostly in Western
Canada but alse one in Montréal.
According to reports, Merchant said his
firm invested about $2 million in the
case and that some of his lawyess
went without any compensation during
the decade-long lifecycle of the file.
And, it seems class actions are big
business for the firm. Its Web site lists
at least 15 ongoing proceedings, ranging
from actions involving Celebrex to
Hollinger/Conrad Black to Zonolite
asbestos insulation.

The aging survivoss of the residential

" schools will get about $30,000 each,

according to the draft agreement. A
national consortium of lawyers will
share in the reimaining $40 million pay-
out for legal fees. The $80 million
fee package is believed to be the
fargest cver tecorded for a Canadian
class action case. Law firms involved in
the tainted blood scandal in the lasc
decade shared a $47 million legal fee
in the setdements for those infected
with Hepatitis C through infected
blood products.
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. Former residential school students

$22.5 millilon; program costs $73.8
million | :

by Adrienns Fox-Keeais
adriennef@wawatay.on.ca

the respond equitebly

10,000 claimaiits who had Med clalms of abuse against the govemnment of
Canada,.” That iist has grown to move than 12,000, while only 1,117
settiements with former studerts have been reached. Nicale Dauz, the senfor
communications officer for the deparkment, said that ko date, *The govern

ti2s spent nore than $60 million on Indian residential school settlemants.”
However, “Litigation is growing faster than the government can settle daims,”
Dawz sald. *Today, there gre over 12,000 individuals seeldng compensation
from the cotrts for abusa dating back over a pariod of $6 years, ang it could
take another S0 yaars for all those cases to work thek way through the courts.”
AS 3 solution to the growing volume of claimants, the government launched its
formal alternative dispute resciution option In November 2003, “designed as a
humane appioach to seidiing outstanding claims mn a fair, Smely and effective
fashion.” AL that time, Goodale sald the voluntary process was an sltermative 1o
Iigetion and out-ot-court settlements. It also promised to ®cffer imely
settlements and payments for validated dalms of sexual and physical abusa
and wrongf) confinement.” Dauz sald the program's success ¢an be weighted
by the simple fact “that mate former students are gathering the tourage to
come forward and speak about tiwir experiences.” It's & positive fact, she sald,
“cartainly not an Indication that the departront has not been effective.” Dauz
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§ tics. 1t i3 3 question of when.”

Although prepared for a closed
mieeting of the council last May,

the 51-page paper, “Open Courts,
Electronic Access to Court

such policies be as consistent as
possible throughout Canada.”

In an executive summary, the
subcommittee credits “the

et e s e g
ctes, JTAC bas concluded that it
would be inappropriate for it to
recommend a model policy.

see CJC p.3 '

Saskatchewan Court of Appeal grants

court of appeal has
invoked a provision ic the
Supreme Court Act to require
the Supreme Court of Canada to
review one of the appeal court’s
own decisions.

In a unanimous decision,
threa judges of the Saskat-
chewan Court. of Appeal found
that, in the words of the Act's
s. 37, “the question involved in
the appeal is one that ought to
be submitied to the Supreme
Court for decision.” *

In May.'2001, a provincial
Court of Queen's Bench jndge
awarded Native plaintiff H.L.,

In a rare move, a provincial

damages of $407,000 — the,

highest award ever granted in a
residential schoo] case. But in
December 2002, the appeal cowrt
cut the award to $86,000 by
removing coropensation for past
and future earnings. The court
also held the federal government
liable, even though H.L. was not

3

:

yage on the real
il i be needed.

eal.com tileplus.ca -

B A et o)

a resident at the Gordon's Day
School when an employee of the
s:fhool, William Starr, molested

"In January, H.L.s lawyer,
Tony Merchant of Merchant Law
‘Group in Regina, made an appli-
cation under s. 37, suggesting
that the appeal court require the
Supreme Court to answer two
questions: K

1) What is the correct stan-
dard of review of the appellate
court of a province, and is thgt
standard different for the appel-
1ate court, of Saskatchewan?

2) Did the Saskatchewan
Court of Appeal misapply that
standard regarding: (a) expert
witneases (b) pecuniary dam-
ages?

Merchant told The Lawyers
Weekly he chose to take the
unusual move instead of seeking
leave from the Supreme Court
for more than one reason.
“Lawyers have not gone to their
courts of appeal and asked for
leave to appeal, to some extent

Conpooy,

‘cddog et b ad oo
@ Rogitwed bndeverk of ineyen” Prokessione! indienty Compony.

o

{anedy Cwio g ool In Abaty, rsaket
e v Unoion b, of /04805734 fo loviion, Pewe

ilesy Hﬂt-yhﬂblh

Tnds

ool M
Moot

«

L T R O N N Y |

- rare leave to appeal its own decision

because they thought their
courts of appeal would say,

. *We're right and why should we

grant you leave? " he said.

"I thought that because some
people said, ‘Aren’t you taking
quite a risk by applying to the
Court of Appeal and not to the
Supreme Court, because you
only have 60.days to apply to the
Supreme Court?” :

For one thing, he had no doubt
that if the appeal court thought
the further appeal had merit,
“they would send it to the
Supreme Court without any per-
sonal considerations,” he said. .

see APPEAL p.19
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Section IIT - Performance Discussion .
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Indisn Residential Schools Resolution Canads seeks o enthance residential scheol -
. survivor well-being by addressing and resolving issues arising from the legacy of the

" “To secomplish this, the Departmet will sirengthen ts partnérships within Government
and with Aboriginal organizations, religious denominations knd other citizens.

. : ) ' . e’

" One of the biggest challenges facing the Department is finding the most effective process
to manage and respond fairly and swiftly to the more than 10,000 claimants who have ta
date filed claims of abuse, while at the same time remaining accountable to Canadians,

i

' - — " . -
~ Indian Residential School Claimants
10.294 as of March 31, 2002 ’

625

@ 198, lll 0 g °
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\ Tertory of Province J

2001-2002 Departmental Performance Reptt 9
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l* Department of Justice Ministére de 1a Jostice
Canada

Canpda
Access to Information and Privacy Office Tolephone:  (613) 952-8361
275 Sparks Street, 9th Floor . Facsimile:  (613)957-2303
Orawa, Ontarie
Canada
ax ks PROTECTED
SENT BY EMAIL

Your file: 089622
Qur file; A-2005-00111/nr

October 12, 2005

M. Darcy R. Merkur
Thomson Rogers
Barnisters and Solicitors
Suite 3100, 390 Bay Street
Toronto, Ontario

MSH 1W2

Dear Mr. Merkur:

This letter is further to your request of August 30, 2005, filed under the Access to Information
Act to obtain:

Baxter v. The Attorney General of Canada

a} information with respect to Department of Justice resources used 1o defend  *
and respond to claims brought by Indian Residential School survivors,
including, but not limited to, the number of lawyers assigned to work on
Indian Residential School files (by years 2000 to present), the total costs
assorialed with Department of Justice lawyers and administrative staff’
working on Indian Residential School files (again by years 2000 through to
present) and any other information as to total costs associated with the
defence of Indian Residential School claims by years 2000 to present.

l Ags per your telephone conversation with Nancy Rhéaume of this office on October 7, 2005, I am
‘ pleased to enclose two of the documents relevant to your request, which are released in their
entirety (2 pages). 1 understand that you requested that these two charts be sent to you by email as
a prelminary release. As agreed, you will review the enclosed records and confirm with Ms.
Rhéaume whether or not this completes the processing of your request.

Should you not be satisfied with the enclosures, and wish s to continse processing your request,
we are informed that the Office of the primary interest has assessed a search of 16 hours in order
to obtain the complete material at issue subject to this request. Therefore, charges for search
activities have been assessed at $110.00 as authorized imder section 11 of the Access fo
Information Act. Please note that the cost of processing for the first five hours will be bome by
the Department and has already been deducied from the total cost. Please refer to attachment.
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Consequently, should you wish us to pursue the matter further, I would ask that you forward to
this office, within 15 days of this notice, a cheque or money order in the amount of $110.00
payable to the Receiver General for Canada.

Please note that we will put your request in abeyance uﬂtil we receive further instructions from
you. If we have not received a reply by October 27, 2005, we will be closing this file. Should
you wish to discuss your request, do not hesitate to contact me at (613) 941-9522.

Pleass be advised that you are entitled to complain to the Information Commissioner concerning
the processing of your request within one year from the date when it was received in this Office
(September 6, 2005). In the event you decide to avail yourself of this right, your notice of
complaint should be addressed to:

Information Conmnissioner
Tower B, Place de Ville
112 Kent Street, 22nd Floor
Ottawa, Ontario

KiA183

Sincerely,

Kerri Clark
Director

Encl.




Bl ot oy one FEE STATEMENT
gy Onat A-2005-00111 / NR

K1A OH8
Fax: (613 957-2303

To: Mr. Darcy R. Merkur : Pate: October 12, 2005
_ Thomson Rogers

Barristers and Solicitors

Suite 3100, 390 Bay Street

Toronto, Ontario

MSEH 1W2
Date Description Unit Cost Quantity Total
Yyyrmm-od

2005/009/08  Applcation fees . $5.00 1 $5.00
20050906  (Deposit - AppRcation fees) . - {$5.00)
2005/0/12  Searching $10.00 por br % $160.00
20051012 (Less 5 free hours) {$50.00)
Balance Owing: $110.00
Detach here and refurn to the above address. o : __:-2-0;530—1-1;7;1;

[t wish 0 abandon vy taquest

] 1wish torevise my request (see stizched).
[ 1wish o ceview tha recoris st your office and avaid paying the phatocopy foe. Speclty office:

D Plesse {ind enciosed a cheque for §, pay 1o the Recsh for Canada.
Signature, Tie: : , e+ e e
Date: Telephome:. . ... . ... . [ O,

Depsrtment of Jusice Canada A-2005-0011¢ /NR nﬁt}atm
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IRS Lawyer FIE Utilization data 1999-2000 to 2004-2005 with forecast for 2005-2006

Annual Lawyer FTE Utilization

In response to ATIP mquest A-2008-00111 7 nr deted September 8, 2008:

v YT o 1 Yo
_ﬁ_._h\c A a_.o....!c ......x!n I,.!.x
0 3L6rswrtutere @ falall Lo

“information with repict to Department of Justice resowrves wred o dofind and respord to sleient brought by Indian Ratidential Sehool survivors, inclwding, but uot limdted to, the number

- of lawycrs assigned to work on Indian Residential School Bles (by years 2000 to present), ti. letal casts arsaciated with Department of Justice Hwyrs and

administrative staff working on Indian Residintiel School files (ugain by yeurs 2000 through 1o present) and any atber inforsration as o totul costs assoviated with the Qifenss of Indian

Besidintial School claims by years 2000 to pressnt”

1599 - 2000 2000 - 2000 2001 - 2002 2002:2003 T003-2004 2004-2005 V2005-2006
Noof No of Noof Noof Noof Naof No of
Offfces: _n...ﬁa.1 Lawyers h»..N.owa g&- Lawyers Lawyers .F.Eﬁ
ADAG [ [ ¢ [ 03 1.p3 al
DIAND Legal Services LSU 224 283 [ o 0 ¢ o
{indian Resideadat Schools LSU ¢ S48 211 299 456 285 232
[Adande 0.60 103 140 a3 218 2ps 228
Clvi? Lidgudon 0.00 000 .00 175 102 1y 117
Pullic Law o.00 2.00 .00 [ 4 0 oy /32 ]
Onuatfo 243 24t .26 13.89 .43 174 4.4
Quebec 021 0.2t 050 022 (7 [ 0335
|Bdmonion 277 1357 1264 1359 1933 2196 17.62
L) 1384 2.722 2274 3035 0.4 29. 2606
Winoipeg 150 135 454 522 879 .8 1144
Vancouver - : 15 1215 sﬂal.m‘ g 17,68 1947 ) .2&.%"
Toial Lawyets for all Offices: 9.9 66.55 8263 10179 103, 110) 10934

*Annugl forecast as at Junte 30, 2005

Prapared by: D.J. wL‘_,n_. (804) 775-8515

oo
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+5 Annual Qltect Coats.associateg-with the;IR8 business,line:(Saly
In response to ATIP request A-2005-00141 / ne detad Baptember B, 2005:

3. IR Expenditur, date 1999:2000 t'2004-2005.wiih fofscaRtfori0ngadigs:’ iy

"information with tespect to Dapartment of Justice resources used to defend and respond to claims brought by indian Residental School survivors, inch Wding, but not limited to,
the number of tawyars asxigned lo work on Indian Residential School fles (by years 2000 to present), the total costs assaciated with Department ofJustioe lawyers and

administrative staff working on lndtan Residential 8chool flles {again by years 2000 through to present) and any other information 83 10 tola) colsts associated with the
defence of Indlan Residantial Schoo! claims by years 2000 to presan®

) "%ﬁ
{Region IRS Litigation i
ADAG's Office $ - 1is - 1s - _|s - 18 885208  sd0p41(s$ 952,528
[ADoriginal Law & Sualegic POITY (ALSF) j o
$ - 13 - 13 - 1s - 1s - s L is 127,181
€ Jo0i81(§ - 3961448 748 % - 13 PR ] C -
(Formerly IR Un}t - Qttawa and IRS Unit - B
- 1,104,011 1,289,196 1,124,344 1,119,398 1,262,511 1,494,372
T Z 18 -1 96,973 187,543 126,853
200 181 1802.155 T 318,502 172430 1, 2,011.tw:' 3099.912
17.184 1057 268,408 244,838 A78 a1 =0T
55 Gl Alfales DIreciorsts . TBAI. 7 WhTI5 s 90250 95 84,236
3 - 725,438 418,158 | 3 535,463 1,568,677 2137601 2,400,585 2,393,425
Edmanton 754,797 1,680,043 T,837.400 1,937,563 2,598,308 - -
Calgary $ - 1% S & - |5 - 18 - 13 - |$ .
Seskatocn $  4T72,751($ 280402008 3027214|§  3,784268($ 4589973 % - |s .
Winnipeg $ 188783 |$ 44751315 4909803  601,384{$ 1,103,008|$% - s .
272431118 4640485 5,084,804 6,323,175 8,201,377 9,136,068 0,104,248
1.419.433 1,631,608 2,146,300 2,650844 |5 3,087.497 3,618,383 4,448,731 |
Whitehorse - - - . - . -
Yollowknife & fnuvik 3 1,1571% - 13 - 18 -1 - Is ST .
. $ 1,1871% AL - .18 - 13 - 13 - 18 -
$ =13 - {5 SRR K 3 ~ IS 17,028 T s 5,882 1
5 - 13 - Is - |8 19350618  347092|5  3e2hsols 336,805
3 43a7620(% B68IGoN0 |8 80011208 11280753]% A0S 15018 § e
$ - 13 - I3 - Is =18 - 1s - 13 :
3 13 L 3 % e 1S -
P S R L ) S L IO 35 00,370,085 A mwmm i s seozr 20 [ - 18652000

Prapared by: Deboreh Frangs, Seplambar 2005
(604) 775.-6515

OO,
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the affidavit of DexALs 0 M. SUTERRSNGE

swomn bafore me this_&™___day of

Adest A.D. 20,06
(
A sionar for Oaths

in and for
the Province of Oatarie

S

) Being a Solicitor
&ff/’l’fv 7 (l?l.(_ Blpn

/fﬁl’&f}ﬂ f /:,‘; ‘e, TeR




.......

Table 1: Departmental Planned Spending and Full Time Equivaiems—

Fonu:nt ]ﬂnnufd_ Planned  Plenned
" Spending Spending Spending  Spending
(S millions) 2004-2(!)5 2008-2006 2006-2007 2007 20082

Claims Resolution . 99.8 1211 153.5 -
Budgetary Main Bstimates (gross) 998 1211 153.5 -
Total Main Estimates 998 1211 1535 -
Forecasted lapse* . 170 - - -
‘otal Planned 228 121,1 153.5 -
28 121.1 1535 -

82 88 86 -

51.0 129.9 162.1 . -

175 198 215 -

. Baflects the best forecaat of lapsed bndgatary Main Betimates for the fscal yess.

Planned spending is expected to increass over the planning period as a result of the increase in
opmﬁonﬂmqukmnunemurywmppmmefuuﬁnplmmﬁmofaﬂpmmmﬂnﬂm

National Resohition Framework, incloding the Coramemoration program expecied to be
iaunched in 2005-2006 and otbzrprogtamssuchastlwADRpmcess and the IRS Mental Health
Snpports program whick are currently uoderway.

The Department continues to improve its delivery mechanisims for the ADR process and
continues to look for new ways to achieva even greater efficiencies in the curvent process. Asa
result, it is expected that the sumber of ADR hearings, and nltimately the number of seftlements,
will increase significantly over the planming period,

2 Funding for the 2007-2008 fiscal year will be the sobject of a Treasury Board submission
following the formative evaluation of the National Resolution Framework that will be reported to
Cabinet in the 2006-2007 fizcal vesr,

-15.
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Departnyent of Justice Ministére de fa Justice
Canada. Cupada

234 Webington Street Telephoue: {613)998-1483
East Tower, Rooms 1001 Fax: (613) 941-5879.
Dotario

Qutea,
R1AOHS

December 21, 2005
Qur File Number:  2-366522

Distribution List

Re: Residential Sehools
Dear Sir/Madam:

As vou may be aware, the Agreement mPrmcxpie of November 20, 2005 requires that the
final settlement be spproved by courts in seven jurisdictions at the provincial, tercitorial
and federal levels. It provzdes thiat the agreemént will be implemented ﬁollsumz those
approvals, and the expiry of an opt out period, as provided in ali ¢lasy action leg;slaimm

Pending the implementation of the setilement, Jitigation is expectéd to continue in the
normal cowse throngh discoveries, and to seitlement, without prejudice to any rights
which acerue as 2 result of the overall settlement envisaged by the AYP. In specific cases,
it may be necessary to make particular arrangements in order to ensure that the overall
settlement is not adversely affected by ongoing litigation. Counsel should feel fiee fo
contact the Department of Justice counsel having carriage in order to discuss any specific
issues or matters which arise.

Yours truly,

%A

Vickery
Senior General Counsel
Civil Litigation Branch

Canadf

00452



CHARLES BAXTER et al. v. ATTORNEY GENERAL OF CANADA et al. Court File No.: 00-CV-192059CP

ONTARIO
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE

Proceeding commenced at Toronto

Affidavit of Donald I. M. Outerbridge
(sworn August 8, 2006)

Merchant Law Group

#100, 2401 Saskatchewan Drive
Regina, Saskatchewan, S7H 4P8
Telephone: (306) 359-7777
Fax: (306) 522-3299

Solicitors for the Plaintiff

¢5v00
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Court File No. # 29762

ONTARIO
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE

BETWEEN:

MARLENE C. CLOUD, GERALDINE ROBERTSON, RON DELEARY, LEO
NICHOLAS, GORDON HOPKINS, WARREN DOXTATOR, ROBERTA HILL,
J. FRANK HILL,

SYLVIA DELEARY, WILLIAM R. SANDS, ROSEMARY DELEARY, and
SABRINA YOLANDA WHITEYE

Plaintiffs
-and -

THE ATTORNEY GENERAL OF CANADA, THE GENERAL SYNOD OF
THE ANGLICAN CHURCH OF CANADA, THE INCORPORATED SYNOD
OF THE DIOCESE OF HURON and THE NEW ENGLAND COMPANY
Defendants

AFFIDAVIT

I, Paul Vogel, of the City of London, in the County of Middlesex, MAKE OATH
AND SAY AS FOLLOWS:

1. [ am a partner in the law firm of Cohen Highley LLP which, together with
Koskie Minsky LLP, are the solicitors for the plaintiffs in this action. The
information contained in this affidavit is based on my personal knowledge
except to the extent that I rely upon information provided to me by my
partner, Russell Raikes, in which case I so indicate and verily believe it to

be true.

2. In May, 1997, Cohen Highley LLP was retained by the plaintiffs to act for
former students and the families of former students who attended the

Mohawk Institute Residential School (hereafter “Mohawk School™).
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3. Shortly after we were retained, a Steering Committee was formed. The

purpose of the Steering Committee was as follows:

a. To provide us with instructions as needed for the prosecution of this
action;
b. To keep members of the class informed within their respective

aboriginal communities.

4. The Steering Committee included all of the representative plaintiffs except
Yolanda Whiteye, as well as other interested former students and family
members who were prepared to make the necessary commitment of time.
Yolanda Whiteye resides in Windsor and was unable to attend the
meetings; however, her mother, Barb Whiteye is a former student who did

attend and participate in Steering Committee meetings.

5. Although the composition of the Steering Committee changed from time to
time as some members died or became ill, the core of the Steering

Committee remained essentially the same throughout this action.

6. I verily believe that the decision to bring this action, to continue it and to

settle it was made with the concurrence and at the direction of the Steering

Committee.
The Action
7. This action was commenced by statement of claim issued October 5, 1998

at London, Ontario. Attached hereto and marked as exhibit “A” to this my

affidavit is a true copy of the original statement of claim.




10.

11.

12.

13.

300456

In the statement of claim, the plaintiffs claimed, inter alia, damages arising
from their attendance as children at the Mohawk School where they were

provided with inadequate care and supervision, mistreated and abused.

The Mohawk School was an Indian Residential School located in
Brantford, Ontario. The students who attended the school were largely
drawn from various First Nation communities located in Southwestern

Ontario and the Georgian Bay Region as well as Northern Quebec.

The defendants named in the statement of claim were the Government of
Canada, the Diocese of Huron and the General Synod of the Anglican
Church of Canada. After the action was commenced and before the
certification motion, we determined that we lacked sufficient evidence to
pursue the claim for damages as against the General Synod. As a result, we
entered into an agreement with counsel for the General Synod that the
action as against the General Synod would be discontinued without
prejudice to the plaintiffs’ right to reassert that claim at a future date should

additional evidence become available.

In addition, we learned that the Mohawk School was originally owned and
operated by the New England Company which leased the school to the
Government of Canada starting in 1922. We added the New England

Company as a defendant.

Attached hereto and marked as exhibit “B” to my affidavit is a true copy of

the amended statement of claim.

After service of the amended statement of claim, we received extensive
demands for particulars from the defendants with respect to virtually every
paragraph in the amended statement of claim. As a result of those

demands, we compiled very detailed particulars of the facts relied upon.




14.

15.

16.

17.

400457

Attached hereto and marked as exhibit “C” and “D” to this my affidavit

are true copies of the particulars which we provided to the defendants.

In their amended statement of claim and in the particulars provided, the
former students of the Mohawk School have asserted the following causes
of action as against the defendants: negligence, breach of fiduciary duty,
breach of aboriginal rights, assault, battery and intentional infliction of

mental suffering.

In addition, we asserted claims for damages on behalf of family members
of former students for breach of fiduciary duty and for loss of care,

guidance and companionship pursuant to section 61 of the Family Law Act.

From the outset of this litigation, the defendants steadfastly maintained

that:

a. This action could not be certified as a class proceeding;

b. The claims related to loss of language and culture where not
justiciable;

C. Damages based on attendance at the school, in the absence of
evidence of physical and sexual abuse, could not be maintained,;

d. The claims asserted were barred by the Limitations Act or the
doctrine of laches; and,

e. The claims as against the Crown and their agents were barred by

various Crown immunity defences.

I verily believe that this action raised the following important and novel

issues:




500458

a. Whether language and the use of aboriginal language is an

aboriginal right;

b. Whether the Crown had an obligation to safe-guard and promote the

use of aboriginal language and culture;

c. Whether breach of an aboriginal right is a stand alone cause of
action independent of an allegation of negligence or breach of

fiduciary duty;

d. Whether the Crown can be liable for breaches of aboriginal rights

which occurred prior to their constitutional protection in the

Constitution Act, 1982;

e. Whether the non-Government defendants could be liable for breach

of an aboriginal right;

f. Whether section 24 of the Crown Liability Act, 1952 immunized the
Crown and other defendants from claims of breach of fiduciary duty

(equitable claims);

g. Whether Family Law Act claims crystallized after 1978 so as to

make section 61 applicable;

h. Whether the family class could pursue a claim for breach of

fiduciary duty with respect to loss of language and culture.

18.  Prior to the motion for certification, the defendant, New England Company,
delivered a statement of defence. Attached hereto and marked as exhibit
“E” to this affidavit is a true copy of the statement of defence of the New
England Company. Although the other two defendants did not deliver a

statement of defence, they did rely upon that pleading in the course of
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argument of the certification motion and signalled their intent to us and to

the Court that they would be pleading, inter alia, similar defences.

Motion for Certification

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

We prepared and served a motion record for the motion for certification.
Each of the named representative plaintiffs swore an affidavit in support of

that motion.

The defendants served and filed responding affidavit material. Cross-
examinations of the former student representative plaintiffs and the

defendants’ witnesses were held.

The motion for certification was argued before Justice R. J. Haines in
London on June 4, 5,6, 7, 8, 11, 12 and 13, 2001. [ was present and
assisted Mr. Raikes with the argument of the motion for certification. I
recall that the defendants vigorously resisted all aspects of the certification

motion, and challenged the causes of action asserted.

In his reasons released October 9, 2001, Justice Haines ruled that the
motion for certification be dismissed. In doing so, Justice Haines also
found that the claims asserted by the family class were dismissed in their
entirety and that all claims of former students arising from events prior to

1952 were barred by section 24 of the Crown Liability Act, 1952.

The defendants soﬁght costs for the motion for certification from the
plaintiffs in an amount exceeding $300,000 in aggregate. After argument
of the costs, Justice Haines concluded that there should be no costs awarded
given the historically disadvantaged nature of the plaintiff class and the

public policy issues raised by this action.
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Appeal to Divisional Court

24.  Upon instructions from the Steering Committee, we appealed the decision

of Justice Haines to the Divisional Court.

25.  The appeal to the Divisional Court was heard by a three member panel in

London composed of Justices Gravely, Valin and Cullity.

26. In or about the month of March 2002, we were joined in this action by Mr.
Kirk Baert of Koskie Minsky LLP as our co-counsel. Mr. Baert specializes

in class action litigation, and in particular, certification of class

proceedings.

27.  Until then, Mr. Russell Raikes of our firm was principally responsible for
all aspects of this action, although he was assisted from time to time by
myself, various associate lawyers, clerks and students whose involvement

was critical given the issues in this action

28. I am advised by Mr. Raikes that he and Mr. Baert divided their

responsibilities roughly as follows:

a. They divided the argument in the Divisional Court and Court of
Appeal;

b. Mr. Raikes remained principally responsible for all client
communications, including meetings with the Steering Committee
from whom we obtained our instructions, as well as attending
community meetings to keep members of the class updated and

responding to individual queries from members of the class;

c. Both participated fully in the negotiations which led to the

settlement of this action and the national settlement.
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The appeal to the Divisional Court was heard on January 8 and 9, 2002.
The defendants opposed each and every aspect of the appeal which related
not only to certification, but also to the limits of Crown immunity arising
from the Crown Liability Act, 1952 as well as the claims asserted by the

family class.

The defendants were successful in the Divisional Court (2:1), with Justice
Cullity providing a very strong dissent. Attached hereto and marked as
exhibit “F” is a true copy of the Reasons of the Divisional Court. Attached
hereto and marked as exhibit “G” is a true copy of the Order of the

Divisional Court.

Appeal to Court of Appeal

31.

32.

33.

34,

35.

Following the decision of the Divisional Court, we sought leave to appeal
to the Court of Appeal, which was granted on October 10, 2003. The
appeal was heard in the Court of Appeal on May 10 and 11, 2004.

On December 3, 2004, the Ontario Court of Appeal unanimously ordered
that this action be certified as a class proceeding. In its Reasons, it also

upheld the plaintiffs’ appeal with respect to the effect of section 24 of the
Crown Liability Act, 1952 and permitted the claim for breach of fiduciary

duty on behaif of family ciass members to proceed.

Attached hereto and marked as exhibit “H?” to this affidavit is a true copy
of the Reasons of the Ontario Court of Appeal.

Attached hereto and marked as exhibit “I” is a true copy of the Order of

the Ontario Court of Appeal certifying this action as a class proceeding.

I verily believe that this action is the first and, to date, the only certified

class action for an Indian Residential School in Canada.
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36. Iam advised by Mr. Raikes that at various times after October, 1998, he
attempted to entreat the Federal Government to sit down to negotiate a
resolution of this action. The defendants declined to participate in any
settlement negotiations which would in any way compensate former
students for loss of language and culture or which would compensate
students on the basis of attendance at the school in the absence of sexual or
physical abuse of each student. Further, the defendants steadfastly
maintained that this action could not and would not be certified as a class
action, and that in any event, the defendants would prevail at trial if

necessary.

37.  Asindicated, the decision of the Ontario Court of Appeal was made on
December 3, 2004. In January, 2005, the Federal Government and
Assembly of First Nations announced that a political accord had been
reached by which a negotiating table would be established to resolve the
legacy of the residential school experience, including the litigation then

pending before the courts in all provinces and territories.

38.  Notwithstanding the announcement of that political accord, the defendants
sought leave to appeal from the decision of the Ontario Court of Appeal to

the Supreme Court of Canada. That motion for leave to appeal was

39.  Very shortly after the dismissal of the motion for leave to appeal, the
Federal Government announced that the Honourable Frank Tacobucci had
been appointed as its lead negotiator in the negotiations which were to take

place pursuant to the political accord.

40.  In early June, Mr. Raikes and Mr. Baert attended a meeting with Justice
Iacobucci in Toronto preliminary to the negotiations which were to follow.

That meeting was also attended by counsel in the Baxter action, by Mr.
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Merchant of Saskatchewan who participated by telephone and by counsel

representing some of the Church entities affected.

It was agreed that the contents of that discussion would be kept confidential
save that Justice Iacobucci specifically requested that all pending litigation,
and in particular, this action, be placed in abeyance so as to allow the

parties to focus on negotiating a pan-Canadian settlement.

We agreed to the abeyance subject to notice to the class in this action and

the running of the opt out period proceeding.

Mr. Raikes and Mr. Baert were advised by Justice Iacobucci that this action
could not be settled independent of a national settlement. To settle this
action, it was necessary to fully participate in the negotiations that led to the
settlement for which court approval is sought in this action, the Baxter

action and in other class proceedings in other provinces and territories.

The negotiations formally commenced in Saskatoon in July, 2005. Of
course, Mr. Raikes and Mr. Baert were fully involved in preparations for

those negotiations prior to July.

The National Consortium

Shortly after Mr. Raikes was retained in this action, he contacted and/or
was contacted by what started initially as a small group of counsel from
across the country who were then acting for former students of Indian
Residential Schools in various provinces. With their assistance, Mr. Raikes
took the lead in organizing an informal association of plaintiffs’ counsel
known as the Plaintiffs Indian Residential School Counsel Association. Its

purpose was to liaise with one another with a view to:
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a. Exchanging useful information on legal issues relevant to residential

school litigation;

b. Coordinating strategy on a regional and national level;

c. Working to achieve a collective negotiating strategy and position;
and,

d. Sharing resources, where appropriate.

It must be remembered that the Crown was being sued across the country
and had almost limitless resources at its disposal. By organizing this group
and by sharing information, we believed that the plaintiffs in this action and
in the other actions would be better served and had a better chance of
success through settlement or litigation. Mr. Raikes’ payticipation in this
informal group was well known and encouraged by the Steering

Committee.

Mr. Raikes was the chairperson for the Association until approximately
2001 at which point, the Association evolved into what is now known as

the National Consortium.

The National Consortium is an affiliation of approximately 19 law firms
many of whom were part of the initial Plaintiffs Residential School Counsel
Association, which threw their support and efforts into the Baxter action as

well as other actions which appeared to have strategic national value.

Our firm has been retained by many individuals who did not attend the
Mohawk school, but who attended other residential schools mostly in
Ontario. Those clients are represented by us through our participation in

the National Consortium and the Baxter action.
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It was understood and agreed among the National Consortium members
that we would continue to push this action to be certified, and once
certified, to trial, recognizing that in doing so, we were “trail blazing”. Our
efforts in this action would benefit not only the members of the class in this

action, but also the class members in Baxter, some of whom we represent.

The Negotiations

51.

Again, [ am not at liberty to go into detail as to what positions were taken
during the negotiations because of an understanding given with respect to

confidentiality. I am advised by Mr. Raikes and can say that:

a. The negotiations took place across the country at various locations

throughout July, August, September, October and November, 2005,

b. An Agreement in Principle was reached and signed at approximately

11 p.m. on Sunday evening, November 20, 2005;
c. Mr. Raikes attended all but one day of the negotiations;
d. Mr. Baert was present for all but one or two days of the negotiations;

e. I am advised that Mr. Baert divided his time spent on these
negotiations between this action and the Baxter action to reflect the

fact that he was acting as counsel in both;

f. The negotiations were lengthy, involved many different stake
holders and as is reflected in the final settlement agreement, covered
a full range of issues related to the resolution of the litigation and

issues of compensation;

g. At various points in the negotiations, impasses were reached. There

was no certainty at any time that a settlement would be reached; in
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fact, there was considerable risk that after spending months at the

negotiating table that no deal would be achieved.

The Agreement in Principle

52.

Attached hereto as exhibit “J” to this affidavit is a true copy of the
Agreement in Principle signed by Mr. Raikes on behalf of the plaintiffs in
this action. According to the Agreement in Principle, former students of

the Mohawk School will receive:

a. Compensaﬁon for all aspects of their attendance at the Mohawk
School called a common experience payment (CEP) equal to
$10,000 plus $3,000 for each school year or part of a school year
after the first year of attendance. This payment includes any claim

for language and culture;

b. - Those who were sexually abused, physically abused above a certain
threshold or who suffered psychological abuse above a threshold
prescribed may also receive further compensation through an
Individual Assessment Process (IAP) which is a marked
improvement on the Government’s current Dispute Resolution

program;

c. The Government will put money in trust for healing and wellness
programs which will be administered by the Aboriginal Healing
Fund;

d. A Truth and Reconciliation Commission will be established to

record the experiences of former students and their families;

e. Money will also be spent on commemoration; and,
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f. The Government has agreed to pay an amount for legal fees which
includes the sum of $40,000,000 plus disbursements and GST, in
addition to any amounts paid for costs to date, to the National
Consortium of which Cohen Highley LLP is a member. The costs
are paid in respect of fees and disbursements incurred to November

20, 2005.

53.  Pursuant to the Agreement in Principle, the Government of Canada has
committed $1.9 billion to the common experience payment for former

Indian Residential School students. If this amount is inadequate, the

Government will provide such additional monies as are necessary to ensure

that each former student who applies receives their common experience

payment.

54. The Agreement in Principle also contemplated that there might be a surplus
in the common experience payment Fund. If that surplus is less than $40
million, the surplus is to be transferred to the Aboriginal Healing Fund to
administer for additional healing and wellness programs for survivors and
their families. If the surplus exceeds $40 million, the Agreement in
Principle provides that former students shall each receive a voucher for up
to $3,000 to be used for eligible healing and wellness services, and any

1 1. -1

further surplus shal o the Aborigina

g0 1o the Aporigiii

fmry

55.  The family class members, i.e. non-students, may receive monies through
the estates of their family members, if deceased, as indicated above. In
addition, they will have full rights of participation in the program offered
through the Aboriginal Healing Fund, and the right to participate in the

Truth and Reconciliation Commission as well as any commemoration.
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Attached hereto and marked as exhibit “J” is a true copy of an Agreement
in Principle specific to this action which adopts and incorporates by

reference the document just marked as exhibit “K”.

As indicated in exhibit “J”, estates of former students of the Mohawk
School who have died may claim and receive the common experience
payment going back to October 5, 1996, i.e. two years preceding the

commencement of this action.

The cut off date for the Mohawk School stems from the provisions of the
Trustee Act (Ontario) and the fact that this action was certified at the time

the negotiations took place.

We are very pleased with the provisions concerning the deceased because
there are many members of our class who have died since we were retained
and since the action was commenced. I am saddened to advise this court
that two of the representative plaintiffs, Warren Doxtator and Frank Hill
have died, but am advised by Mr. Raikes that their surviving spouses
support this settlement and are pleased that their husbands’ claims will be
compensated through the common experience payment, through
community redress such as memorialization, truth and reconciliation, and

healing and wellness programs.

As indicated above, the notice to the class of the certification of this action
and the opportunity to opt out proceeded in this action while the

negotiations were ongoing.

Attached hereto and marked as exhibit “L” is a true copy of the Order of
Mr. Justice Haines approving the form of notice and prescribing the manner

by which notice would be given and opt out would occur.
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62. The Notice was published in each of the newspapers as required. Notice

was mailed by our office and posted on the websites per the Order of
Justice Haines. Attached hereto and marked as exhibit “M” is a true copy

of the Notice to Class published in the London Free Press.
63.  The following individuals opted out of this class action:
a. Dwight Powless
b. Dolores A. Jimerson
c. Gordon Semple
d. Roderick A. Green
Final Settlement Agreement

64. Iam advised by Mr. Raikes that since November 20, 2005, there have been

many meetings and discussions which have taken place to draft a final
settlement agreement, a copy of which will be before this court for
approval. The Final Settlement Agreement is substantially the same as the
Agreement in Principle. Mr. Raikes has had minimal involvement in the
development of the Final Settlement Agreement as that role was performed
by Mr. Baert and other members of a special Committee that was

established for that purpose.

65.  Asindicated above, the Agreement in Principle contemplated that former
students would receive a healing voucher in the event of a surplus
exceeding $40 million in the Common Experience Fund. In the Final
Settlement Agreement, the healing voucher has been replaced with

education credits which can be assigned by former students to a member of
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the family class. Thus, a former student can elect to designate his or her

child to receive this credit to use for education.

I verily believe that even after the Agreement in Principle was reached,
there remained risk that this settlement would not be finished. That risk
included, inter alia, whether the newly elected Federal Cabinet would
approve the terms of the settlement and whether changes to the IAP could

be finalized.

Retainer Agreement

67.

68.

Fees

69.

Attached hereto and marked as exhibit “N” is a true copy of the signed
retainer agreement. As the retainer agreement indicates, Cohen Highley
LLP and Koskie Minsky LLP are entitled to be compensated in the event of
a settlement or judgment under which any one or more of the members of

the class receive compensation.

We presently have a database which indicates that we have been retained
by in excess of 800 former students of the Mohawk School, in addition to a
substantial number of their family members. In addition, we presently act
for approximately 181 former students who attended other residential

schools and who are represented by us in the Baxter action or in one case,

As at November 20, 2005, we had accrued legal fees and disbursements,
plus GST of :

a. Fees $1,226,014.20
b. GST on Fees $ 85,816.64
¢. Disbursements $ 111,685.32
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d. GST for Disbursements  $ 6.387.46
TOTAL $1,429,903.50

I am advised by Mr. Baert and verily believe that as at November 20, 2005,
his firm had fees, disbursements and GST of:

a. Fees $495,679.50
b. GST on Fees $ 34,697.57
c. Disbursements $ 24,655.71
d. GST for Disbursements $ 1,622.59

TOTAL $556,655.37

I am advised by Mr. Raikes and verily believe that of the $40,000,000
payable to the National Consortium of 19 law firms, Cohen Highley LLP
will receive the sum of approximately $4,203,000 plus payment of
disbursements and GST. This amount includes our time in the other files
which we have opened on behalf of students who attended other residential
schools, and the individual lawsuit which we have been prosecuting. The

total fees in respect of those other files as at November 20, 2005 was:

a. For Fees $113,844.50
b. GST on Fees $ 7.741.37

TOTAL $121,585.87

Our disbursements to be paid in addition for those files as at November 20,

2005 are:

a. Disbursements $11,424.67
b. GST for Disbursements $ 721.67
TOTAL $12,146.34

I am advised by Mr. Raikes that since November 20, 2005, he and the other
members of his team at Cohen Highley LLP have:
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a. Notified by mail all members of the class registered with us of the

settlement and its terms;

b. Attended meetings at various First Nations and Friendship Centres to

explain to class members the terms of the settlement;
c. Responded to hundreds of individual calls, emails and letters;

d. Assisted clients in cdmpleting applications for an advance payment

under the common experience payment portion of the settlement;
e. Reviewed various iterations of the draft final settlement agreement;

f. Participated in teleconference calls with co-counsel in the National

Consortium on issues pertaining to the final settlement agreement.

I am advised by Mr. Raikes that under the Agreement among counsel
belonging to the National Consortium, Koskie Minsky LLP has acted as
counsel in this action and in Baxter. I understand that a separate affidavit
will be filed by a member of the National Consortium which will address

the fees to be paid to the members of the National Consortium, including

Koskie Minsky.

As mentioned above, Mr. Raikes has had primary responsibility within our
firm for this action. Mr. Raikes is a partner in Cohen Highley ;;p. He was
called to the Bar in 1984. He has practiced extensively in civil litigation
since he was called, and a significant component of his work since 1990 has
involved aboriginal law. He has taught aboriginal law courses at the
University of Western Ontario Law School, has lectured in Canada and
internationally, and is recognized as one of the top aboriginal law lawyers

in Canada.
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I was called to the Bar in 1976. I am certified as a specialist in civil
litigation by the Law Society of Upper Canada. Both Mr. Raikes and I

have acted as counsel in a number of class actions.

The fees referred to in paragraphs 69 and 71 have been calculated using the
hourly rates usually charged by members of this firm for all litigation. The
rates have changed over the years to reflect increased experience, the
increase in our overhead and local market rates. The time related to the
investigation and commencement of the action, for example, was charged at
rates then in place within the firm; Mr. Raikes’ hourly rate was then

$200.00/hr.

The fees referred to in paragraphs 69 and 71 include:
a. 4,551.5 hours of time by lawyers;
b. 1,604.7 hours of time by students;
c. 1,102.3 hours of time by law clerks.

Our clients in this action are for the most part impecunious. Many are quite

elderly and some are in very poor health. As mentioned, several have died.

This action has been prosecuted by our firm and the Koskie Minsky firm on
a contingency basis. We have achieved substantial success for our clients.

I am advised by Mr. Raikes that the feedback which he has received from
members of the class has been overwhelmingly in favour of the settlement.
Many clients have expressed the view that they never thought they would
see any money from this lawsuit; that the Government would fight until

they were dead.
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81. I firmly believe that but for the diligent counsel work by this firm and the
Koskie Minsky firm, this action would never have been certified as a class
action and the defendants would never have negotiated a settlement of this

action that provides for compensation for everyone who attended the

Mohawk School.

82. I verily believe that the fees to be paid to Cohen Highley and Koskie
Minsky for this action and the work done for other clients whom we

represent who attended Indian Residential Schools, are fair and reasonable

having regard to:

a. The risk which we assumed in the carriage of this action;

b. The substantial efforts which we have made on behalf of our clients;

c. The results which we have achieved;

d. The length of time which we have carried this litigation at our
expense;

€. The determined and vigorous defence of opposing counsel on behalf

of their clients;
f. The terms of the retainer agreement.

83.  This action has presented many and varied challenges to counsel, including

but not limited to:

a. The legal issues on the merits of the action including several novel

points of law;

b. The plaintiffs claim, at its core, is for child abuse in an institutional

setting. The victims of that abuse have suffered life long trauma.




84.

22 00475

Some members of the class suffer from addictions and personality
disorders which require extra time, effort and understanding as it

relates to communication,;

c. Many of the plaintiffs are impecunious, frequently change addresses
and have other issues which we have had to address, such as social
assistance benefits and the effect of this settlement on their

entitlement to same;

d. We have attended numerous meetings on Reserves, including
Waswanipi, a First Nation located in Northern Quebec near James

Bay;

e. Many of the members of the class have not achieved higher than a

grade 8 education;

f. Because of the nature of the abuse at the Mohawk School, the issues
are ones that provoke considerable anger and pain among members

of the class.
But for this settlement, the plaintiffs in this action could reasonably expect:
a. lengthy examination for discovery, likely in excess of 40 days;

b. a trial of the common issues in 2 to 4 years, which trial would likely

exceed 12 weeks duration;

c. appeals from the trial decision which would take a minimum of 2

years to be heard;

d. if successful, hearings for the determination of individual issues,
including the prospect of further discovery on those individual

1ssues;
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e. the prospect of appeals for the determination of those individual

1ssues.

85.  As indicated above, the members of the plaintiff class are largely elderly. I
believe that there is a real risk that without this settlement, many former
students would die before their individual issues were determined and, in

that case, their claims would be very difficult, if not impossible, to prove.

86. We have recommended this settlement to the Steering Committee as a fair

and reasonable settiement for the following reasons:

a. it provides compensation to every former student alive on or after

October 5, 1996;

b. the compensation to be paid recognizes that the longer a student

attended, the more they get;

c. this litigation is by no means risk free given the novel claims being
advanced and the defences available to the defendants, particularly

Canada;

d. the prosecution of this action through a common issues trial and
through the individual issues hearings will take years to complete,

and will be at substantial risk to the representative plaintiffs;

e. the settlement provides additional compensation for those who were
sexually abused or physically or mentally abused above defined
thresholds, using a process that is faster and more user friendly than

the courts, i.e. less adversarial;

f. the settlement allows family members to participate in the truth and

reconciliation, commemoration and healing and wellness
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components, and to potentially gain through estates or through
education vouchers. The claim of the family class is a far more
difficult and riskier claim than that of former students who attended

the Mohawk school.

I am not aware of any objections made to the terms of the settlement; in
fact, the feedback from the meetings, emails, and telephone calls from class

members has been overwhelmingly favourable.

Further, I am not aware of any member of the Steering Committee or of the
plaintiff class who has objected in any way to the fees that are to be paid to
this firm; in fact, [ am advised by Mr. Raikes that members of the Steering
Committee have advised him that we should be getting more' given that we

were the first to be certified, with the difficulty that entailed.

Subject to any fees which may be payable by the Government pursuant to
the Final Settlement Agreement for work specific to the approval of the
settlement, Cohen Highley LLP has agreed that the time which we have
spent since November 20, 2005 will be subsumed in the fees that are to be
paid to us as indicated above. As a result, none of the common experience
payment received by members of the plaintiff class will be paid to this firm
or Koskie Minsky LLP for work done before or after November 20, 2005 in
prosecuting this action or in completing this settlement. To date, Cohen
Highley LLP has accrued additional work in progress of approximately
$120,000 since November 20, 2005.
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90. I make this affidavit in support of the motion to approve this settlement and the
motion to approve the fees, disbursements and GST payable to Cohen Highley
LLP and Koskie Minsky LLP in this action and the Baxter action, and for no

improper purpose.

SWORN before me at the City )
of London, in the County of - )
Middlesex, this as#4day ) PAULVOGEL \

of July, 200%. )

A commissioner, etc.
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CV No. S-0001-2005 000 243

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE NORTHWEST TERRITORIES
BETWEEN:
ROSEMARIE KUPTANA, as a representative of that class of individuals who are
enrolled as beneficiaries of the Inuvialuit Trust, and who attended a Federal Day
School, Indian Residential School, Hostel, or other school of a residential nature, in

various locations across Canada, all of which were established and administered by,
or otherwise the responsibility of, the Government of Canada

Plaintiff
-and -

THE ATTORNEY GENERAL OF CANADA

Defendant

AFFIDAVIT OF ROSEMARIE ESTHER KUPTANA

SWORN THE 5 DAY OF £L§g ot 2006

I, ROSEMARIE ESTHER KUPTANA, of the Town of Inuvik, in the Northwest

Territories, MAKE OATH AND STATE THAT:

1. Several generations of my family including myself attended Indian Residential
Schools (“IRS), and as such have personal knowledge of the matter hereinafter
deposed to by me, except where stated by me to be by way of information and

belief,

2. I am the former President of the national Inuit organization, the Inuit Tapiriit

Kanatami (ITK) formerly known as the Inuit Tapirisat of Canada (ITC), the Inuit




00480

Broadcasting'Corporation (IBC) and the Inuit Circumpolar Conference (ICC). 1
have raised the issue of residential school in these positions as a contributing
factor of the colonialization processes and a violation of our fundamental human

rights as Inuit.

3. I was born in 1954 and raised in a traditional Inuit hunting society. I spoke only
Inuinnaqtun (a dialect of the Inuit language) until the age of eight. My home
community of Sachs Harbour, Northwest Territories is a village of 120 people on

the Beaufort Sea.

4. At 6 years old, I began attending an IRS for Indigenous children four hundred
miles away from home. The education policy that applied to indigenous peoples

at the time required that I speak only English and adopt a foreign way of living.

5. I became involved in Inuit organizations around 1975 when discussion first began
between Inuit and the Government of Canada to reach formal agreements

regarding Inuit land rights.

6. I am one of the representative plaintiffs in this proceeding. I represent the class of
individuals who are beneficiaries of the /nuvialuit Trust, and who attended an IRS
in various locations across Canada, all of which were established and

administered by, or otherwise the responsibility of, the Government of Canada.

7. It is my own personal experience at residential school that has shaped my life’s
work in the promotion and defense of Inuit rights. ~As such, I sought the

constitutional recognition of the Inuit language and culture, bringing the issue of
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residential schools to public attention as a piece of Canada’s unfinished business

with Inuit.

The devastation caused by the residential school system is severe. It is my firm
belief that this issue must be publicly documented and the healing in our people
and communities must begin. The residential schools Settlement Package is a

beginning, upon which the Inuvialuit can build.

I am a member of the Inuvialuit society, which is a member of the larger Inuit
society residing in four countries: Canada, Denmark, Russia and the United

States.

I am currently employed as a residential school consultant in the legal department
of the Inuvialuit Regional Corporation (“IRC”), the representative body of the
Inuvialuit. The IRC is a democratically elected body representing 5,500
Inuvialuit. IRC’s mandate is to continually improve the economic, social and
cultural well being of the Inuvialuit. IRC has two sibling organizations who each
have similar mandates in their régions: Nunavut Tunﬁgavik Incorporated (“NTI”)
representing the Inuit in Nunavut Territory; and, Makivik Corporation
(“Makivik™) representing the Inuit in Nunavik (Northern Quebec) (collectively

referred to as the “Inuit Organizations”).

I recognize the work of Larry Philip Fontaine, National Chief of the Assembly of
First Nations, to resolve the IRS legacy. Inuit and Inuvialuit survivors of IRS
were excluded from the initial negotiations with the Federal Government. Some

Inuvialuit and Inuit students resided at hostels and attended IRS recognized by the
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Federal Government while others resided at hostels and attended federal day
schools, which the governmenf did not consider to be IRS. This distinction
threatened to leave many Inuvialuit and Inuit former students out of the
settlement. This would not have been a fair and lasting resolution to the IRS

legacy.

I commenced a representative action against the government on behalf of myself
and all IRS former students enrolled in the Inuvialuit Trust to ensure that IRC
could participate in the discussions on the resolution of the impact of residential
schools on behalf of former Inuvialuit students. NTI participated in the resolution
discussions on behalf of former Inuit students in Nunavut. Makivik participated in

the resolution discussions on behalf of former Inuit students in Northern Quebec.

The Inuit Organizations participated in the resolution discussions with the
Honourable Frank Iacobucci, the federal representative. These negotiations
culminated in an Agreement in Principle (“AIP”) reached on November 20, 2005
and a Settlement Agreement on May 10, 2006. The AIP and Settlement
Agreement recognize the Federal Government’s federal day schools and hostels

as Indian Residential Schools, including Inuvialuit and Inuit students

I have reviewed and considered the Settlement Agreement and consulted with
class counsel in relation to same. 1 have also reviewed the Settlement Agreement
with numerous Class Members, representatives from the Inuit Organizations both

as a former student of an IRS and in my capacity as a residential school consultant
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with IRC and I believe that the Settlement Agreement is for the benefit of the

Class Members.

My Experience at Stringer Hall

15.

16.

17.

18.

I was born on March 24, 1954 in an igloo in the Prince of Wales Strait in the
Northwest Territories. My Inuinnaqtun name is Kudlak Tuqtualugq. In 1957, my

family settled in Sachs Harbour.

When I was 6 years old, the Royal Canadian Mounted Police came to our home
and took my brother and myself from our family, without my parents’ consent,
and put us on a plane to Inuvik. I was made to attend Sir Alexander Mackenzie
School for 6 years and Samuel Hearne Secondary School for 7 years and to reside

at Stringer Hall hostel 10 months of the year for 13 years.

While attending residential school, I was denied the love, care and spiritual
guidance of my parents, my family and my community. I was not allowed to
speak in Inuinnaqtun, our native language, to eat our native food, to practice our
spiritual beliefs or speak with my family, including my brother who also resided

in Stringer Hall. I was physically and sexually abused.

When I returned home after the first year, I could no longer speak Inuinnaqtun.
My grandmother and others in the community ridiculed me. After a decade in
residential schools, I did not know how to relate to my parents, siblings, extended

family or men, which caused me to withdraw from society and to experience
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severe anxiety and panic attacks in day-to-day social interaction. Later, in life, I

had to receive medical assistance for this disorder.
Residential Schools in Northern Canada

19. T understand from research conducted at the Anglican General Synod Archives,
the Northwest Territories Archives, the Government of the Northwest Territories
Education Records Office and the National Archives of Canada by IRC that the
Federal Government funded residential schools in the Northwest Territories
beginning in the late 1800s. Beginning in the 1950s the Government of Canada
began building and operating federal day schools with hostels in the Northwest
Territories and Northern Quebec. The aréhival records for these schools are

incomplete and provide only pieces of the residential program in the North.
I Am Prepared to Act as Representative Plaintiff of the Survivor Class

20.  Tam prepared to act as representative plaintiff of the Survivor Class in relation to
the representative action before - this Honourable Court. I will fairly and
adequately represent the interests of the Survivor Class should this Court appoint
me as representative plaintiff. I appreciate that my role is to protect the interests

of the Survivor Class.

21. I believe that the government of Canada has breached its duty to me and to the
Survivor Class through its administration of IRS and in respect of its policy in
relation to same and that, as a result, I, and the Survivor Class are entitled to

compensation.
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I understand that the major steps in the class action can be summarized as follows:

(1) The action was started by the issuance of the statement of claim. That claim
has been amended in a fresh as amended statement of claim. Further

amendments have been made in the Master Claim;

(2) I am now asking the Court to certify the action as a class proceeding by this

motion for certification,

(3) If the Court certifies the action as a class proceeding, the certification notice
will be sent the Survivor Class Members who will be given the opportunity to

opt out of the class action if they wish within a fixed period;
(4) At the same time, the Court will be asked to approve the proposed settlement;

(5) Survivor Class Members will have the right to object to the proposed

settlement;

(6) If the proposed settlement is approved by the Court, Survivor Class Members
who do not opt out will receive the benefits set out in the settlement

agreement;

(7) In the event the Class Members wish to make an additional claim, there is an
opportunity through this settlement to participate in further hearings if

necessary to prove or assess damages;
(8) Appeals of decisions may be taken at various stages of the settlement; and

(9) The Court will supervise the execution and administration of the settlement.
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I also understand that, in agreeing to seek and accept an appointment as a
representative plaintiff, it is my responsibility, among other things, to be familiar

with this action, and:
(1) To review the Master Claim and any further amendments;

(2) To assist in the preparation and execution of an affidavit such as this one in

support of the motion for certification and settlement approval;

(3) To attend, if necessary, with Class Counsel for cross examination of my

affidavit;

(4) To attend with Class Counsel at the settlement approval hearing and give

evidence regarding the case, if necessary;
(5) To receive briefings from and to instruct Class Counsel;

(6) To seek the court’s approval of agreements respecting Class Counsel’s fees

and disbursements; and

(7) To communicate with Survivor Class Members throughout and through our

counsel, as required.

To date, the following are some of the steps I have taken to fairly and adequately

represent the Survivor Class Members:

(1) I retained and instructed Class Counsel to commence this class proceeding;
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(2) Discussed with Class Counsel the nature of this class action, including the

risks and costs of same;
(3) Assisted in drafting the statement of claim;
(4) Obtained documents and other information at the request of Class Counsel;
(5) Met with Class Counsel on numerous occasions; and
(6) Instructed Class Counsel, as necessary.
IDENTIFIABLE CLASS

25. I have reviewed the Master Claim. In my view, the class definition for the

survivor class should be:

All persons who resided at a Residential School in Canada between
January 1, 1920 and December 31, 1997, who are living, or who were
living as of May 30, 2005, and who, as of the date hereof, or who, at the
date of death resided in:

(i)  Alberta, for the purposes of the Alberta Court of Queen’s Bench;

(i)  British Columbia, for the purposes of the British Columbia
Supreme Court; '

(iii)) ~ Manitoba, for the purposes of the Manitoba Court of Queen’s
Bench; : ,

(iv)  Northwest Territories, for the purposes of the Supreme Court of
the Northwest Territories;

(v) Nunavut, for the purposes of the Nunavut Court of Justice; and

(vi) Ontario, Prince Edward Island, Newfoundland, and Labrador, New
Brunswick, Nova Scotia and any place outside of Canada, for the
purposes of the Ontario Superior Court of Justice;

(vii) Québec, for the purposes of the Quebec Superior Court;
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(viii) Saskatchewan, for the purposes of the Court of Queen’s Bench for
Saskatchewan;

(1x)  Yukon, for the purposes of Supreme Court of the Yukon Territory;
But excepting Excluded Persons.
Where Residential School means:

(i) institutions listed on List "A" to IRSRC's Dispute Resolution
Process attached to the Agreement as Schedule "E";

(11) institutions listed in Schedule "F" of the Agreement ("Additional
Residential Schools") which may be expanded from time to time in
accordance with Article 12.01 of the Agreement; and

(ii1) any institution which is determined to meet the criteria set out in
Sections 12.01(2) and (3) of the Agreement;

26. 1 believe that this definition is an objective definition and the Survivor Class
Members, upon receiving or reading the certification notice, will easily be able to

determine whether or not they qualify as a Survivor Class Member.
POPULATION OF CLASS

27.  The population of Class Members is definable, and is estimated to include

approximately 90,000 individuals across Canada.

e AR A W T W N Y N

COMMON ISSUES

The common issues in the action are the following (the “Common Issues™):

- a) By their operation or management of Indian Residential Schools
during the Class Period, did the Defendants breach a duty of care they
owed to the Survivor Class and the Deceased Class to protect them
from actionable physical or mental harm?

b) By their purpose, operation or management of Indian Residential

Schools during the Class Period, did the Defendants breach a fiduciary
duty they owed to the Survivor Class and the Deceased Class or the

10
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aboriginal or treaty rights of the Survivor Class and the Deceased
Class to protect them from actionable physical or mental harm?

c) By their purpose, opefation or management of Indian Residential
Schools during the Class Period, did the Defendants breach a fiduciary
duty they owed to the Family Class?

d) If the answer to any of these common issues 1s yes, can the Court
make an aggregate assessment of the damages suffered by all Class
members of each class as part of the common trial?

PREFERABLE PROCEDURE

28. I believe that a class action is the preferable procedure to resolve the Common
Issues.

29.  The class acﬁon will provide access to justice for me and other Survivor Class

Members. I am aware that many Aboriginal Persons, including the Inuit, live in
remote communities, aré not in a position to retain counsel due to geographic,
logistic and financial reasons, suffer from psychological and emotional problems
often as a result of their residential school experiences, which include various
forms of institutional child abuse, and suffer from poverty and often from
substance abuse. I believe that thousands of residential school survivors and their

families would not be able to advance their legal rights without this class action.
NO CONFLICT OF INTEREST

30. I donot believe that I have any interest that is in conflict with the interest of any

other Survivor Class Member.

11
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31 I believe that I can fairly and adequately represent the interest of the Survivor
Class and I am committed to fulfilling my responsibilities as a representative

plaintiff.
THE PROPOSED SETTLEMENT

32. I believe that this settlement package is beneficial to the Class Members, because
it includes not only fair compensation for the time spent at residential schools, but
it also includes a more accessible process for survivors to address the abuse they

suffered at IRS.

33. It also includes a truth and reconciliation aspect, as well as a commemorative
aspect, both of which are necessary to ensure that the issue of residential schools
becomes a part of the public record in Canada, and that its legacy is never

repeated.

34.  This settlement package also includes a significant amount of money to be put
towards reconciliation and healing programs, and ensures the continuation of the

Aboriginal Healing Foundation (AHF).

35. Former students who died before May 30, 2005 still receive a benefit from this
settlement through the significant commemoration and truth and reconciliation
initiatives that will be undertaken. These initiatives are the foundation of the
settlement package, and will ensure that the stories of deceased former students

can be told and remembered in future generations.

36. I swear this affidavit in good faith and for no improper purpose.

12
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Rosemarie Esther K1thana

SWORN BEFORE ME at the Town of [nuvik
in the Northwest Territories, this = _day of
Aogoot Redo

- ANOTARY PUBLIC in and for the
Northwest Territories.

my (OMmuo>ion @lireS', Nau T3]0

13
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE NORTHWEST TERRITORIES

BETWEEN:

ROSEMARIE KUPTANA, as a representative of that class of individuals who are enrolled as
beneficiaries of the Inuvialuit Trust, and who attended a Federal Day School, Indian Residential
School, Hostel, or other school of a residential nature, in various locations across Canada, all of

which were established and administered by, or otherwise the responsibility of, the Government of
Canada

Plaintiff
-and -

THE ATTORNEY GENERAL OF CANADA

Defendant

AFFIDAVIT OF DANA EVA MARIE FRANCEY
SWORN THIS _S DAY OF Qogu-o} ,2006

[, DANA EVA MARIE FRANCEY, of the Town of Inuvik, in the Northwest Territories,
MAKE OATH AND STATE THAT:

1. I am one of the proposed representative plaintiffs in this putative class proceeding. I

bring this action on my own behalf and on behalf of all Class Members, as described and defined

in the proposed Amended Statement of Claim (the “Claim”).

2. I was born on October 1, 1980 in Inuvik, Northwest Territories. I am a member of
Inuvialuit society and a beneficiary of the Inuvialuit Final Agreement 1985 (IFA) and I reside in

Inuvik, Northwest Territories.

3. My mother, Judy Francey formerly known as Judy Kaglik Anikina attended Indian
Residential School at Sir Alexander Mackenzie School from kindergarten to grade six and
resided in Stringer Hall, in Inuvik for approximately 4-6 years from 1962 to 1971. In addition

the following aunts and uncles attended Indian Residential School at Sir Alexander Mackenzie
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School and Samuel Hearne Secondary School and resided at Stringer Hall: Archie Kaglik,
Herman Kaglik, and Ruby St. Amand. I did not attend a residential school myself.

4. I meet the definition of a Family Class Member as set out in the Claim.
OVERVIEW OF MY POSITION

5. The damage done by Canada’s residential schools policy has been devastating to the
Inuvialuit community. While the Survivor Class has borne the brunt of that pain through direct
experiences at Residential School, the legacy of those experiences has been passed on to children

and grandchildren of Survivors and to the wider Inuvialuit community.

6. As a Family Class Member, I have felt the effects of the pain and humiliation suffered by
my mother and her siblings in many ways. The multi-generational impacts of the residential

schools policy are undeniable.

7. I believe it is important for all members of the Class, including the Family Class and the
entire Inuvialuit community, to seek some form of closure on this tragic part of our history. It is
time for the individuals who have suffered to seek reconciliation and attempt to rebuild
themselves and their communities. It is time to focus on the positive, and I believe that this

settlement is an essential part of that process. I therefore fully support the proposed settlement.
MY EXPERIENCE AS A FAMILY MEMBER OF A RESIDENTIAL SCHOOL SURVIVOR

8. As a family member of a Residential School survivor, I have seen and experienced the
ongoing effects of the Residential School experience. I believe that my mother and her siblings
were abused at Residential School, and deprived of adequate food, health care, and education.
Additionally, my mother and her siblings were prohibited from speaking our Inuvialuit language

and practicing our Inuvialuit customs.

9. My mother Judy Francey was physically and psychology abused while attending the Sir
Alexander Mackenzie School and consequently her education was affected. She is currently in

the process of seeking compensation under the Alternative Dispute process.
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10. I believe the Residential School experience affected my mother and her siblings in that
my mother and her siblings felt degraded and humiliated. 1 believe that the Residential School
experience affected my mother and her siblings’ ability to relate to other people, and in

particular, negatively affected my relationship with my mother.

11.  As aresult of his/her Residential School experience my mother and her siblings found it
difficult to express affection towards me, both verbally and physically. I believe my relationship
with my mother was distant because my mother did not experience a loving and expressive

relationship from caregivers while attending Residential School.

12, My mother Judy Francey experienced unhappiness, and struggles with abuse problems,
has struggled to develop parenting skills and to overcome her loss of self-esteem. I did not
receive the benefit of a wholesome family and upbringing as a result of my mother’s negative

experiences at residential school.

13. The experiences of my mother and her siblings at Residential School are tragic, and it

- saddens me to even think of them. Such devastating treatment damaged my mother for life, and

had a multi-generational impact on the Inuvialuit community.

14.  Accordingly, I believe that both my mother and my aunts and uncles and I suffered harm

as a result of the Residential School experience.
I AM PREPARED TO ACT AS REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFF OF THE CLASS

15. I am prepared to act as representative plaintiff of the Class, and in particular the Family
Class in this proceeding. I will fairly and adequately represent the interests of the Class should
this Court appoint me as representative plaintiff. I appreciate that my role is to protect the

interests of the Class.

16. I believe that the Defendants have breached their obligations as set out in the Claim, and

that the Class is entitled to some form compensation or redress.
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17. 1 understand that the major steps in a class action typically include: the issuance of the
statement of claim (and amendments to it if required), and the provision of a defence; a motion
for certification (including the exchange of supporting affidavits and cross examinations as
necessary); and, assuming the action is certified as a class proceeding, discoveries, a trial as

required, and potentially appeals.

18. In this case, the parties have reached a settlement, which they ask the Court to approve. I
am now asking the Court to certify the action as a class proceeding by this motion for
certification, and approve the settlement. I understand that if the Court certifies the action as a
class proceeding, the certification notice will be sent to Class Members who will be given the
opportunity to opt out of the class action if they wish within a fixed period. The Class Members

will also be given full particulars of the settlement, if approved.

19. Class Members will have the right to object to the proposed settlement, and if approved

those members who do not opt out will receive the benefits of the settlement agreement.

20. I also understand that, in agreeing to seek and accept an appointment as a representative
plaintiff, it is my responsibility, among other things, to be familiar with this action, and to review
the Claim and any further amendments, to assist in the preparation and execution of an affidavit
such as this one in support of the motion for certification and settlement approval, to attend, if
necessary, with Class Counsel for cross examination on my affidavit, to attend, if necessary, with
Class Counsel at the settlement approval hearing and give evidence regarding the case, to receive
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respecting Class Counsel’s fees and disbursements and to communicate with Class Members as

required.
I have Taken Steps to Carry out my Obligations as Representative Plaintiff:

21. To date, I have taken steps to fairly and adequately represent the Class Members,
including instructing counsel to amend and continue the prosecution of a class proceeding,
addressing legal fees with counsel, discussing with counsel the nature of the class actions,

including the risks and costs of same, assisting in the amendment of the Claim, obtaining
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documents and other information at the request of counsel reviewing the litigation plan, meeting

with counsel as required, and instructing counsel as necessary.

22. I have reviewed the Claim. I agree with the proposed definitions of the Classes and

believe that they will allow individuals to determine whether they qualify as a Class member.

23. I have reviewed the common issues set out in the Claim. While I do not have legal
expertise, I believe these issues would need to be addressed by virtually every individual Class
Member if this matter did not proceed by way of a class action and that a resolution of the

common issues would significantly advance this litigation.

24.  1believe that a class action is the preferable procedure to resolve the common issues. The
class action will provide access to justice for me and other Class Members. I am aware that
many Inuvialuit persons live in remote communities, are not in a position to retain counsel due to
ge‘ographic, logistic and financial reasons, suffer from psychological and emotional problems
often as a result of their parent’s Residential School experiences, and suffer from poverty and
often from substance abuse. I believe that thousands of Residential School survivors and their

families would not be able to advance their legal rights without these class actions.

25. I do not believe that I have any interest that is in conflict with the interest of any other
Class Members. I believe that I can fairly and adequately represent the interests of the Class and
in particular, the Family Class and I am committed to fulfilling my responsibilities as a

representative plaintiff.
THE PROPOSED SETTLEMENT

26. -~ The proposed settlement was reached through a long process of negotiation. The
Honourable Frank Iacobucci, Q.C. was appointed in May 2005 as the Federal Representative
responsible for convening and superintending multi-party settlement negotiations. Those
negotiations were held in various cities across Canada over the summer and fall of 2005, with
various stakeholders attending, including legal counsel as well as representatives from the
Assembly of First Nations, Inuit and Inuvialuit representatives from Nunavut Tunngavik

Incorporated, Inuvialuit Regional Corporation and Makivik Inc., among others.
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27.  An agreement in principle was reached with that group on November 20, 2005, and a
final settlement agreement was reached on May 10, 2006. That settlement agreement was
subsequently apprdved by the federal cabinet, and now is put forward for approval by the various

courts.

28. I have reviewed the settlement agreement approved by the Federal Cabinet, and I have
discussed it with Class Counsel. I believe that this settlement package is beneficial to the Family

Class Members.

29. = The components of the settlement agreement, which are beneficial to the Family Class

members, include the following:

(a) There is a payment of $125,000,000 to the Aboriginal Healing Foundation. That
Foundation is focused exclusively on addressing the healing needs of aboriginal
people affected by the residential schools legacy, including the intergenerational
impacts. The Foundation will use the funds to pay for community based healing
programs designed with a holistic approach. The Foundation’s mandate is to fund
projects which help communities knit together social, health and other programs
into an accessible format to help address the many ways in which individuals
have suffered as a result of the residential schools legacy (ie. substance abuse
problems, ill health effects, soéial, behavioral and emotional problems,

educational needs, difficulties obtaining employment, etc.)

The Foundation is national in scope and accepts applications from aboriginal
individuals, groups and organizations throughout Canada. It has a specific
mandate to address the intergenerational impact of the residential schools legacy
and the funds being provided under the settlement provide a direct and accessible

benefit to the Family Class members;

(b) An additional $20,000,000 has been allocated to fund community based
commemoration projects to acknowledge and remember how the residential

schools policy has affected the Class. The purpose of commemoration is to
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honour and validate the healing and reconciliation of the Class through the

creation of memorial structures, ceremonies and other projects;

(c) A Truth and Reconciliation Commission is established through funding of
$60,000,000, to provide an open, safe and holistic environment for the Class and
the community to come forward with their experiences, with a view to raising
public awareness, facilitating healing and rebuilding in the communities and
providing a record for future generations. Both the commemoration projects and
the truth and reconciliation initiatives are the foundation of the settlement package
which are designed to ensure that the stories of Family Class Members can be told

and remembered in future generations;

(d) A provision 1s made for surplus Common Experience Payment funds to be further
disseminated to the Survivor Class by way of personal credits of .up to $3000,
which are transfefable to Family Class Members. If a surplus of more than $40
million remains from the $1.9 billion set aside for the Common Experience
Payments to the Survivor Class, those further credits will be provided. Those
personal credits, many of which will likely be designated for use by Family Class
Members, can be used for educational services provided by approved educational
entities. It is my belief that given the educational nature of the personal credits,
there is a strong likelihood that many members of the Survivor Class will pass on
those credits to members of the Family Class, if a surplus exists. Surplus funds
not disseminated in this way will go to the Assembly of First Nations and Innuit

organizations for educational initiatives as well; and

(e) In addition to the foregoing, the various church entities that are parties to the
Settlement Agreement will provide up to $102.8 million, through cash and in-kind
services to develop new programmes designed to assist with healing and

reconciliation for the Family Class members and their communities.

30.  The residential schools legacy has affected the Family Class and the entire Inuvialuit
community. The members of the Family Class face a lifetime of trying to adjust and adapt, and

to reconcile the history of Inuvialuit mistreatment by Canada with a desire to build a proud and
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settlement, is essential.

31.  As a Family Class member, I believe that the significant monetary commitment made to
the Inuvialuit community as part of this settlement agreement will help in healing the breach
between Canada and Canadian Inuvialuit, and help all Inuvialuit people to move beyond the

tragic legacy of residential schools.

32. I am satisfied with the settlement, and believe that it meets the needs of the Class
members. I also believe that it is important for the settlement to be approved. Absent a
settlement, 1 fear that litigation could be protracted, and more and more members of my

community would die without seeing a resolution to this legacy.

. :
Dana Eva Marie Francey

SWORN BEFORE ME at the Town of Inuvik,
in the Northwest Territories, this 3 day of
Acgoot 2006,

A NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the
Northwest Territories

My ommsSicn eited> | haol 2307
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Court File No. $-0001-2005 000 243

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE NORTHWEST TERRITORTES
BETWEEN:
ROSEMARIE KUPTANA, as a representative of that class of individuals who are enrolled as
beneficiavies of the Inuvialuit Trost, and who attended a Federal Day School, Indian Residential
School, Hostel, or other school of a residential nature, in vatious locations across Canada, all of

which were established and administered by, or otherwise the responsibility of, the Government
of Canada

Plaintiff
« and-
THE ATTORNEY GENERAL OF CANADA

Defendant

AFFIDAVIT OF BENNY DOCTOR

SWORNTHIS 3 DAYOF RUGUsT ,2006

I, Benny Doctor, of Tulita, in the Northwest Territorics, MAXE QATH AND STATE
THAT:

PERSONAL BACKGROUND
I I am a member of the Survivor Class and a potential representative plaintiffs in this
putative class proceeding brought on behalf of all Class Members, as deseribed and defined in

the proposed Amended Statement of Claim (the *Claim™),

2. [ was born on August 16, 1952, I am a member of the Tulita Dene First Nation, in the

Northwest Territories. I reside in the provinee of the Northwest Territories.

3. 1 attended at the Grollier Hall Indian Residential School (“Residential School™) in Inuvik,
Northwest Territories for five years from 1964 to 1969.

(YONEI3LDOC T
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4, 7 meet the definition of a Survivor Class Member as sct out in the Claim. I am one of the
people who suffered dircetly from Canada’s residential schools policy, as a person who actually
attended Residential School. [ know first hand the damage this has done fo me personally and to

my family and community
MY EXPERIENCE AS A RESIDENTIAL SCHOOL SURVIVOR

5, 1 understand from my parents that they were told by the authorities that my siblings und 1
had to go to Residential School in Inuvik. lnuvik was a long way from Tulita, about 300 miles by
airplane. 1 remember being taken by my father with my brother to the plave to fly to Inuvik.
There were other kids there who were going. I remember a man 7 believe was the Government

Indian agent who was also there. T was sad, aftaid and did not want to go.

6. At Residential School I was removed from the care of my parcnts, family, and
community, actively discouraged from speaking my aboriginal language, repeatedly sexuaily and
physically abused, strapped, insulted and taunted by persons in authority as a result of my

aboriginal origin, and given inadequate food, health care, and education.

7. Starting in 1964 when 1 entercd Residential School and continuing until T left in 1969 T
was sexually abused, ineluding rape, multipie times by each of three different men who worked
as supervisors at the school. The first ycar I was at the school, my supervisor started abusing me
soon after I arrived. It started with kissing, soon moved to oral sex and soon after that rape. This
occurred regnlarly. In my sccond year a difterent supervisor became my primary abuser. He also

i / Jast year at the School yot a diffcrent supervisor

becurne my primary abuser and he 100 taped me on a regular basis,

8. As a result I lived in 2 constant state of fear and emotional and physical pain while at
Grollier Hall, Physical pain from the damage to my rectumn caused by the sexual abuse and fear

and emotional pain from knowing I was helpless and alone with no one (o defend me against my
abusers,

{Y00L8031.D0C;1}
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9, 1 was also physically abused by both a pricst and @ nun. The priest strapped mc once.
The nun was especially mean. She seemed to hatc me. Her primary form of abuse was pulling
my cars hard, which she did regularly. But she hurt me nouch more decply with her words, for
her abuse would often be accompanied by ridicule and verbal insults about who and what T was.

She would often call me a French word, “sauvage™, which means savage.

10, When we first arrived at Residential School T was scparated from my older brother and
not allowed to talk to bim. T was also scparated from my sisters. Being separated from my
siblings causcd me great Joneliness, [ often cried because of the loneliness and because T wanted

to go home.

11.  The nuns would read any letters I wrote before they were sent and they often did not send
my letters because they did not like what 1 wrote. Residential School was likc a concentration
camp iu that way, everything I did was controlled and 1 felt powerless.

12. 1 was often hungry at Residential School. The meals we got did not fill me up and we
rarcly got second helpings.

13, Tfelt degraded and humiliated by my Residential School experience, 1 felt ashawmed, T still
do. While at Residential School the other boys seemed to know I was a favourite victim of
particular supervisors, They would constantly ridicule mc. The shame 1 felt among my peers as a

child stayed with me long after T left Residential School.

14. [ believe my Residential School experience has caused me lifelong harm and injury

which I will try to describe.

15, When I would return home for the summers | remember being angry at my parents, I
wouldn’t behave or listen to them the way [ used to, Life at home was not happy like it had been

before Residential School. I was not happy. 1 started to drink alcohol.

16. My Residential School experience caused me to twn to alcohol in order to deaden the
pain, resulting in an addiction which was very difficult for me to overcome. T had a very low

sense of self-worth, something I still struggle with. Later in my adult life my wife and T attended
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detoxification and addiction programs, These together with my wife’s support and our {aith have

allowed me to stop drinking.

17. My Residential School experience has severely affected my ability to positively relate to
my wife, my children and my extended family in an emotional and loving way, My wife and I
. have attended family counseling and relationship programs, With the support of my wife and my

children we are rebuilding our family relationships,

18. T will never be able to rebuild my relationship with my father, He died long before I could
ever begin to tell him about what happened to me. I only (0ld my mother a few years ago about
the abusce 1 suffered at Residential school. Our relationship has begun to heal since then and we

can ¢ven laugh sometimes now.
19. T have always had nightmares about what happened at Residential School. T still do.

20. I have become involved over the yedrs in some activities which help me try to put
Residential School behind me by allowing me to help others. I am involved in the Junior Rangers
program. We take kids who have no connection to the land out in the bush to teach them how to
live on the land. Many of these kids come from bad homes and situations. Many of their parents
went to Residential School. [ feel good when I am out on the land and 1 feel good when I am

helping these kids.

21, My wife and 1 have also been involved in a community leadership program aimed at
learning how to help others deal with bad situations in their lives resulting from aleohol, violence
und abuse. Part of it is sharing your own bad experiences. Many people have bad experiences

from Residential Schoo!l to sharc,

1 AM PREPARED TO ACT AS REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFF OF THE CLASS
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My Obligations as Representative Plainftiff:

22.  }am prepared to act as representative plaintiff of the Swxviver Class in this proceeding. 1
will fairly and adequately represent the interests of the Class should this Court appoint me as
representative plaintiff. 1appreciate that my role is to protect the interests of the Class.

23, 1believe that the Defendants have breached their obligations as set out in the Claim, and

that the Survivor Class is entitled to compensation.

24. 1 understand that the major steps in a class action typically include: the issuance of the
statement of claim (and amendments to it if required), and the provision of a defence; a motion
for certification (including the exchange of supporting affidavits and cross examinations as
necessary); and, assuming the action is certified as a class proceeding, discoveries, a trial as

required, and potentially appeals.

25.  In this case, the parties have reached a settlement which they ask the court to approve. 1
am pow asking the Court to certify the action as a class proceeding by this motion for
certification, and approve the settlement. | understand that if the Coutt certifics the action as a
class proceeding, the certification notice will be sent to Class Members who will be given the
opportunity to opt out of the class action if they wish, within a fixed period. The Class Members

will also be given full particulars of the settlement, if approved.

26.  Class Members will have the right to object to the proposed scttlement, and if approved,
opt out. Those Class Members who do not opt out will receive the henefits of the scttfement

L1 222N WL LR 8

agreement,

27. T also understand that, in agreeing to scek and accept an appodintment as a represcntative
plaintift, it is my responsibility, among other things, to be familiar with this action, and to review
the Claim and any further amendments, to assist in the preparation and cxecution of an affidavit
such as this one in support of the motion for certilication and settlement approval, to attend, if
necessary, with Class Counsel for cross examination on my affidavit, to attend, if necessary, with
Class Counsel at the settlement approval hearing and give cvidence regarding the case, to receive

briefings from and to instruct Class Counsel, to seek the court’s approval of agreements
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respecting Class Counsel’s fees and disbursements and to communicate with Class Members as

reqguired.
1 have Taken Steps to Carry ont my Obligations ay Representative Plaintiff:

28,  To date, I have taken steps to fairly and adequately represent the Survivor Class
Members, including insteucting connsel to prepare thiy Affidavit, discussing with counsel the
nature of thesc class actions, including the risks and costs of same, assisting in providing
information at the request of counsel, meeting with counsel as required, and instructing counsel

as necessary.

29. 1 have reviewed the Claim. 1 agree with the proposed definitions of the Classcs and

belicve that they will allow individuals (o determine whether they qualify as Class Members.

30. T have reviewed the common issues set out in the Claim. While I do not have legal
expertise, I believe these issues would need fo be addressed by virtually every individual Class
Member if this matter did not proceed by way of a class action and that a resolution of the

; common issues would significantly advance this litigation,

31.  Thelieve that a class action is the preferable procedure to resolve the common issues. The
class action will provide access to justice for me and other Class Members. 1 am aware that
many aboriginal persons like myself live in remote communities. Many arc not in a position to
retain counsel due to geographic, logistic and financial reasons, sutfer from psychological and
emotional problems often as a result of their experiences at residential schools, and suffer from
poverty and often from substance abuse. I believe that thousands of survivors and their families

would not be able to advance their Jegal rights without this class action.

32. T do not believe that I have any interest that is in conflict with the interest of any other
Class Members. T believe that I can fairly and adequately represent the interests of the Survivor

Class and I am committed to fulfilling my responsibilities as a representative plaintiff,

THE PROPOSED SETTLEMENT
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33. I am advised by my counscl and believe that the proposed settlement was rcached
through a long process of negotiation. The Honourable Frank Iacobucei, Q.C. was appointed in
May 2005 as the Federal Representative responsible for convening and superintending multi-
party settlement negotiations. Those negotiations were held in various citics across Canada over
the summer and fall of 2005, with various stakeholders attending, including legal counsel as well

as aboriginal representatives from the Assembly of First Nations, among others.

34, An agreement in principle was reached with that group on November 20, 2005, and a
final settlement agreement was reached on May 10, 2006. That seitlement agreement was

subsequently approved by the Federal Cabinet, and now is put forward for approval by the
various courts,

35. 1 have teviewed the sctilement agreement approved by the Federal Cabinet, and T have
discussed it with my Counsel, 1bclicve that this scttlement package is beneficial to the Survivor
Class Members. It includes fair compensation for the Survivor Class, This includes monctary
compensation bascd on length of attendance at residential school, through the commuon
experience payment. It also provides an accessible method by which survivors can seck
additional compensation for serious physical and/or sexual abuse. 1 have reviewed these aspects

of the settlement and I believe that they faitly and adequately meet the needs of members of the

survivor class,

36, The settlement includes a truth and reconciliation aspect, ag well as a commemorative
aspect, both of which are necessary to ensure that the issue of residential schools becomes a part
of the public record in Canada, and that its legacy is never repeated. This settlement package

also includes a significant amount of moncy to be put towards healing programs through the
Aboriginal Healing Foundation.

37. | am satisfied with the scttlement, and beliove that it meets the needs of the Survivor
Class members. I also believe that it is important for the settlement to be approved. Absent a
settlement, | fear that litigation could be protracted, and more and more members of my
community would die without seeing a resolution to this legacy. The ¢laims process promises an

efficient delivery of compensation, which is important to me and my community.
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38.  Tswear this affidavit in good faith and for no improper purpose.

SWORN belore me at the Hamlet of Tulita
in the Northwest Territories this _ 3

ANOTARY PUBLIC IN AYE BENNY DOCTOR_ ™
FOR THE NORTHWEST TERRITORIES
My comimission expires: _ ~MNET/VAE

DALE A. CUNNINGHAM
BARRISTER & SOLICITOR
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Court File No. 5-0001-2005 000 243
IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE NORTHWEST TERRITORIES
BETWEEN:
ROSEMARIE KUPTANA, as a representative of that class of individuals who are enrolled as
beneficiarics of the Inuvialuit Trost, and who attcnded a Federal Day School, Indian Residential
School, Hostel, or other school of a residential nature, in various locations across Canada, all of
which were established and administered by, or otherwise the responsibility of, the Government
of Canada
Plaintiff
- and-

THE ATTORNEY GENERAL OF CANADA

Defendant

AFFIDAVIT OF LUCY DOCTOR
SWORNTHIS .3 DAYOF AYGUST 2006

I, Lucy Doctor, of Tulita, in the Northwest Temritories, MAKE OATH AND STATE
THAT:

1. I am a potential representative plaintiff and member of the Family Class in this putative

_class proceeding brought on behalf of all Class Mcmbers, as described and dcfined in the

proposed Amended Statement of Claim (the “Claim™).

2, { was born on April 19, 1931. I am a member of the Tulita Dene First Nation, in the
Northwest Territories. reside in Tulita in the Northwest Territorics.

3. My son Benny Doctor attended at the Grollier Hall Tndian Residential School
(“Residential School™) in Inuvik, Northwest Territorics from approximately 1964 to 1969. In
addition to Benny my other children were also sent to the Grollier I1all Residential School. These

were my son Ronald Doctor and my daughters Cathy Fraser and Rita and Lorraine Doctor. 1 did

not attend a residential school myself.

[YOIB2.D0C; 1}
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4. T meet the definition of a Family Class Member as set out in the Claim,
OVERVIEW OF MY POSITION

5. I believe that residential schools have had a devastating cffcct on Canada’s aboriginal
people. Those who attended the schools bore the brunt of the damage but the schools® impact has
also been felt by the families of those survivors, including parcnts, spouscs, children and

grandchildren as well as by the wider aboriginal community.

6. As a Family Class Member, | have felt the effects of the pain and humiliation suffered by
my children in many ways. The multi-gencrational impacts of the residential schools policy are

undeniable,

7. I personally have felt the effects of my children’s residential school experience and
particularly that of my son Benny, in many ways that T will deseribe below. Like many other
aboriginal Canadians I have spent a large part of my life dealing with those effects and looking
backwards at the pain and injury which the residential schools caused. I agree with those
aboriginal leaders and individuals who say it is time to begin looking ahead rather than behind. I
belicve it is time for individuals who have suffered to seek reconciliation and to attempt to

rebuild themselves and their communities,

8. T have discussed this settlement with my legal counsel. T understand that it is the result of
a lengthy negotiation progess in which many lawyers representing survivors, aboriginal leaders,
church representatives and representatives of Canada were involved. T understand that during the
negotiations many different points of view were expressed and that in order to reach a settlement
compromises were required on all sides. I am advised that one of the significant challenges in the
negotiations to find a way to fairly and properly recognize the members of the Family Class in a
settlement.

9. 1 recognize that this settlement does not provide and direct financial compensation to
members of the Family Class. However other elements of the settlement arc of benefit to those

members and will help us to put the residential school legacy in the past where it belongs. 1
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believe that this settlement is a fair and reasonable way to address the claims of the Family Class,

particularly taking into account the difficulties that may exist in attempting to pursue such claims
through litigation. For these reasons 1 fully support the proposed settlement.

My EXPERIENCE AS A FAMILY MEMBER OF A RESIDENTIAL SCHOOL SURVIVOR

10. T recall the day when my two sons were taken by plane from Tulita to Residential School
in Inuvik, My husband had been told by the government man, [ believe he was the Indian Agent,
that our children had to go away to Residential School. I did not want by children to go. 1 could
not bear to go to the plane with my husband and sons. 1 stayed home and cried, In 1967 the rest
of my children, my three daughters, were taken away to Grollier Hall Residential School. My

husband and T were now alone at hcime.

11.  Before our children were all taken to Residential school our home was full of talking and
laughing. There were many things to do and my children helped us to do them or accompanied
myself or my husband while we did them. We told our children stories at night.

12. - After all my children were gone I cried a lot out of lonelincss. My husband was often
away working or out in the bush. I was alone at home and had no help in taking care of our
home, gathering wood, making clothes, prepaning and storing food. My husband had no help in
hunting, ¢hecking snares, and looking after the dogs. We both were not able to pass on many of
the traditional Dene skills and knowledge to our sons and daughters when they were at a crucial

young age for learning them.

13.  There were many of us in the community who had lost children to Residential School.
We women would often meet and talk about our children and how they were doing. We shared
our sadness in this way. There was a lot of sadness in the community. After our children were
gone to Residential School there were times when my husband and T would argue about them
being there. I did not want them to be there. He told me that we had no choice that they had to
learn the white man’s ways. Having our children take to Residential School caused conflict
between my husband and I.
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14.  As a parent of Residential School survivors, I have seen and experienced the ongoing
“effects of the Residential School experience. 1 understand my children, including, my son Benny
Doctor, suffercd mistreatment and neglect at Grollier Hall Residential School where they were

also denied the right to usc their own language or follow their own culture.

15. More particularly, I believe that my son Benny Doctor also suffered the following

expericnces at Grollier Hall:

a) From the year he cntered the school in 1964 until he left in 1969 my son was
subjected to scxual abusc at the hands of thrce supervisors cmployed af the
Residential School. This abuse consisted fondling, oral and anal sex, and continued

over a five year period;

b) Throughout his attendance at Residential School, my son was subjected to
physical abuse, which included being strapped, struck and having his ears pulled for
“infractions™ such as speaking Depe and crying hecause he was lonely and wanted to

£o home;

¢) My son was verbally ridiculed and humiliated publicly by nuns — one nun in

particular would call my son a “sauvage” or savage;

d) My son was separated from his older brother and his sisters and not allowed to

speak with them, This caused him great loneliness.

16.  These experiences degraded and humiliated my son and I believe significantly affected
my son's ability to rclate to other pcople, and in particular, negatively affected my own
relationship with my son. My son found it difficult to cxpress affection towards me, both
verbally and physically and still struggles with this today.

17. My son Benny did not experience a loving and expressive relationship with carcgivers

while attending Residential School. T beligve this as well as the mistreatment, abuse and attack
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- upon his identity which he expetienced at Grollier Hall are at the root of the many problems he

has experienced in life which, in turn, scvcrely ailected my own life.

18.  Before he was taken to Residential School Benny was a happy, talkative, outgoing boy,
Upon his return from Residential School for thc summer he had become very quiet. He did nat
talk to us, he did not seem happy and he started to drink alcohol. It got worse over the next few
years and Benny started to disobey and talk back to myself and his father.

19. My son Benny has suffered from addiction to alcohol much of his life. I believe that his
drinking was caused by the experiences he suffered through at residential school. My son and his
family have experienced a great amount of pain because of his drinking. Secing his pain has
caused me much pain over the years. I have also felt a great amount of guilt for allowing my son
and his brother and sisters to be taken so far away from home to residential school. I have also

felt guilt for being unable to help my son while hc was at residential school.

20. 1 believe having to send Benny and my other children to residential school damaged the
parent — child bond between us. It prevented me from having the joy and satisfaction of passing
on to my children many of the Dene skills and ways of life. While our children were at
Residential School they lost much of their ability to speak Dene (Slavey). It was bhard for them to
relearn it after Residential School. My daughter Cathy never did regain it completely. My
children also lost the opportunity to learn traditional Dene skills such as hunting, trapping, carce
of dog teams, crafts and knowledpe of plants and animals. Some of our children later lcarned

some of these skills, some did not.

21, While my son Benny and I have talked about some of his experiences, it was very
traumatic at fivst for both of us. It was very difficult for my son to say what happened to him and

it was very difficult for me to listen to it.

22. My son ncver learned naturally about how to cxpress love or compassion for his family.
He had difficulty being a good parent, husband and son. T believe these problems are a result of
hig time in residential school, and the failure of the Residential School 10 create a caring and
nurtaring environment for its students. -
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23, My son’s Residential School experiences are tragic, and it saddens me to even think of
them. His cruel treatment while in Residential School has irreversibly damaged my son, and

contributed to a multi-generational loss to our family and to the aboriginal community generally.

24. I therefore believe that my son Benny, my other children and T suffered harm as a result
of the Residential School experience.

T AM PREPARED TO ACT AS REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFF OF THE CLASS

25. I am prepared to act as representative plaintiff of the Class, and in particular the Family
Class in this procecding. 1 will fairly and adcquatcly represent the imterests of the Class should
this Court appoint mc as represcatative plaintiff. I appreciate that my role is to protect the
interests of the Class.

26. 1 believe that the Defendants have breached their obligations as sct out in the Claim, and

that the Class is cntitled to some form compensation or redress.

27. T understand that the major steps in a class action typically include: the issuance of the
statement of claim (and amendments to it if required), and the provision of a defence; a motion
for certification (including the exchange of supporting affidavits and cross examinations as
necessary); and, assuming the action is certified as a class proceeding, discoveries, a trial as

required, and potentially appeals.

28.  In this case, the parties have reached a settlement which they ask the Court to approve. 1
am now asking the Court to certify the action as a class proceeding by this motion for
certification, and approve the settlement. 1 undcrstand that if the Court certifies the action as a
class proceeding, the certification notice will be sent to Class Members who will be given the
opportunity to opt out of the class action if they wish within a fixed period. The Class Members
will also be given full particulars of the settlement, if approved.

29.  Class Members will have the right to object lo the proposed scttlement, and if approved

those members who do not opt out will receive the benefits of the scttlement agreement.
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30.  Talso understund that, in agrecing to scek and accept an appointment as a representative
plaintiff, it is my responsibility, among other things, to be familiar with this action, and o review

{the Claim and any {urther amendments, to assist in the preparation and execution of an affidavit

such as this one in support of the motion for certification and settlement approval, to attend, if
necessary, with Class Counsel for cross examination on my affidavit, to attend, if necessary, with
Class Counsel at the setllement approval hearing and give evidence regarding the case, to receive
brielings from and to instruct Class Coimsel, to seck the court’s approval of agreements
respecting Class Counsel’s fees and disbursements and to communicate with Class Members as

required,
I have Taken Steps to Carry out my Obligations as Representative Plaintiff:

31, To date, I have taken steps to fairly and adequately represent the Class Members,
including instructing counsel to prepare and file this affidavit, discussing with counsel the nature
of the class actions, including the risks and costs of same, assisting in gathering evidence for the
Claim, obtaining documents and other information at the request of counsel and instructing

counsel as necessary.

32. 1 have reviewed the Claim. [ agree with the proposed definitions of the Classes and

believe that they will allow individuals to determine whether they qualify as a Class member.

33. T have reviewed the common issues set out in the Claim, While T do not have Jegal
cxpertise, T believe these issues would need to be addressed by virtually every individual Class
Member if this matter did not proceed by way of a class action and that a resolution of the

commion issues would significantly advance this litigation,

34.  1believe that a class action is the preferable procedure to resolve the common issues. The
class action will provide access to justice for me and other Class Members. T am aware that
many aboriginal persons live in remote communities, are not in a position to retain counsel due
to geographic, logistic and financial reasons, suffer from psychological and emotional problems

oftcn as a result of their Residential School experiences, and suffer from poverty and often from
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substance abuse. 1 believe that thousands of Residential School survivors and their families

would not be able to advance their legal rights without these class actions.

35. [ do not belicve that I have any interest that is in conflict with the interest of any other
Class Members. I believe that I can fairly and adequately represent the mterests of the Class and
in particular, the Family Class and I am committed to fulfilling my responsibilities as a potential
representative plaintiff.

TuE PROPOSED SETTLEMENT

36. luaderstand the proposed settlement was rcached through a long process of pegotiation,
The Honourable Frank lacobucci, Q.C. was appointed in May 2005 as the Federal Representative
responsible for convening and superintending multi-party scitlement nepotiations.  Those

negotiations were held in various cities across Canada over the summer and fall of 2005, with
various stakeholders attending, including legal counsel as well as aboriginal representatives from

the Assembly of First Nations, among others.

37. I understand an agreement in principle was reached with that group on November 20,
2005, and a final settlement agreement was reached on May 10, 2006. That settlement
| agreement was subscquently approved by the federal cabinet, and now is put forward for
approval by the various courts.
38. T have reviewed the settlement agreement approved by the Federal Cabinet, and 1 have
: discussed it with Class Counsel. 1 believe that this settlement package is beneficial to the Family

o) PN

Class Members,

39.  The components of the scttiement agreement which are beneficial to the Family Class

members include the following:

(@)  There is a payment of $125,000,000 to the Aboriginal Healing Foundation. That
i Foundation is focused exclusively on addressing the healing needs of aboriginal
people affected by the residential schools legacy, meluding the intergenerational

1Y0018032,.DOC;1}




00516
-9.

.impacts. The Foundation will usc the funds to pay for community based healing
programs designed with a holistic approach. The Foundation’s mandate is to fund
projccts which help communities knit together social, health and other programs
into an accessible format to help address the many ways in which individuals
have suffered as a result of the residential schools legacy (ie. substance abuse

problems, ill health effects, social, behavioral and cmotional problems,

educational needs, difficulties obtaining craployment, ¢tc.)

The Foundation is national in scope and accepts applications from aboriginal
individuals, groups and organizations throughout Canada. It has a spccific
mandate to address the intergencrational impact of the residential schools legacy

and the funds being provided undcer the settlement provide a divect and accessible

benefit to the Family Class members;

(b)  An additional $20,000,000 has been allocated to fund community based

H _ commemoration projects to acknowledge and remember how the residential

' schools policy has affected the Class. The 'purposc of commemoration is to
i _ ‘ honour and validate the healing and reconciliation of the Class through the

creation. of memorial structures, ceremonies and other projects;

(¢) A Truth and Reconcilistion Commission is established through funding of
- $60,000,000, to provide an apen, safe and holistic environment for the Class and
the comununity t0 come forward with their experiences, with a view to raising
public awareness, facilitating healing and rebuilding in the communities and
providing a record for future generations. Both the commemoration projects and
the truth and reconciliation initiatives are the foundation of the settlement package
which are designed to ensure that the stories of Family Class Members can be told

and remembered in future generations;

(d) A provision is made for surplus Common Experience Payment funds to be further
disseminated to the Survivor Class by way of personal credits of up to $3000,
which are transferable to Family Class Members. If a surplus of more than $40
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million remains from the $1.9 billion set aside for the Common Expeticnce
Payments to the Survivor Class, those further credits will be provided. Those
personal credits, many of which will likcly be designated for use by Family Class

Members, can be used for educational services provided by approved educational

cntities. It is my belief that given the educational naturc of the personal credits,
there is a strong likelihood that many mcmbers of the Survivor Class will pass on
those credits to members of the Family Class, if a surplus exists. Surplus funds
not disseminated in this way will go to the Assembly of First Nations and Inuit
organizations for educational initiatives which will be accessible to members of

the Family Class; and

(¢) In addition to the foregoing, the various church entities thal are parties to the
Settlement Agreement will provide up to $102.8 million, throughb cash and in-kind
services to develop new programs designed to assist with healing and

reconciliation for the Family Class members and their communities.

40. 1 belicve the residential schools legacy has affected the Family Class and the entire
aboriginal community in many ways including those experienced by myself personally. The
members of the Family Class face a lifetime of trying to adjust and adapt to the effects that
residential schools have had upon our families and communities. Some members of the Family
Class arc parents like myself, whosc children were taken away to residential schools. Others are
dhildren whose parents went to residential school and never enjoyed a family upbringing in their
own tradition and culture. These many individual experienccs have deeply affected our people
and communitics. 1 therefore beiieve that the wider support which is offered by this settlement is

essential.

41, As a Family Class member, I am hopeful the commitments made to the aboriginal

| community as part of this settlement agreement will help me and other members of the Family

Class to move beyond the impacts that the residential school system has had on our lives.
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42. I am satisfied with the settiement, and believe that it meets the needs of the Class
members. T also believe that it is important for the settlement to be approved, Without a
settleroent, I fear that litigation could be proiracted, and more and more members of my

community would die without sesiog a resolution to this legacy.

SWORN before me at the Harnlet of Tulita in the
Northwest Territories this _ 3 _ day of August, 2006,
Thereby certify that Benmy Doctor was sworn by me to
faithfully interpret the contents of this Affidavit to the
Deponent, Lucy Doctor. I further certify that in my
belief, the cntire contents of the Affidavit and the Qath
were faithfully interpreted to Lucy Doctor by Benny
Doctor and that Lucy Doctor understood it.

A NOTARY PUBLIC RFAND

- FOR THE NORTHWEST TERRITORIES
My commission expires: A&7

LUc A beacTe k’._
LUCY DOCTOR

Tt St N it Nt N et St N v Nt g

DALE A. CUNNINGHAM
BARRISTER & SOLICITOR
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CANADA ) Q.B.G. No. 816 of 2005 919
PROVINCE OF SASKATCHEWAN )

IN THE COURT OF QUEEN'S BENCH
JUDICIAL CENTRE OF REGINA

BETWEEN:

KENNETH SPARVIER, DENNIS SMOKEYDAY, RHONDA BUFFOLQ, .JOHN
DOE |, JANE DOE I, JOHN DOE 1l, JANE DOE I}, JOHN DOE {ll, JANE DOE lil,
JOHN DOE IV, JANE DOE IV, JOHN DOE V, JANE DOE V, JOHN DOE W,
JANE DOE Vi, JOHN DOE Vi, JANE DOE VII, JOHN DOE VIiI, JANE DOE Vi,
JOHN DOE IX, JANE DOE IX, JOHN DOE X, JANE DOE X, JOHN DOE XI,
JANE DOE X|, JOHN DOE XlI, JANE DOE Xli, JOHN DOE Xlli, JANE DOE Xli,
and other John and Jane Does Individuals and entities {0 be added

Plaintiffs
-and-

ATTORNEY GENERAL OF CANADA, and other James and Janet Does
Individuals and Entities to be added

Defendant

AFFIDAVIT OF DEANNA RENEE CYR

|, DEANNA RENEE CYR, of the City of Regina, in the province of Saskatchewan,
hereby MAKE QATH AND SWEAR:

1. 1 am the daughter of Bg%xda Cyr and | have read her sworn affidavit in the
%E%// f D - C
mattef dated the 24" day of July, 2006.

2, | reside at the City of Regina, in the Province of Saskatchewan, since
approximately 2000.
3. i was born at Fort Qu'Appelle, Saskatchewan on January 1, 1980 and my

mother is Brenda Cyr.
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21. These experiences degraded and humiliated my mother and | believe that
significantly affected my mother's ability to relate to other people and, in
particular, negatively affected my own relationship with my mather. My mother
found it difficult to express affection towards me, both verbally and physically,
and still finds it difficult today.

22. My mother did not experience a loving and warm relationship from
caregivers while attending Residential School. | believe this, as well as the
mistreatment, abuse and attack upon her identity, which she experienced at
Lebret and Muscowequan Indian Residential Schocol, are at the root of the many
problems she has experienced in life which have, in turn, severely affected my

own life.

23. My mother has suffered from addictions throughout her life, including

addictions to alcohol and drugs.

24.  While my mother and | have talked about some of her experiences, it is
very traumatic for my mother to relate these memories. She used to self-
medicate with drugs to take away some of the pain. | believe that my mother
went through many more painful experiences at Residential School that she
cannot or will not talk about with me.

25. My miother never iearned how o be a successiui parent, or how to openiy
express love or compassion for her children. | believe that these problems are a
result of her time in Residential School, and the failure of the Residential Schoal
to create a caring and nurturing environment for its students.

26. |, myself, was never given a proper example of how to be a parent, or how
to create and maintain a normal, functioning family. | lost that chance when my
mother was permanently damaged by the Residential School. In addition, my
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caused. | agree with those aboriginal leaders and individuals who say it is time to
begin looking ahead rather than behind, | believa it is time for the individuals who
have suffered to seek reconciliation and to attempt to rebuild themselves and
their communities.

18. 1 have discussed this settiement with my legal counsel. | understand that it
is the result of a lengthy negotiation process in which many lawyers representing
survivors, aboriginal leaders, church representatives and representatives of
Canada were involved. | understand that during the negotiations, many different
points of view were expressed and that in order to reach a settlement,
compromises were required on all sides. | am advised that one of the significant
challenges in the negotiations is to find a way to fairly and properly recognize the
members of the Family Class in a settlement.

18. | recognize that this settlement does nof provide any direct financial
compensation to members of the Family Ciass. However, other elements of the
settlement are of benefit to those members and will help us to put the residential
school legacy in the past where it belongs. | believe that this settlement is a fair
and reasonable way to address the claims of the Family Class, particularly taking
into account the difficulties that may exist in attempting to pursue such claims
through litigation. For these reasons, | fully support the proposed settlement.

20. As g child of a Residential School survivor, | have seen and experienced
the ongoing effects of the Residential School experience. | understand that my
mother suffered abuse, mistreatment and neglect at Muscowequan and Lebret
Residential Schools where she was also denied the right to use her own
language or follow her own culture.
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10. My goals are to reunite my children as soon as possible and upgrade my
education from that of grade 10 to grade 12 level.

11. My mother has disclosed to me that she suffered sexual and other abuse
at Lebret and Muscowequan Indian Residential Schools as a very young girl.

12. | was unable to understand my mother when | was a child as | was
unaware that my mother was abused. | leamned about some of the abuse after
my mother told me after her examination for discovery in her pending litigation
claim, in approximately 2005.

13. | did not attend a residential school myself.

14, | do not have a strong connection {o my aboriginal culture, including being
able to speak my native tongue Cree.

16. | meet the definition of a family class member as advanced or to be

advanced in this claim.

Overview of my Position

16. | believe that residential schools have had a devastating effect on
Canada’s aboriginal community. Those who attended the schools bore the brunt
of the damage but the schools’ impact has also been felt by the families of thase
survivors, including parents, spouses, children and grandchildren as well as by

the wider abaoriginal community.

17. | personally have felt the effects of my mother's residential school
experience in many ways that | will describe in this affidavit Like many other
aboriginal Canadians, | have spent a large part of my life dealing with those
effects and looking backwards at the bain and injury which the residential schools
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4. | have two brothers from my mother and natural father and one sister as
follows:
(a) Terrance Cyr;
(b) Robert Gambier;
(¢}  Sarah Gopher
5. l amn a single parent and the mother of my children as follows:

(&) Jadau Cyr- DOB: December 25, 1999;
(b) Jacova Cyr - DOB: December 10, 2001;
(¢)  Jariah Cyr- DOB: July 16, 2003;

(d) Journey Cyr: DOB: June 6, 2006.

At present, my three oldest daughters are cared for by my mother, Brenda Cyr
and | am caring for my youngest daughter.

6. I am in good health but | acknowledge that in the past | have had a serious
drug and alcohol problem that | continue to deal with.

7. In 2005, | stopped consuming any alcohol or illicit drugs and | took
counseling at “Maxie” (Métis Alcohol Counseling Centre in Regina).

8, My oldest daughter now suffers from fetal alcohol syndrome to a limited
extent and my youngest daughter now has a very mild problem as a result of
substance abuse by me during my pregnancy.

9. I am unemployed, reside on my own in Regina and | receive social
assistance.
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brothers have had serious substance abuse problems and difficulties in their lives
in being stable and productive.

27. | am now a single mother of four young children. | am struggling to meet
the day-to-day obligations of being a parent. However, | now know that my
mother and | suffer from many of the same problems in parenting and | believe
that many of these problems stem from my mother's attendance at Residential
School. | am working as hard as | can to make sure that my children do not
become part of yet another generation of aboriginal children that do not receive
the love and attention they should.

i 28. My mother’s Residential School experiences are tragic, and it saddens me
to even think of them. Her devastating treatment while in Residential School has
irreversibly damaged my mother, and contributed to a multi-generational loss fo
our family and to the aboriginal community generally.

29. | therefore believe that both my mother and | suffered harm as a result of
the Residential School experience. '

t am Prepared to Act as Representative Plaintiff of the Class

30. | am prepared {0 act as representative plaintiff of the Class, and, in
particular, the Family Ciass in this proceeding. | will fairly and adequately
represent the interests of the Class should this Court appoint me as
repraesentative plaintiff. | appreciate that my role is to protect the interests of the

Class.

31. 1 believe that the Defendants have breached their obligations as set out in
the Claim, and that the Class is eniitled to some form of compensation or

redress.




- 7 -

00525

32. | understand that the major steps in a class action typically include: the
issuance of the statement of claim (and amendments to it if required), and the
provision of a defence; a motion for certification (including the exchange of
supporting affidavits and cross-examinations as necessary); and, assuming the
action is certified as a class proceeding, discoveries, a trial as required, and,
potentially, appeals.

33. In this case, the parties have reached a settlement which they ask the
Court to approve. | am now asking the Court to certify the action as a class
proceeding by this motion for certification, and approve the settlement. |
undarstand that if the Court certifies the action as a class proceeding, the
certificate notice will be sent to Class Members who will be given the opportunity
to opt out of the class action if they wish within a fixed pericd. The Class
Members will also be given full particulars of the setilement, if approved.

34. Class Members will have the right to object to the proposed settlement,
and if approved, those members who do not opt out will receive the benefits of
the settlement agreement.

35, [ also understand that, in agreeing to seek and accept an appointment as
a representative plaintiff, it is my responsibility, among other things, to be familiar
with this action, and to review the Claim and any further amendments, to assist in
the preparation and execution of an affidavit such as this one in support of the
motion for certification and seftlement appruva!, to attend, if necessary, with
Class Counsel for cross-examination on my affidavit, to attend, if necessary, with
Class Counsel at the settlement approval hearing and give evidence regarding
the case, to receive briefings from and to instruct Class Counsel, to seek the
courts approval of agreements respecting Class Counsel's fees and
disbursements and to communicate with Class Mamberg as required.
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I have Taken Steps to Carry out my Obligations as Representative Plaintiff:

36. To date, | have taken steps to fairly and adequately represent the Class
Members, including instructing counsel to amend and continue the prasecution of
a class proceeding, addressing legal fees with counsel, discussing with counsel
the nature of the class actions, including the risks and costs of same, assisting in
the amandment of the Clairm, obtaining documents and other information at the
request of counsel reviewing the litigation plan, meeting with counsel as required,
and instructing counsel as necessary.

37. 1 have reviewed the Claim. | agree with the proposed definitions of the
Classes and believe that they will allow individuals to determine whether they
qualify as a Class member.

38. | have reviewed the common issues set out in the Claim. While | do not
have legal expertise, | believe these issues would need to be addressed by
virtually every individual Class Membaer if this matter did not proceed by way of a
class action and that a resolution of the common issues would significantly
advance this litigation.

39. | believe that a class action is the preferable procedure to resolve the
common issues. The class action will provide access to justice for me and other
Class Membere | am aware that meny aboriginal perso i
communities, are not in a position to retain counsel due to geographic, logistic
and financial reasons, suffer from psychological and emotional problems often as
a result of their parent's Residential School experiences, and suffer from poverty
and often from substance abuse, | believe that thousands of Residential School
survivars and their families would not be able to advance their legal rights without

thase class actions,
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40. | do not believe that | have any interest that is in conflict with the interast of

any other Class Members. | believe that | can fairly and adequately represent the
interests of the Class and, in particular, the Family Class and | am committed to
fulfilling my responsibilities as a representative plaintiff,

The Proposed Settlement

41. The proposed setflement was reached through a long process of
negotiation. The Honourable Frank lacobucci, Q.C. was appointed in May 2005
as the Federal Representative responsible for convening and superintending
multi-party settlement negotiations. Those negotiations were held in various cities
across Canada over the summer and fall of 2005, with various stakeholders
attending, including legal counsel as wall as aboriginal representatives from the
Assembly of First Nations, among others.

42.  An agreement in principal was reached with that group on November 20,
2005, and a final seftlement agreement was reached on May 10, 2006. That
settlement agreement was subsequently approved by the federal cabinet, and
now is put forward for approval by the various courts.

43. | have reviewed the seftlement agreement approved by the Federal
Cabinet, and | have discussed it with Class Counsel. | believe that this settiement
package is beneficial to the Family Class Members.

44,  The components of the seftiement agreement which are beneficial to the
Family Class mambers include the following:

(@) There is a payment of $125,000,000 to the Aboriginal Healing
Foundation. That Foundation is focused exclusively on addressing
the healing needs of aboriginal people affected by the residential
schools legacy, including the intergenerational impacts. The
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Foundation will use the funds to pay for community-based healing

programs designed with a holistic approach. The Foundation's
mandate is to fund projects which help communities knit together
social, health and other programs into an accessible format to help
address the many ways in which individuals have suffered as a
result of the residential schools legacy (ie. substance abuse

problems, il health effects, social, behavioral and emotional
problems, educational needs, difficulties obtaining employment,
ete.).

The Foundation is national in écaﬁe and accepts applications from
aboriginal individuals, groups and organizations throughout
Canada. It has a s;jeciﬁc mandate to address the intergenerational
impact of the residential schools legacy and the funds being
provided under the settlement provide a direct and accessible
benefit ta the Family Class members;

(b)  An additional $20,000,000 has been allocated to fund community-
based commemoration projects to acknowledge and remember
how the residential schools policy has affected the Class. The
purpose of commemoration is to honor and validate the healing and
reconciliation of the Class through the creation of memorial

structures, cerémonies and other projects;

(c) A Truth and Reconciliation Commission is established through
funding of $60,000,000 to provide an open, safe and holistic
environment for the Class and the community to come forward with
their experiences, with a view to raising public awareness,
facilitating healing and febuiiding in the communities and providing
a record for future generations. Both the commemoration projects
and the truth and reconciliation initiatives are the foundation of the
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settlement package which are designed to ensure that the stories of
Family Class Members can be fold and remembered in future
generations;

(d) A provision is made for surplus Common Experience Payment
funds to be further dissaminated to the Survivor Class by way of
personal credits of up to $3,000, which are transferable to Family
Class Members. If a surplus of more than $40 million remains from
the $1.9 billion set aside for the Common Experience Payments to
the Survivor Class, those further craedits will be provided. Those
perscnal credits, many of which will likely be designated for use by
Family Class Members, can be used for educational services
provided by approved educational entities. 1t is my belief that given
the educational nature of the personal credits, there is a strong
likelihood that many members of the Survivor Class will pass on
those credits to members of the Family Class, if a surplus exists.
Surplus funds not disseminated in this way will go fo the Assembly
of First Nations and Inuit organizations for educational initiatives as

well; and

(&) In addition to the foregoing, the various church entities that are
parties to the Settlement Agreement will provide up to §102.8
miiiion, through cash and in-kind servicas fo deveiop new
programmes designed to assist with healing and recongciliation for
the Family Class members and their communities.

45. The residential schools legacy has affected the Family Class and the
entire aboriginal community. The members of the Family Class face a lifetime of
trying to adjust and adapt, and to reconcile the history of aberiginal mistreatment
by Canada with a desire to build a proud and strong aboriginal community. |
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therefore believe that the wider support which is offered by this settlement is
essential,

46, As a Family Class member, | believe that the significant monetary
commitment made to the aboriginal community as part of this settlement
agreement will help in healing the breach between Canada and its First Nations,
and help all First Nations people to move beyond the tragic legacy of residential
schools, '

47. | am satisfied with the settlement, and believe that it meets the needs of
the Class members. | also believe that it is important for the settlement to be
approved. Absent a settiement, | fear that litigation could be protracted, and more
and more members of my community would die without seeing a resolution to
this legacy.

SWORN BEFORE ME at the
City of Regina, in the ,
Province of Sagkajchewan, thj
3i1%ay of / ‘ 008.

‘]

{

Jesrnoe Uin

/4//{ % Deanna Renee Cyr
A Barrister and Solicitor duly Representative Plaintiff

entitled to practice law in the
Province of Saskatchewan

*
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This document prepared by:

Huck Birchard

Barristers and Scolicitors
313, 2505 - 11th Avenue
Regina, SK S4P 0OK6&
Telephone: (306) 949-0950
Fax: (306) 949-0952
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